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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Company'’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Despite the challenges faced during the past year, | am
proud to report that our company has continued to navigate
the challenging business landscape with resilience and
adaptability.

With the Covid-19 pandemic continued to severely affect the
Hong Kong lifestyle entertainment industry generally, this past
year has been a difficult time for our lifestyle entertainment
business in Hong Kong. This segment continued to experience
a downturn in performance as social restrictions and cautious
consumer behavior exhibited during the pandemic hindered
our operations. Furthermore, despite the gradual lifting of
various social restrictions since November 2022, the recovery
of the Hong Kong market post COVID-19 has been slower
than initially anticipated.

While our lifestyle entertainment business continued to
experience downturn in performance after implementing
various cost-cutting measures and adapting new business
strategies, it is fortunate that our decision to diversify into
the property management sector several years ago has paid
off. Throughout this challenging period, the performance
of our property management segment has remained strong
consistently, showcasing our resilience and strength in this
sector.

As a result, even with a drop in the revenue from our lifestyle
entertainment segment by 27.9% as compared with last year,
with our property management segment remaining strong, our
revenue has continued to grow and we achieved a turnaround
in net results from a net loss of HK$0.1 million to a net profit
of HK$24.1 million this year.

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 11.2% to
approximately HK$397.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2023. The revenue growth was mainly driven by a 13.8%
increase in revenue from our property management segment.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Revenue from our property management services has increased
by HK$47.9 million from HK$328.2 million last year to HK$376.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2023. The growth was mainly
driven by the value-added services introduced in the past year,
which generated HK$56.4 million in revenue for the segment. In
addition to this new growth factor, our property management
segment continued its improvement in project portfolio, and our
total GFA under management has increased from 8.68 million sg.
m last year as compared to 9.0 million sg. m this year.

In relation to our lifestyle entertainment segment, there was a
decline in revenue by HK$8.1 million, representing a decrease
of 27.9% from HK$29.1 million last year to HK$21.0 million this
year. Acknowledging the evolving consumer preference that
appears to be veering away from nightlife entertainment, we
implemented new marketing strategies, such as expanding
our music categories from electronic dance music to include
hip hop music to enhance our allure to our valued customers
during the year ended 31 March 2023. However, even with the
lifting of travel restrictions, the local economy has yet to move
towards full recovery, and our clubbing business encountered
formidable competition from overseas entertainment
attractions and more affordable leisure alternatives.

OUTLOOK

The Group's property management business continued to
be recognised by the market for the quality of its services.
Ningbo AUX continued to improve its ranking in 2022 China’s
Top 100 Best Property Management Service Companies from
35th last year to 33rd in 2023. In addition to the advancement
in the above ranking, Ningbo AUX was also awarded the
Management Excellence in Hospital Premises China 2023
and 2022 Zhejiang Province Property Service AAA Credit
Enterprise award in the same year. These awards encourage
Ningbo AUX to continue enhancing its brand awareness and
service quality.

Building on the success of its valued-added services, Ningbo
AUX will allocate more resources to identify and evaluate new
opportunities in this area, aiming to inject additional growth
momentum into our business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Although the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak in Hong Kong
is subsiding, its influence on consumer behavior, such as
the decreasing trend in demand for nightlife entertainment,
remains. Furthermore, the recovery in the Hong Kong
economy has been slower than expected, resulting in
a weakened purchasing power in general. Given these
circumstances, the Group maintains a cautious outlook on the
future performance of its our lifestyle entertainment segment
and will continue to evaluate its contribution to the Group
from time to time.

Our commitment to our shareholders and stakeholders
remains unwavering. We are focused on enhancing
shareholder value and delivering sustainable long-term
growth. We will continued to prudently manage our resources,
optimize our operations, and pursue prudent investment
opportunities to create value for our shareholders.

For long-term advancement, we will maintain our commitment
to attaining consistent growth in revenue and delivering
satisfactory returns to our shareholders. We will diligently
analyse favorable market shifts to explore expansion into
diverse industry sectors and enhance our income streams.
Moreover, we remain open to seizing suitable investment
prospects in e-commerce, internet information technology,
and other industries in order to further diversify our source of
income.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my gratitude to
our dedicated employees for their hard work and unwavering
commitment during these challenging times. Their resilience
and dedication has been crucial to our ability to navigate
the uncertainties we faced. | also extend my gratitude to our
valued shareholders for their continued trust and support.

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENREDSN

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2023 (the "Year”), our
lifestyle entertainment business in Hong Kong has faced
significant challenges due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Like
many sectors in Hong Kong, our lifestyle entertainment
business has been severely impacted by the pandemic. The
implementation of social restrictions and cautious consumer
behavior has hindered the lifestyle entertainment business
operations, leading to a downturn in performance. While
social restrictions have been gradually lifted since November
2022, the recovery of the Hong Kong market after the
COVID-19 pandemic has been slower than expected. As
a result, our lifestyle entertainment business continues to
experience a decline in performance.

While our lifestyle entertainment business’s performance did
not live up to expectation, our property management business
in China has remained a strong contributor to the Group
during this challenging period.

Ningbo AUX Property Management Service Co., Ltd (“Ningbo
AUX") continued to improve its portfolio and expanded its
business scope to provide value-added services during the
Year. Compared to the year ended 31 March 2022 (“FY21/22"),
the number of projects managed by the Group as of 31 March
2023 has increased from 65 projects to 66 projects, while the
aggregate contracted gross floor area increased from 8.68
million sg.m. to 9.0 million sg.m.

The revenue from property management services and its
related value-added services increased by HK$47.9 million,
from HK$328.2 million in FY21/22 to HK$376.1 million in the
Year. This growth was primarily due to the introduction of the
value-added services, which generated approximately HK$56.4
million in revenue for the segment.

As a result, even with the decrease in revenue from our
lifestyle entertainment segment by 27.9% compared to
FY21/22, the Group's revenue for the Year increased by
approximately 11.1% to approximately HK$397.1 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRESN

In line with the property management services segment's
expansion in business scope, the Group’s cost of inventories
sold has increased by HK$53.6 million to HK$61.3 million for
the Year.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group's property
management services segment allocated substantial human
resources to implement and manage various preventive
measures in FY21/22. As the pandemic situation has gradually
improved during the Year, the high demand for manpower
has decreased. As the Group decided not to pursue the
photovoltaic products business, it further decreased the level
of human resources employed by the Group. As a result, staff
costs for the Group decreased by HK$17.2 million, amounting
to HK$141.3 million for the Year.

The Group's lifestyle entertainment segment recorded an
impairment loss on property, plant, and equipment of HK$13.1
million resulting from the negative impact caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic and the slower-than-expected recovery
after the pandemic.

In addition, the Group generated a net exchange gain of
HK$7.3 million in respect of the loan from a controlling
shareholder denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) as a result of
the depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars for
the Year.

As a result, the Group achieved a turnaround in net results,
transitioning from a net loss of HK$0.1 million to a net profit
of HK$24.1 million during the Year.

OPERATING COSTS

Staff Costs

The staff costs comprised salaries, wages, discretionary
bonuses, membership commissions, tips from customers
allocated to staff and other benefits including retirement
benefit costs and other allowances and benefits payable to
permanent and part time staff. The staff costs decreased
by HK$17.3 million, representing 10.9%, to approximately
HK$141.3 million for the Year from approximately HK$158.5
million for FY21/22. The decrease was mainly due to decrease
in staff costs incurred from the property management services
segment as the demand for human resources derived from
the COVID-19 pandemic has decreased. The close down of
photovoltaic product business during the Year also resulted in
decrease in staff costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENREDSN

Utilities Expenses and Repair and Maintenance Expenses
The utilities expenses and repair and maintenance expenses
remained stable, representing an increase at approximately
HK$0.3 million or 1.0% for the Year.

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses increased by approximately
HK$6.1 million to HK$40.6 million, representing an increase of
17.7%, for the Year (FY21/22: approximately HK$34.5 million).
Such expenses included gardening costs, security costs and
other miscellaneous expenses. The increase was mainly due to
the impairment losses on trade receivables.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$380.3 million
(31 March 2022: approximately HK$430.3 million) and
approximately HK$234.6 million (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$318.8 million) respectively, while the current ratio was
about 1.6 times (31 March 2022: 1.3 times).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group maintained cash at bank and
in hand of approximately HK$286.4 million (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$330.2 million). In the foreseeable future,
the Group expects to fund its capital expenditures, working
capital and other capital requirements from cash generated
from its operations and other financing means which the
Company may from time to time consider appropriate.

Total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31 March
2023 was approximately HK$68.6 million (31 March 2022:
HK$102.1 million), which was comprised mainly of the non-
current portion of HK$52.4 million of the loan with a term of
three years at an interest rate of 2% per annum granted by
the controlling shareholder of the Company to Starry Chance
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
for the purpose of financing its acquisition of the entire equity
interests in Ningbo AUX. The gearing ratio, which is calculated
by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity,
as at 31 March 2023 was 0.3 (31 March 2022: 0.4).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEBNWEDN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 26 October 2021, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Huiri Limited (the “Subscriber”).
Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue and the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 118,000,000 shares
(the “Subscription”) at the price of HK$0.63 per share for
a consideration of HK$74,340,000. All the conditions set
out in the subscription agreement have been fulfilled and
accordingly, the completion of the Subscription took place on
15 February 2022. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deduction of the related expenses, of approximately
HK$73,730,000 were intended to be applied for working
capital, rental expenses of the lifestyle entertainment segment
and partial repayment of the loans from the controlling
shareholder.

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through maintaining the equity and
debt in a balanced position.

As at 31 March 2023, the capital structure of the Group
consisted of equity of approximately HK$232.0 million (31
March 2022: approximately HK$243.9 million) and loans from
the controlling shareholder of approximately HK$74.4 million
(31 March 2022: HK$110.9 million). Except for the loans from
the controlling shareholder (non-current portion) and lease
liabilities, the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings,
debt securities or other capital instruments as at 31 March
2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURES AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures or
significant investments held during the Year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 March 2022: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEBNWEDN

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to conduct more in-depth reviews on the
suitable development strategies for the Group, including the
feasibility of diversifying the income stream of the Group by
exploring different business and investment opportunities
in different business areas such as trading, property
management, internet information technology and other
industries, which may or may not include any assets and/
or business acquisitions or disposals by the Group, and will
consider all options. Any such plans will be subject to review
and approval by the Board and compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules where appropriate. The
costs of any such acquisitions will be met with cash generated
from the operations of the Group and other financing means
which the Group may consider appropriate from time to time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from RMB. Foreign
exchange risks arise from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in RMB for the
entities with a functional currency in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group did not use any forward contracts to hedge its foreign
currency exposure during the Year. The Group will from time
to time review and adjust its hedging and financial strategies
based on exchange rate movements in RMB and Hong Kong
dollars.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed approximately
994 employees (31 March 2022: 1,089 employees). The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its staff,
including share option scheme, mandatory provident fund
scheme and discretionary bonus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRESN

PROSPECTS

The Group is dedicated to driving sustainable growth and
delivering value to its stakeholders. To achieve this goal, the
Group closely monitors market developments and reviews our
business strategy regularly and with an open mindset to seize
favorable investment opportunities to drive sustainable growth.

While the COVID-19 pandemic is now behind us, the Group
remains cautious regarding the outlook of its lifestyle
entertainment segment due to the weaker-than-anticipated
economic recovery. We recognise that the pandemic has, to a
certain extent, brought about changes in the lifestyle, habits
and consumption patterns of local residents and visitors and
the effect may be lingering, which may hinder the recovery of
the nightlife entertainment industry. On the other hand, our
property management business has shown stronger resilience
in the past years, which indicates a bigger potential for future
growth.

As we navigate these dynamics, the Group is actively
exploring ways to optimise its resource allocation and
operations, where focus will be put on our property
management business, which has proved to be profit-making,
to maximise shareholder value and ensure the long-term
stability and profitability of the Group.

Lifestyle entertainment segment

To adapt to the changes in consumer behavior, the Group will
emphasise cost-consciousness and carefully allocate resources
to strategies that benefit the Group. We are committed to
enhancing operational efficiency and streamlining procedures
to maximize productivity and minimize costs in the lifestyle
entertainment segment.

Property management segment

The Group's property management segment has
demonstrated consistent growth in revenue in the past
years. We will continue to build upon this success by further
strengthening our brand reputation and seeking opportunities
to provide more value-added services to our customers,
diversifying and enriching our income portfolio.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:
nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREERB2HE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Zf5I), aged 58, is the chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company and has joined
the Group since May 2015. He is currently a director and
deputy chairman of AUX Group, a China Top-500 enterprise
with business operations in multiple industries, primarily in
air conditioner manufacturing, power equipment, healthcare
and finance. He had been a director and the deputy chairman
of Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. (Z )& = 2 & &
BERMDAERAT), a Chinese electrical meter manufacturer
and health care service provider listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601567) (“Ningbo Sanxing Medical”),
since its listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June 2011
until March 2014 when he vacated such offices by rotation. He
has over 27 years of experience in corporate management.
He is a brother of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also the sole legal and
beneficial owner and sole director of Ze Hong Limited, which
legally and beneficially owns 10% of the issued share capital
of Huiri Limited, which in turn is interested in 337,950,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 68.55% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (BRZEH) , aged 44, is the executive
Director, chief executive officer and a joint company secretary
of the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015.
He holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from University
of Canterbury, New Zealand and a master of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Institute of Certified Management Accountants,
Australia. Mr. Chan has over 18 years of experience in the
field of auditing and accounting. He has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Wah Ho Holdings
Group Ltd (stock code: 9938) since December 2019 and was
an independent non-executive director of Chen Lin Education
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593) from November
2019 to June 2021. All the above are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Shen Guoying (LBl %), aged 52, is the executive
Director of the Company and has joined the Group since May
2015. She is currently the chief executive officer in healthcare
of Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Co., Ltd, and the chairman
of Ningbo Sanxing Medical. She holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy awarded jointly by The Open University of China
(R REHEEHR KZE) and Beijing Technology and Business
University (Jb IR T K2 ) . She is a senior accountant (= 4%
EETAN) in the PRC. She has over 28 years of experience in
finance management.
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Biographical Detai
EERONEEEZHRE

Ms. Chen Lingxiao (FR%Z ) , aged 38, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2022. She
is currently the director of the treasury department of AUX
Group Co., Ltd* (R & EBMR A7), a conglomerate
with business in manufacturing of electrical and household
appliance, health care and finance investment. She holds a
bachelor’'s degree in finance management from China Jiliang
University. She has over 13 years’ experience in finance and
treasury management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (EHME) , aged 61, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director,
vice president and the company secretary of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336). Mr. Poon was
awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the University
of London. He holds a master’s degree in international
accounting, bachelor's degree in laws and a bachelor's degree
in business studies. He is a fellow of CPA Australia Ltd., the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a fellow of
The Chartered Governance Institute, and a fellow of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a member
of its Technical Consultation Panel and Mainland China
Focus Group. Mr. Poon has years of experience in finance,
compliance, and listed companies management. On 30
June 2023, Mr. Poon was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of China Isotope & Radiation Corporation
(stock code: 1763). In addition, he is currently also serving
as an independent non-executive director of the following
companies: Sunac China Holdings Limited (stock code: 1918),
Yuanda China Holdings Limited (stock code: 2789), Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 631), Greentown Service Group Co., Ltd. (stock code:
2869), and Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd.
(stock code: 2362). Mr. Poon resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 1292) and Yankuang Energy Group Company
Limited (stock code: 1171). In addition, during the three years
preceding the date of this report, Mr. Poon had served as
an independent non-executive director of Tonly Electronics
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1249), TUS International Limited
(currently known as Titan Invo Technology Limited; stock
code: 872) and Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196) from
July 2013 to March 2021, from September 2015 to July 2020
and from June 2017 to December 2021, respectively. All the
above are companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Biographical Detai
EERONEEEZHRE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (§8/N#), aged 56, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He was an executive director, chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Chen Lin
Education Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593) from
September 2018 to May 2021. Mr. Bau holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration in Accountancy and
Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Bau
was appointed on 22 June 2018 as an independent non-
executive director of FSM Holdings Limited (stock code: 1721).
All of the above are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lou Aidong (£2E X ), aged 57, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company and has joined the Group
since May 2015. She is currently a partner of Beijing Kangda
Law Firm (JE R REEAEHFT) . She holds a bachelor’s
degree in law from the Peking University (3t R KE) . Ms.
Lou is a qualified attorney in the PRC and has over 29 years
of experience in the legal profession. From May 2008 to April
2010, she was a member of Public Offering Review Committee
(178 % % B ®) of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (F R ESFEBEEZEE). She served as
an independent director of three companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely Guangdong Hongda
Blasting Co., Ltd. (BRZEKBEWR D BR 2 A]) (stock code:
002683), from December 2010 to December 2016, and Jiangsu
Nata Opto-electronic Material Co., Ltd. T & KB M KR
I BBRAF]) (stock code: 300346), from October 2010 to June
2017 and Guangdong Xiongsu Technology Group Co., Ltd.
(BEREBRBEEERMD AR QA (stock code: 300599), from
June 2016 to August 2017. She served as an independent
director of a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
namely Yunnan Metropolitan Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (EEHMKEER M AR A A]) (stock code: 600239) from
May 2017 to May 2023. She has been an independent director
of two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
namely Visionox Technology Inc. (# {57 EHERMHBR A E])
(stock code: 002387) and Hubei Kailong Chemical Group Co.,
Ltd CHILIBEILC T EBBHER AR (stock code: 002783),
since May 2021 and January 2020, respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report
tEERESE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
they have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic
decisions to the Group's activities and oversees its financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to
the management for the Group’s daily management and
operations.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors possessed the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise, which
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a
strong independent element in the Board, which effectively
exercised independent judgement.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Liang Songluan
(resigned with effect from 6 May 2022)
Ms. Shen Guoying
Ms. Chen Lingxiao
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

The brief biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 17.

Save as disclosed in the section headed "“Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director, a written confirmation of his or her
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged training for Directors in the form of seminars and
provision of training materials. All Directors have provided
their training records to the Company.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March
2023 is as follows:

REEFEHEMNCER EFHE_T_=F=
A=+—BLEFEEZNEIHENT

Attended seminars

HEMRNS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zheng Jiang BT %A v
Mr. Chan Hon Ki BROEH L E 4
Ms. Shen Guoying M v
Ms. Chen Lingxiao BRZBE 2+ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERRE A& 4
Mr. Bau Siu Fung RS- bt v
Ms. Lou Aidong BERLL v

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held
separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Zheng Jiang
and the role of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. Chan
Hon Ki. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
governance for the Board while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group'’s
business.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

The service contracts of Mr. Zheng Jiang, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and
Ms. Shen Guoying all have an initial term of three years with
effect from 15 May 2015. These contracts shall be renewed
and extended automatically for successive terms of one
year upon expiry of the then-current term until terminated
by him or her by giving not less than three months’ written
notice expiring at the end of the initial term of his or her
appointment or any time thereafter to the Company, or by the
Company by giving not less than three months’ written notice
expiring at the first anniversary of the initial term of his or her
appointment or any time thereafter to him or her.
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Each of the current independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed to the Board for an initial term of three years
commencing from 15 May 2015 which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then-current term until terminated either by him
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring on the first
anniversary of the initial term of his appointment or any time
thereafter to him or her.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the Company’s Articles
of Association. The appointment of each of the Directors is
subject to his re-election at an annual general meeting upon
retirement. The Company's Articles of Association provides
that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not 3
or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Accordingly, Mr. Zheng Jiang, Ms. Shen Guoying and Ms.
Chen Lingxiao shall retire by rotation at the annual general
meeting. All of the above Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the same meeting.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

Pursuant to CG Code provision C.5.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year.

EEEER
EFETHERUATmAHITARERERE
AREERVBRA - EEAHEARNEBET
BATALEEZ-
RECEEATAMRXECSIUG EFEETE
HienE ﬁﬁtiﬂgiﬁé ﬁ%@@%iﬁ&@mo

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be f#E $\ S %AH#:'T'%‘J@E’J%IE%EJ:Tﬁﬂ
considered by the Board which the Board has determined HmBEE MEZTERAZEMNZEREBEA 8
to be material, the Director shall abstain from voting on ZE H/E} \uTuMuZIE_%HE"Ji ;.\/E\E%z B AE 8
the relevant resolutions and he/she shall not be counted JRIBZEWER TEFFAETE AS
as a quorum in the Board meeting discussing the matter
concerned.
Set out below are details of the attendance record of each TX&HINZEELEFEALRAHE —=F=
of the Directors at the Board and committee meetings of the A Z=+—HI-FEFTE TEﬁé%Aﬁi BEge
Company held during the year ended 31 March 2023: B HE RS ES
Attendance to meetings HESE
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
HE/BTEERY
Regular Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ESpg EHEELEE ENZESSE REZE8%E FMZSEe€E RERBEAS
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Zheng Jiang BIxE 4/4 N/AT i " 1" 1"
Mr. Chan Hon Ki gL E 4/4 N/AZ i A N/AT i 11 11
Mr. Liang Songluan REERE
(resigned with effect from 6 May 2022) (B=F-—FRHNHEHIE) N/ATE B N/AT @B N/AT 8 B N/AT @ N/ATE A
Ms. Shen Guoying HERLT 4/4 N/AZ i 1 N/AT i A 1"
Ms. Chen Lingxiao ¥ .
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2022) (B=F==FNA—-HEEZ(T) 2/4 N/ATN &R N/ATE R N/ATE N/AT &
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFYTES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERBELE 4/4 4/4 1”1 11 1"
Mr. Bau Siu Fung EllS St 4/4 4/4 n 1" 17
Ms. Lou Aidong EERAT 4/4 4/4 171 1”1 11
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GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023 is scheduled to be held on 23 August
2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All
Board committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 January 2014 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. For the
year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman), Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok and Ms. Lou Aidong, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control, compliance and risk management systems of the
Group; (ii) overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board;
(iii) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance with legal and regulatory requirements
and requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
the employees and Directors.

BRERKE

ARARBE_TE_=F=A=+—HLFEH
BREBAEASHEZANR S _=FN\A=-+=8
BIT0

EEZEE
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Ut RERN - EEZEeRGBRARER
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A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out as follows:

24

Reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-
charge and/or the external auditors of the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
accuracy and fairness of the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022 and interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 September 2022
respectively;

Met with the external auditors and reviewed their work
and findings relating to the annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and the effectiveness of the audit
process;

Reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

Conducted annual review of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2022;

Approved the internal audit plan for the year ended
31 March 2022 and internal audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2022;

Reviewed the external auditors’ independence,
approved the engagement of external auditors and
recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditors;

Reviewed the financial reporting and compliance
procedures and the report from the management on the
Company'’s internal control systems and processes; and

Noted the new requirements on the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide under the
Listing Rules and highlighted the amendments under the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; and (ii) reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Nomination Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang
(Chairman) and Ms. Shen Guoying, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Bau
Siu Fung and Ms. Lou Aidong. Accordingly, a majority of the
members were and continue to be independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2023 is
set out as follows:

° Reviewed and discussed the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements for the business of the
Group and that it is in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

. Make recommendations to the Board for the re-election
of existing directors.
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The recommendations on director appointment and re-
election were made in accordance with the Company's policy
for the nomination of Directors and took into account the
diversity aspects (including, without limitation, age, cultural
and educational background, professional expertise and
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) under
the board diversity policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed "“Board Diversity Policy” in this Corporate
Governance Report. In particular, the Nomination Committee
had taken into consideration the perspectives, skills and
experience that Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok could bring to the Board
as an independent non-executive Director, including without
limitations his extensive experience in finance, compliance,
and listed companies management.

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok is holding directorships in seven listed
companies as at the date of this Corporate Governance
report. As an independent non-executive director of all but
one of these companies, he is generally not involved in the
day-to-day operations and management of the businesses
of such companies. Mr. Poon has annually disclosed to
the Company the number and nature of offices held in
listed companies and other significant commitments. As a
professional, he is competent in time management and has
sound knowledge and skills to effectively discharge his duties
in those positions. The Board considers that Mr. Poon is able
to devote sufficient time to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Remuneration Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang and
Mr. Chan Hon Ki, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairwoman), Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok and Mr. Bau Siu Fung. Accordingly, a majority of
the members were and continue to be independent non-
executive Directors.
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration; (i) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior management
(which may include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of office or appointment, as
appropriate).

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out as
follows:

° Assessed the performance of executive Directors;

o Reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company;

o Approved the terms of service contract of the executive

Director appointed during the year;

o Reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages (including discretionary bonus)
of Directors and senior management of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2023; and

o Reviewed matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17, including, among others, the applicable
requirements under the relevant parts of the Listing
Rules as amended, and resolved that no share option
should be granted under the existing share option
scheme given the prevailing external and internal
circumstances.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of
the annual remuneration of the senior management by band
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Under the policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be
based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to
the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity for the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven
Directors.

Number Of Directors EEZ B
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit and
related services and non-audit services provided to the Group
were approximately HK$3,261,000 and HK$Nil, respectively.
The amount for non-audit services comprised the tax
compliance services for the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2023. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 110 to 117.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.
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During the Year, the Group appointed Mazars Risk Advisory
Services Limited (“Mazars”) to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management
measures as recommended by Mazars to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based
on the findings and recommendations of Mazars as well as the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the
internal control and risk management systems are effective
and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for
the handling and dissemination of inside information in
order to comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well
as Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
internal control mechanism includes information flow and
reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure
procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall
responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal
controls are maintained, management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to
manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
Our risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management—Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the
Audit Committee, which oversees risk management and
internal audit functions.
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OUR RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Mazars. The Group maintains a risk
register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk
register is updated by management as the risk owners with
the addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation
has been performed. This review process can ensure that the
Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense
that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility
so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of
the Group's risk management framework will be evaluated at
least annually, and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensuring that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the
Group's internal control and risk management systems as
appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would
be more cost-effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit functions for the Group
in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will
continue to review at least annually the need for an internal
audit function.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

The joint company secretaries of the Group are Ms. Tsang
Kwok Shan Sandy and Mr. Chan Hon Ki. Each of Ms. Tsang
and Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2023.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which
took effect from January 2014. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Company’s future operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors
which the Directors deem relevant such as the prevailing
market conditions and global economic situation.

The dividend payout ratio would be calculated based on
certain per cent of the net profit recorded during the financial
year, with a view to retaining sufficient funds and capital for
operational uses and future investment opportunities and
ensuring that all possible acquisitions could be properly
financed. The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed
from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restriction
under the laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company (the
"Articles”).

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company shall be
held each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board.
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Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM")

Pursuant to the Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company has the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary at the headquarters of the
Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 1,
10/F., Emperor Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). The
request will be verified with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will convene an EGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the request has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
for the attention of the company secretary at the Company's
headquarters in Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
DOCUMENTS

IN CONSTITUTIONAL

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there were no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company.
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INTRODUCTION

AUX International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”, "we”, "our” or "us”) are committed to providing
high-quality services, and to maintain its competitive position
of both property management business in the People’s
Republic of China as well as the restaurant and club business
in Hong Kong as the Group's vision and mission. The Group
is committed to be a responsible corporate institution. While
making a great effort to achieve its corporate goals, the
Group also hopes to seek benefits for society in order to

achieve sustainable development of all aspects.

In view of this, this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report ("ESG Report” or this “Report”) will focus on
the balance between three aspects: corporate needs, social
needs and environmental concerns. The Group understands
that includes the elements of sustainable development
into corporate strategies has now become a trend. We will
communicate with different stakeholders actively in order
to understand the needs of all parties, and to manage the
ESG issue in a comprehensive way. The Group will consider
relevant short-term and long-term factors while implementing
the plan of sustainable development, which includes the
challenges we are facing, responsibilities to stakeholders,
global trends, regulations and risk management, etc.
We believe that in today’s constantly changing business
environment, a company must take its responsibility on to
ESG issues in the long run in order to succeed.

Through careful and in-depth understanding on the risks and
opportunities of ESG issues the Group is facing, the Group
will actively fulfil its corporate social responsibilities, abiding
local laws, providing a suitable working environment for the
employees, and would also pay attention to social issues
including responsible procurement, avoiding drug abuse,
environmental protection, volunteer activities, etc. We will
also contribute to environmental protection starting from
waste reduction. As a part of the society, the Group will strive
to contribute to society and work together to create a better
environment in the community.

Lastly, regarding the Group's policy and performance on the
two major categories of environmental and social aspects
from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023("Financial Year 2022/2023"
or this “Financial Year”), the Board of Directors are pleased to
present the ESG Report 2022/2023 of the Group.
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

About the Report

This ESG report introduces the Group's significant ESG
performance in the financial year of 2022/2023, and its long-
term commitments to ESG. This ESG Report mainly focuses
on the Group's two main businesses, including the operation
of the clubbing business in Hong Kong and the provision
of property management services in the People's Republic
of China (“PRC"), and describes the progress of the Group
in creating sustainable values for its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Reporting Range and Boundary

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This Report
summarises the ESG practices of the two operation segments
of the Group, and the lifestyle entertainment segment that
operates clubs and restaurants in Hong Kong. The information
contained herein is helpful to know about and evaluate the
Group's ESG performance in routine business in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Reporting Principles

This ESG Report follows the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange, and contains reporting principles of
materiality, quantitative and consistency, details of which are
set out below:

Materiality

In addition to internal factors, such as the corporate
value, strategy and core competence, the Group has also
communicated with the internal and external stakeholders on
a regular basis, and considering the ESG strategies of other
industries, so as to achieve sustainable development. The
Group has identified the following categories that have or may
have a significant impact on the Group’s ESG performance:

J Clubbing and entertainment industry in Hong Kongj;

J Property service industry in the PRC;

o Property management market in the PRC;

° Present or future environment and society;

o Financial performance or operation of the Group; and

° Evaluation, decision and action of the Group's

stakeholders.
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Quantitative

The data set out in this ESG Report is derived from the
Group’s archived documents, records and statistics. The
key performance indicators disclosed in this ESG report are
supported by quantitative data and measurable standards.
The source of all applicable data, calculation tools, methods,
references and conversion factors applied are disclosed in the
emission data presented in this report.

Consistency

For comparative purposes of ESG performance from year
to year, the Group adopts consistent approaches to data
collection, calculation and reporting, where reasonable, across
all fiscal years, and records significant changes in detail for
the relevant components. In this Report, the density of the
relevant performance indicators, unless otherwise indicated,
figures of the property management segment in Mainland
China is calculated based on the average number of property
projects’ in the Financial Year, while figures of the lifestyle
entertainment segment is calculated based on the operating
premises (including restaurants, clubs and head office)? in
the Financial Year. In preparing this report, the Group has
referred to certain global, local and industrial standards or
best practices, including the ESG Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange and applicable Hong Kong Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards.

Feedback

The Group has covered the key issues concerned by different
stakeholder groups through continuous communication with
the stakeholders. We welcome opinions and suggestions on
ESG performance of the Group, which can be sent to the
Group's email: info@auxint.com.

The average number of property projects in Financial Year 2021/22 was 53.5;
The average number of property projects in Financial Year 2022/23 was 55.
The average number of business premises in Financial Year 2021/22 was 4;

The average number of business premises in Financial Year 2022/23 was 3.5.
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ABOUT AUX
LIMITED

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

Business of the Group

AUX International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2080)
and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the restaurant
and club business in Hong Kong (“Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment”), and property management business in Mainland
China ("Property Management Segment”). For the lifestyle
entertainment segment of the Group, it owns and operates
club and restaurant and bar outlet in Hong Kong, namely
Zentral and Mini Club, providing services including private
parties, corporate events, live entertainment, fashion shows,
jewellery fair, filming location and film premiere. For the
Group’s property management business in Mainland China,
the headquarter is located in Ningbo, and offering property
management services in 13 cities, namely, Ningbo, Chengdu,
Hangzhou, Jiujiang, Nanchang, Nanjing, Qingdao, Shanghai,
Tianjin, Changsha, Huzhou, Maanshan and Zhengzhou,
providing specialised property management services for
commercial areas, residential areas, villas, office buildings,
industrial areas, etc. The property management segment
mainly provides management services for residential
properties, its services also cover non-residential properties
such as office buildings, shopping malls, medium and high-
end residential buildings, hospitals and industrial parks.

Vision

To be a leader in clubbing and entertainment business,
steadily carry out property management businesses, maintain
high-quality services, so as to develop AUX into a world brand
and provide the maximum sustainable value for stakeholders.

Mission
Enhance customer experience to attract more club patrons,
create and lead an intelligent life, and cultivate excellent
talents.

Goal

Dedicated to improving the quality of clubbing and
entertainment services as well as property management
services.

The Board
As of the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

Independent Non-executive

Executive Directors Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Bau Siu Fung
Ms. Lou Aidong

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Ms. Shen Guoying

Ms. Chen Lingxiao
(appointed with effect from
1 September 2022)
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD

The Group recognises the importance of environmental,
social and corporate governance for sustainable corporate
development and ensures the relevant ESG policies are
effectively implemented in its operations. The board of the
Group (the "Board”) is primarily responsible for monitoring
ESG governance issues relating to the Group, and monitoring
the formulation and implementation of relevant policies and
measures by the management and relevant departments. The
Board also requires the Group’s management to report to the
Board on ESG-related issues and subsequent developments in
a timely and proactive manner, such as significant deviations
from expected targets in ESG performance indicators, serious
ESG incidents, changes in regulatory requirements, etc..

The Board is responsible for:
o appointing the Group's key persons responsible for ESG

issues;
o approving ESG strategies, action plans and goals;
J monitoring the progress and performance of ESG-

related measures;

o approving the implementation of ESG-related measures
and monitoring the resources required,;

o raising appropriate ESG-related questions, inquiries and
recommendations to management; and

J reviewing and approving annual ESG reports.

The management is responsible for:
o identifying and assessing the Group's ESG risks and
opportunities and report to the Board,;

J developing ESG strategies, action plans, goals and
arrange relevant work accordingly;

o ensuring appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal monitoring systems being in
place;

J providing guidance for the implementation of ESG
policies and measures;

o reporting to the Board on the progress and performance
of ESG; and
o reviewing the annual ESG report and submit it to the

Board for approval.
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The functional departments are responsible for:
o coordinating and implementing the specific ESG policies
and measures;

o reporting ESG work and performance indicators to the
management regularly;

o collecting the information and data on the Group’s ESG
performance; and

o preparing the annual ESG report and report to the
management.

The Board will continue to monitor the ESG-related work and
keep abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements and
regulations of the HKEx. The Board will also ensure that all
departments work closely to achieve the goal of operational
compliance and shouldering social responsibility, and set
clearer ESG goals for the Group in the future to better meet
the expectations of stakeholders.

PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively seeks every opportunity to understand our
stakeholders, and guarantees the regular improvement of our
services. We firmly believe that our stakeholders play a vital
role in maintaining the success of our business.
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Stakeholders

Issues Concerned

Communications & Feedbacks

EoE HERE BEMEE
HKEXx Compliance with the listing rules, Meeting, training, website update and
and timely & accurate announcement announcement
EBXSM BREDHRR REEEBOD S & B HHEHANQ
Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Government inspection, tax declaration
prevention against tax evasion, and and other information
social welfare
B EREVERMEST Bk B Mt R BFRE MR mER
Suppliers Payment schedule and demand stability Business communication, purchase
agreement, e-mail and telephone
connection
HEE R ER FTREE XBER KBS EFBHLREAHRE
Investors Corporate governance system, Organising and participating in seminars,
business strategy and performance, shareholders' meeting, issuing financial
and investment return reports and other announcements
REE NRABEABR EBRBMEN REDMEK HEM2EANTE RERE

Media and Public
BREAR

Customers

BE

Employees

BT

Community

Tt E

Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights
NAER RERE A%

Service quality, reasonable price,
service values, employee protection
and working safety

RBEE BHRAE REEER"
ETREMIELZS

Interests and welfare, employee
remuneration, training and
development, working hours,
working environment

EEMEN - BITHM 5
TYERF & TIEIRIR

Bl B B

Community environment, employment
and community development,
social welfare

MIRIRE SR ML R E

B teEd

40 AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F

B BREREMBRE

Publishing newsletters on the corporate
website

FEREAs EEMmEA

Field investigation, after-sales services

RGER SRR

Training, interview with employees,
internal memos, employee's
suggestion box

=L

ETEHXK RNBETH - BETEZMA

Community development activities,
volunteering activities of employees,
community welfare subsidy and

donation
HEEREH BEIHXIT/EEFM

A4 (8 4% 1) 48 B A0 R 3K



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the financial year of 2022/2023, the Group conducted
surveys of internal and external stakeholders, including
management, employees, major customers and major
suppliers, to identify and assess material ESG issues so as to
determine the impacts of such issues on the Group’s business
operation, environment and society. Based on the Group’s
reporting scope and business characteristics as well as the
feedback from stakeholders, the Group has identified the
relevant material ESG issues and evaluated them through a
scoring system. Details are shown in the chart below:
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Number ESG Issues Number ESG Issues Number ESG Issues
Fr 5% ESG# & Fr 5% ESG# & Fr 5% ESG# &
Environmental Issues: Social Issues: Operational Issues:
RESE: HEEE: EESE:
1 GHG emission/ " Employee rights and welfare 18 Supply chain management
Global warming BIESREFSR e R
BERBHR 2HEL
2 Exhaust air emission 12 Inclusion, equal opportunity 19 Customer satisfaction
FE R and anti-discrimination BEPMEE
BR FERERRER
3 Energy consumption 13 Talent attraction and retention 20 Customer privacy
B IR {E A AT RS FRE EFLE
4 Water consumption 14 Occupational health and 21 Product and service quality
KERE A safety EnkkBEE
BERENZR
5 Hazardous waste/Sewage 15 Training and development 22 Intellectual property
BEEY /KX ol B R RN E R
6 Non-hazardous waste/Sewage 16 Measures to prevent child 23 Economic performance
BmEREY,/REK labour and forced labour RBBEM
BERHETIREHSINER
7 Paper consumption 17 Community investment 24 Compliance operation
MR A and participation BEEH
HRRERZHR
8 Climate change 25  Corporate governance
RIRE NRIER
9 Compliance with laws and 26 Anti-corruption

regulations related to
environmental protection

BTREREMBAEEEM

As shown above, the social and operational ESG issues are
of high materiality to the Group based on the materiality
assessment and the survey conducted with internal and
external stakeholders by the Group. In particular, as the
Group's business is principally engaged in the provision of
entertainment services and property management business,
the materiality of customer satisfaction is particularly
emphasised to ensure that the services provided could satisfy
the expectations of customers. In addition, the Group also
emphasises issues such as corporate governance, service
quality, economic performance, operational compliance and
anti-corruption, so as to ensure the sustainable development
of business with good corporate ethics and culture.

In the future, the Group will be more proactive to maintain
communication with stakeholders and collect advises
from them through different channels to conduct more
comprehensive analysis and continue to promote the Group's
sustainable development plan. Meanwhile, the Group will
conduct materiality assessment on ESG issues as necessary,
so as to comply with reporting requirements and better satisfy
expectations of stakeholders on the content and disclosure of
ESG report.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

For the Group, we understand that a healthy
environment is the basis for economic development
and social well-being. As a responsible organisation,
the Group will pursue environmental protection, strictly
comply with the existing laws and regulations related to
environmental protection, properly handle and dispose
of all materials to avoid adverse impacts on health or
environment.

During the financial year of 2022/2023, the Group did
not identify any crucial incidents of non-compliance
relating to environmental problems.

A1. Emissions
The Group is also committed to promoting
environmental protection during its daily
operations. All operating units of the Group have
implemented eco-friendly measures to reduce
carbon dioxide emissions during operations.

Air Pollution Emissions
In view of the Group’s business focusing on
entertainment services and property management
services, our business activities do not involve any
air pollution emission arising from the use of gas
fuel or automobile fuel.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions are a leading cause
of global warming, which leads to sharp climate
changes and poses a tremendous threat to
the global ecosystem. The Group understands
although we have no direct greenhouse gas
emission, we inevitably generate indirect
greenhouse gas during energy and water resources
utilisation. In view of this, the Group, as an
organisation with corporate social responsibility,
considers the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions as a focus in daily operations.

The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group mainly
come from energy consumption for business
activities in various cities, including energy use,
electricity consumed for treatment of drinking
water and sewage, as well as greenhouse gas
emissions indirectly generated by the employees
taking planes for business trips. In addition, we
promote greening construction in each of the
property projects under our management as the
best remedy for the greenhouse gas emissions
generated due to our business activities.
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The lifestyle entertainment segment in Hong Kong
holds valid sewage treatment licenses, and its
sewage discharge has been complying with the
discharge limits specified in the licenses. As for
the property projects under our management in
Mainland China, sewage discharge mainly comes
from the daily water consumption of property
owners. We discharge wastes in a way stipulated
by the municipal government, and maintain the
pipelines, valves and other equipment related to
the sewage discharge and exhaust systems on a
regular basis to guarantee its normal operation.

According to the Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPls issued by the HKEX,
greenhouse gas emissions can be categorized into
the following three main scopes:

° Scope 1: Covers greenhouse gas emissions
directly generated by businesses owned
or controlled by the Company, such as
greenhouse gas emissions from fuel
combustion of stationary sources and mobile
sources;

o Scope 2: Covers the energy indirect
emissions of greenhouse gas from electricity,
heat, cooling and steam consumed within the
Company, such as greenhouse gas emissions
in relation to purchased electricity and/or
town gas;

] Scope 3: Covers all other indirect greenhouse
gas emissions, including emissions from both
upstream and downstream activities, that
occur outside the company, such as methane
generated during the process of waste
paper being delivered to landfills, electricity
consumed by water supply authority for
processing fresh water and sewage, etc.

The total greenhouse gas emissions generated by
the Group in the Financial Year 2021/2022 were
approximately 50,049.2 tonnes (Financial Year
2021/2022: 71,103.8 tonnes), the greenhouse gas
emissions decreased by approximately 29.6% as
compared to the 2021/22 Financial Year (from 1
April 2021 to 31 March 2022). The decrease in
emissions was mainly attributable to the reduction
in electricity consumption from construction
activities and garage lightings by the property
management segment, as well as the use of energy-
efficient lighting installations in public areas.
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In the 2022/23 Financial Year, the Group did not
directly generate greenhouse gas emissions (scope
1) due to business needs. Approximately 96.9%
of the greenhouse gas emissions were indirect
emissions (scope 2) generated by electricity
consumption. The remaining 3.1% of greenhouse
gases were of other indirect emissions. For more
details, please refer to the table below:

R/ —ZFHREE A&
BERBERERNTEMEEELENR
EREHER(HE—)  £96.9%H
BERBHRASREREMERZ
R (BHE) -4 T 43.1%H
BE RSB N H b B BE AR E £
HIBREAETK:

Scope Source of greenhouse gas emissions Total emission (tonne)
gE B E R BB ROR MY E (W)
FY2021/2022 FY2022/2023
—g2=-—/ —_=2-__/
ToHBEE ZZHHREE
Scope 1 Greenhouse gas emissions from direct generation N/A N/A
#E— HEREARBEREBYMN 8 i A
Scope 2 Energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions
from purchased electricity’
fE— BEEINEREAZAZREHR 68,789.4 48,476.0
Lifestyle entertainment segment
- ETERE D # 184.1 176.0
Property management segment
-MEREEDH 69,605.3 48,300.0
Scope 3 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from electricity
consumption for fresh water and sewage processing*
BE= EBERKRSKEMEENENZ 1,274.7 1,562.1
R = RPN
Lifestyle entertainment segment
- ERRED B 0.8 1.0
Property management segment
-MEEED 1,273.9 1,561.1
Employee business trips in aircraft®
B BRALTRMEIMNE A &S 39.7 11.2
Lifestyle entertainment segment N/A N/A
- EIRIREE D F A~ 5iE TER
Property management segment
-MEEED 39.7 11.2
According to the “Notice on the Management of Greenhouse Gas Emission Reporting of R EANRATE A REIRS I D BEN2023F2A78 B K CFE

Enterprises in the Power Generation Industry from 2023 to 2025" issued by the General
Office of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China,
on February 7, 2023, the average emission factor of the national power grid in 2022 is
0.5703 tCO2/kWh.

According to the latest 2020/21 figures released by Hong Kong Water Supplies
Department and the latest 2020/21 figures released by Hong Kong Drainage Services
Department, the per unit electricity consumption for processing water and sewage
in Hong Kong was 0.612 kWh and 0.29 kWh respectively, while the preset discharge
coefficient for purchased electricity is set at 0.7 kg/kWh. As its difficult to obtain relevant
figures in PRC, the above figures are set to be consistent with that in PRC. Due to
limitations in data collection, the per unit electricity consumption for processing water
and sewage in Mainland China will refer to the latest figures published by the Hong
Kong Water Supplies Department and Drainage Services Department.

The indirect emissions of greenhouse gases caused by employee business trips in
aircraft are calculated in accordance with the Carbon Emissions Calculator in relation to
air travel formulated by the International Civil Aviation Organization, a United Nations
agency.

AEF2023-2025F B ETE P E R TR B RBREEREMIE
B3 ) P8R 20226 € 2 B B4 T 19 P A F 720.57030 — &
Lk, F R8s o

BIBEFEBKEERH AM 2202021 FHBEREARBERNA
22020/ FBUE BAENBRIERKRSKEENEERED A
0.612%0.29F FLE - M E T HFERFMEBR0.7Fx=,/FEE-
ERER A BERRBEERG  BA EBIRREREANM — M H
REREBRORH - ERBEAMORKEERSKEEGEMNFRE
BERL2BEBKBEE REBE A M B EBIK -
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Greenhouse gas emission figures

(lifestyle entertainment segment) FY2021/22 FY2022/23
-2/ —_=2_
NS g QE« -] _
BERBEREE (EFRED W) — g REE —CHREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions (tonne) 184.9 177.0
R =R BB HER (MR )
Greenhouse gas emissions per business premises 46.2 50.6
(tonne/business premises)
BEKLLSMEREREBHN (WAL E5H)
Greenhouse gas emission figures
(property management segment) FY2021/22 FY2022/23
-2/ —_=2_
-] E Mfi = — =
BERBEREE (WEEES W) R mERE —CgmEE
Total greenhouse gas emissions (tonne) 70,918.9 49,872.2
HOREREHE A (HE)
Greenhouse gas emissions per property projects under 1,325.6 906.8
management (tonne/property project)
BEEEM¥EENREREEN (W EWXEE)
The main greenhouse gas emissions of the AEBEFENRERE T?FE&X/J?EA
Group come from the operating activities of the %%Afi/\“ﬁzi«‘”ﬂﬁ@] i
property management segment. The greenhouse -_= —Eﬁftﬁlifz/'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
gas emissions in Financial Year 2022/23 reached WEER449,87228 (=T =—
approximately 49,872.2 tonnes (Financial T BRFE:70,918.9H8) - #4915

Year 2021/22: 70,918.9 tonnes), amounted
to approximately 99.6% of the Group's total
greenhouse gas emissions, while the greenhouse
gas emissions from lifestyle entertainment segment
in Financial Year 2022/23 were approximately 177.0
tonnes (Financial Year 2021/22: 184.9 tonnes),
amounted to approximately 0.4% of the Group's
total greenhouse gas emissions.

For the greenhouse gas emission density, the
greenhouse gas emission density of the property
management segment was approximately 906.8
tonnes/property project in Financial Year 2022/23
(Financial Year 2021/22: 1,325.6 tonnes/property
project), representing a decrease of approximately
31.6% as compared to that of Financial Year
2021/22. The greenhouse gas emission density
of the lifestyle entertainment segment was
approximately 50.6 tonnes/business premises.
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Although the energy consumption in relation to the
property management segment is mainly caused by
the owners, that is not within the control of staff of
the property management segment. The property
management segment promotes the conservation
of electricity and water in the area of property
projects, and promotes environmental protection
measures to property owners, in order to minimize
the impact of business on the environment. In
addition, the Group implements various solutions
in the sustainable energy efficiency plan to reduce
the generation of greenhouse gases, including
but not limited to the implementation of greening
within the area of property projects, posting signs
to remind employees of saving electricity and
water, and the use of energy-saving LED lights in
property projects.

Looking ahead, given that energy use is the main
source of the Group's greenhouse gas emissions,
the Group will continue to strengthen energy
conservation monitoring measures, ensuring
that all electrical appliances are properly turned
off when not in use and that all lights and air
conditioners are turned off outside office hours, to
avoid unnecessary consumption of electricity.

Target for Greenhouse Gas Emissions

As the Group’'s GHG emissions are directly related
to its business operations of entertainment services
and property management services, most of the
GHG emissions are mainly generated by users of
the residential estates under the management of
the property management segment, which are not
controllable by the Group directly. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to strengthen the
implementation of energy conservation monitoring
measures and minimise unnecessary resources
consumption during the operation of the lifestyle
entertainment segment by the Group, and still be
devoted to the promotion of resources conserving
when providing the property management service
by property management segment, so as to
minimise the indirect greenhouse gas emissions
arising from the operation of the Group by
continuously taking practical measures.
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Wastes Management

In Financial Year 2022/23, no hazardous waste was
found in the operations of lifestyle entertainment
segment and property management segment.

Despite the constraint to calculate the amount of
non-hazardous waste generated in the operation
of the lifestyle entertainment segment of the
Group due to data collection limitation, the Group
is committed to reducing waste generation to an
extent controllable and encouraging employees
to classify and recycle waste. The Group hopes to
promote waste reduction at the source, starting
from reducing the use and packaging to decrease
waste generation. In addition, for the waste
cooking oils of the restaurants, the Group engages
qualified waste collectors to collect waste cooking
oils generated from their operating activities for
recycling on a regular basis.

The property management segment has entrusted
the local qualified wastes transportation agency to
transport and dispose of the non-hazardous wastes
produced by the property owners, and enabled the
recycling of wastes. All wastes have been disposed
of in compliance with local laws and regulations.
Recycled materials concentration points have been
set in the service areas to carry out collection,
classified management and declaration of the
statutory hazardous wastes and recyclable wastes.

As for the domestic garbage discarded every day
by users in the residential areas, the property
management segment has set up waste recycling
bins to collect recyclable wastes, and arranges
special staff to classify and store the recycled
wastes separately every day, and deliver the
recycled wastes regularly to the waste transfer
station or the solid waste recycling treatment
plant.

However, as it is difficult to collect data about the
intensity and quantity of wastes, and the weight
is estimated on a monthly basis, the Group failed
to report the weight of relevant wastes. Although
relevant wastes of the property management
segment are mainly generated by the property
owners, which is beyond the controllable range of
the property management segment, the property
management segment will still strengthen the
waste classification, recovery and disposal process,
and attempt to reduce the impact of its business
on the environment.
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A2.

Waste Management Goals

Although the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group is directly related to its
business operations, where the amount of non-
hazardous waste generated by the owners who
are not under the direct control of the Group, the
Group will still be devoted to the promotion of
waste reducing at source within the residential
estates under its management, and strengthen
the waste management process in its business
operations so as to minimise the impact of the
Group’s business operations on the environment.

Use of Resources

The Group undertakes to become a resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise
and makes our contributions to environmental
protection. To reduce carbon emissions, we've
taken the initiative to perform the energy-saving
measures in our business activities.

Energy consumption

The Group's energy consumption is mainly derived
from indirect energy consumption in relation to
purchased electricity. In Financial Year 2022/23,
the total electricity consumption of the Group
was approximately 84,976.2 MWh (Financial
Year 2021/22: approximately 98,320.1 MWh),
representing a decrease of approximately 13.6% as
compared to that in Financial Year 2021/22, which
is mainly attributable to the reduction in electricity
consumption by the property management
segment. The electricity consumption of each
segment of the Group is as follows:
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Segment Electricity Consumption (MWh)

2 &P ERHE (KRE)
FY2021/22 FY2022/23
-8/ —Bg=-=/

—HMBEE “CHBREE

Lifestyle entertainment segment 284.5 283.9

EIERE D

Property management segment 98,035.6 84,692.3

%%Aj’@ /_\_L

Total electricity consumption of the Group 98,320.1 84,976.2

AREBEBRELLBR
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For the energy use density, electricity consumption
density of the property management segment in
Financial Year 2022/23 was approximately 1,539.9
MWh/property project (Financial Year 2021/22:
approximately 1,832.4 MWh/property project),
representing a decrease of approximately 16.0% as
compared to that in Financial Year 2021/22.

The energy consumption density of the lifestyle
entertainment segment in Financial Year 2022/23
was approximately 81.1 MWh/business premises
(Financial Year 2021/22: approximately 71.1 MWh/
business premises), representing an increase of
approximately 14.1% as compared to that in Financial
Year 2021/22.

The management of the Group remains committed
to enhancing environmental awareness of our
employees and placing more electricity saving
labels, to further encourage employees to reduce
unnecessary electricity consumption, minimize
energy use and reduce the impact of business
operations on the environment.

Energy Use Goals

Nevertheless the Group's electricity consumption
is directly related to its business operations, and
the electricity consumption from residents is not
within the Group’s direct control, the Group will
still be devoted to the promotion of electricity
saving within the residential estates, strengthen
the management of electricity use in the lifestyle
entertainment and property management segment,
and successively purchase electrical appliances
when necessary to maximise energy efficiency
and avoid unnecessary waste of electricity, so as
to reduce the impact on the environment through
continuous monitoring, implementation and
optimisation of existing measures.

Water Resource Consumption

As potable water is a precious resource on the
Earth, saving water is one of the goals of the
Group. The Group also makes efforts to reduce
electricity consumption generated from water
supply, thereby reducing the Group’s carbon
footprints and resource consumption. As the
water source of the Group's lifestyle entertainment
segment and property management segment
is supplied by the government's water supply
department, so there is no problem in obtaining
water source.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 3% 5f 1B 2 BB PR A 7

EREERFERAZEEFE MEER
DR T/ Z=HBEEN
BT ELNB1,539.9K K/
BHEBEE(ZZ2=— /8K
FE 1,832,440 L B ¥ 18
B) B=ZT=— /ZZ_0HREET
B& 4916.0% °

EERESTXN _T - /"==
HHRFENEEBEREZEL A8
KEE /AEesm( = =—/
CoBMBEE AT AKREE AR
BIS) BT =-— /B RF
B EF#14.1% ©

FEBERBREBRRIRSER
NEIWMRFREH  MEMBHA
BENRTEE NE—SPHBHET
AN BERRE FRBEMREEE
TR MORE E T 2 B EIRBEH K

H 2

BEREH 7 B 12
BEAREE s EreEEHEEKE
BEEEBE MAZPREER
MENERELIFRNEEGEREEE
Bl EE BEAREEDARNE
BRETFPESEEEES  WHNER
BEEDBRYEEEDHZE
FREE URERSERIER
L%EﬁWZ:%EE'J RE Tk
ERBEEEZE BEHAELRERE
PR E S IR IR E R & o

RKZBHIEREIEFLENER ¥
EHAKEAEBMBEZZ — Bk
EERREMKEREENE ERE
HmBEREAER 22 NERME
ﬁ AEBEFRESARYMEE
B 5 30 2 KRR B BT oK &6 P9 -
B it K A H IR SKEUKR £ 2 17 [

o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEBRERRS

The water consumption of the Group in Financial
Year 2022/23 was approximately 2,474,154.5 tonnes
(Financial Year 2021/22: 2,055,587.3 tonnes),
representing an increase of approximately 20.4% as
compared to that in Financial Year 2021/22, which
is mainly attributable to that, the owners of various
projects strengthened the cleanliness in post-
pandemic era, resulting in an increase in water
demand. The water resource consumption of each
segment of the Group is as follows:

REEBR =T /Z=0BEFE
HKE JREREL) £2,474,154 50 (=
T—— /B E :2,055587.3
W) R-T-—— Z_HHRFEL
F#49204%) T2 RHARERIBH
BE REBEIMAZTZHESR
BHAKBREM NEBS DI
ZRKERHEFEB AT :

Segment Water resource consumption (tonne)

palis KEFREFE (W)
FY2021/22 FY2022/23
—_g2=-—-/ —=2-_/

—HBEE —=HBEE

Lifestyle entertainment segment 1,492.6 1,767.9

A VEIREE

Property management segment 2,054,094.7 2,472,386.6

MEEEDE

Water resource consumption of the Group 2,055,587.3 2,474,154.5

REBKERERE

The context of water consumption is similar to
that of the electricity consumption in the property
management segment, which is mainly refer to the
consumption of property owners. Although the
property management segment cannot directly
reduce the consumption of water resources, it
will still actively promote water conservation in
property projects under its management and
encourage the recycling of water resources, such as
use of recycled water for sanitation and cleaning,
and use of appliances with higher water efficiency,
etc.

Water Efficiency Goals

Although the water consumption of property
owners is beyond direct control of the Group,
the Group is still committed to promoting the
concept of water conservation to property owners
and enhancing water management in offices,
lifestyle entertainment and property management
segment to maximise the water efficiency and
avoid unnecessary wastage, so as to reduce the
impact on the environment through continuous
implementation and optimisation of the existing
measures mentioned above.
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Packaging Materials

In view of the Group’s business focusing on
restaurant and club, and property management
services, our business activities do not involve any
packaging materials used for finished products.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

Currently, the Group mainly uses the energy
of electric energy and water resources. In the
face of the increasingly severe environmental
pollution, the Group, as a part of the community,
is committed to implementing energy saving
measures in different levels of routine operations,
including:

Saving electricity

Conserving water

¥ g F oK

/—52\AUX International Holdings Limited / B35 EF BB $2 IR B R A &

BEYH
ERNTEBENEGRIEAZERNE
EBEDEEERBUEERSE
BHEXRBEZS LYW RAARHEK
an B B R Y#L -

BEIR (& /i R 23 a1 &
ERAEETIENREREASER
FRBER BHRRSAAREE
ERERON—OF AEERNE
BELEPHNIRET L EMEERE
EiE B




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERME

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The resources and energy consumed by the
Group's main business activities are mainly water
and electricity, and the pollution caused by
business activities to the environment is mainly
the greenhouse gas emissions. The management
of the Group is responsible for overseeing the
daily operations by reminding all employees of
implementing the Group’s energy-saving and
emission-reduction measures, criticizing and
rectifying the waste of resources, and avoiding
unnecessary resource consumption, in order to
minimise the adverse impact on the environment.

The property management segment of the Group
delicately develops gardens and greening space
for each project by virtue of professional greening
management, such as planting diverse flowers,
grasses and trees, which improves the microclimate
in the community, enriches the landscaping in the

community, and enables the property owners to
experience the biodiversity of the nature. One of
the residential estates managed by us has been
honoured as the “most beautiful courtyard” by the
government.
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A4,

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group understands that climate change
may bring different levels of impact and risks
to its business. As greenhouse gases such as
carbon dioxide and methane generated by the
development of human activities accelerate the
greenhouse effect, the impact of climate change is
becoming more obvious.

In view of the trend of sustainable development
and transition to a low-carbon economy, as well
as the uncertainties associated with physical and
transitional risks arising from climate change, the
Group recognises the importance of incorporating
climate factors into the decision-making process
to formulate an effective plan to address climate
change. Therefore, the Group has started to study
the potential impact of climate change, so that the
Group will be able to identify, assess and manage
various risks in a timely manner in the future and
prepare for the planning strategy of addressing
climate change.

In terms of physical risks, rising temperatures will
have short-term and long-term impacts on climate
patterns and seasonal weather, and increase
the possibility of extreme weather events, such
as more frequent occurrence of severe weather
events, including heavy rains, typhoons, high
temperatures and floods. These extreme weather
events are likely to affect the Group's business
operations, causing events such as natural
disasters that prevent its business from normal
operation and lead to mandatory downtime,
damage to equipment, supply chain disruptions
that affect the provision of services to customers
and other events that increase operating costs.
In addition, severe weather also poses threats to
the safety of employees. In this regard, the Group
has formulated guidelines on severe weather
arrangements to reduce the risk of injury and
accidents. In addition, the property management
segment has also made arrangements for its
property management business in respect of
severe weather work, disaster prevention and
emergency response plans, and enhanced its
emergency response capabilities in disaster
prevention and mitigation under special weather
conditions through enhanced drills and regular
safety inspections.
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In addition, with the attention of many countries
on climate change, it is expected that more
climate conferences and climate policy-related
arrangements will be arranged in the future, which
may lead to higher operating costs and different
market risks for the Group. In terms of China’s
goal of achieving carbon neutrality by 2060,
there is expected to be a gradual tightening of
regulations on emissions. As a result, the Group
may face additional operating costs as a result of a
cost shift from its service providers such as power
companies, water providers and waste treatment
and recycling companies. In this regard, the Group
will keep abreast of changes in market information
and energy policies to ensure the timeliness of
the information while facilitating the formulation
of relevant corresponding policies to mitigate the
risks.

The Group will continue to adopt best practices to
minimise its own carbon footprint and incorporate
resilience into its business operations so as to
effectively control the impact of climate change on
the Group.

SOCIAL

The Group is aware that our business success depends
on the cooperation and cohesion of our teams. Our
teams are the most precious assets of the Group.
Therefore, based on the people-oriented core values,
we are committed to providing attractive remunerations,
benefits and welfares for employees, arrange reasonable
working hours and holidays, and ensure all employees
enjoy equal opportunity. The Group also holds
internal activities on a regular basis and encourage
the employees’ participation to increase the Group's
cohesion, strengthen the employees’ recognition of the
Group, and reinforce their sense of belonging.

During Financial Year 2022/23, the Group did not find
any breach of laws and regulations on employment,
health and safety, labour standards, product liability and
anti-corruption.
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B1.

Employment

Our Employees

As of 31 March 2023, the Group has recruited
994(31 March 2022: 1,089) employees in total,
including 955(31 March 2022: 1,046) employees of
property management segment and 39 (31 March
2022: 43) employees of lifestyle entertainment
segment.

Among all employees of the Group, as of 31 March
2023, approximately 71% of the total number
of employees (31 March 2022: 69%) were male,
while approximately 29% of the total number of
employees (31 March 2022: 31%) were female.
As of 31 March 2023, the Group had 989 full-
time employees and 5 part-time employees.
Approximately 95% of the Group's employees were
from China, about 4% were from Hong Kong and
about 1% were from other regions (such as Nepal,
etc). The employee structure of the Group is shown
in the following charts:
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Number of Employees by Gender
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We deeply believe that a diversified, embracing
and harmonious family can help us to have a better
understanding about the demands of different
customers. Approximately 27% (2020/2021: 22%)
of the employees have served the Group for more
than five years, which further proves that the
Group's people-oriented concept has been passed
on to every employee via practical experience. The
service year structure of employees of the Group is
shown in the following charts:
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Employee Benefits and Assessment

The Group deeply acknowledges that the Group's
development and success indeed rely on the
efforts of all employees, so the Group provides
competitive salaries to pay back the employees’
efforts. In addition to providing attractive
remunerations and benefits to employees, the
Group not only offers performance bonuses
according to the Group's business results and
the employees’ performance, but also distributes
holiday benefits on traditional festivals every
year. The Group also provides Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (“MPF"”) for employees
in accordance with the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong, and pays endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing provident fund for employees in
accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China.
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In order to reward hard-working employees
more effectively, the Group has established
a well-organised performance management
system to efficiently motivate their sustainable
development, help employees make planning for
their career, realise talent inheritance, and enable
the Group to develop toward the sustainable
operation goal. The Group implements monthly,
quarterly and yearly performance assessment to
help employees establish definite, measurable,
achievable, position-related and time-sensitive
key performance indicators of their own,
supervise their progress on a regular basis,
and take appropriate improvement measures if
applicable. The Group will adjust the remuneration
of employees regularly by referring to their
assessment results and comprehensive evaluation
and by combining the Group’s overall business
performance, so as to ensure employees gain the
best remunerations in proportion to their efforts.

A Harmonious Working Environment

The Group is devoted to creating a harmonious
and embracing working environment for
employees, and to protecting them from any
harassment or discrimination. The Group treats
its employees fairly and equally regardless of
their gender, sexual orientation, disability, age,
nationality or ethnic origin, family status or other
personal characteristics that are protected by law.
As for our systems for recruitment, remunerations
and benefits, holidays, trainings, assessment,
promotion, etc., we evaluate the employees
according to their abilities, skills, qualifications and
performances.

Work and Life Balance

In order to ensure our employees achieve balance
between work and life, and maintain a balanced
and healthy lifestyle, our actual working time is
eight to ten hours a day and five to six days a
week, so that our employees can have sufficient
time to rest. The Group provides employees with
relevant paid leaves in accordance with local laws
and regulations. The employees of the property
management segment can enjoy annual leave
of five to fifteen days as well as other statutory
labour holidays according to their position level.
In addition, employees also enjoy compassionate
leave, marital leave, maternity leave, etc. As for the
property management segment, an employee with
a new-born baby under one year of age can further
enjoy thirty-minute breastfeeding leave twice a
day.
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Moreover, the property management segment
provides a series of facilities for employees,
including dining hall and dormitory, so as to
improve their sense of belonging to the Group,
help those employees who come to work far away
from home to achieve work-life balance more
easily, and alleviate their economic burdens. In
addition, the property management segment
also arranges after-work activities and dinners for
employees to promote communication among
employees from different departments and
enhance cohesion among employees through
enhanced communication.

Activities for the Mid-Autumn festival

RIKEE

Activities for Mother’s Day
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Communication Channels for Employees

The Group attaches importance to the
opinions of employees. All employees and the
management are encouraged to use our diversified
communication channels, such as: e-mail, forum
or bulletin board, to realise horizontal or vertical
communications. Generally when an employee
has any complaint against his/her work, we will
arrange the department supervisor to have an
interview with him/her, while the employee can
also complain against the person or department
concerned. If the person or department being
complained against fails to provide satisfactory
solutions, the complaint will be submitted to the
superior department level by level, so as to ensure
the employees can receive a clear feedback.

The Company encourages employees to raise
reasonable suggestions about the Group. The
HR Department is responsible for collecting
suggestions of employees and guaranteeing their
accurate delivery.

Talent Retention

The Group cherishes talents, and the
above-mentioned HR management measures
have successfully managed the monthly average
turnover rate of the Group to approximately
4.3% in Financial Year 2022/23 (Financial Year
2021/22: 4.7%). The monthly average turnover
rate by gender is 4.0% (male) and 4.9% (female).
The monthly average turnover rate by age group
is 6.6% (18 to 25), 6.3% (26 to 35), 3.6% (36 to
45), 2.6% (46 to 55) and 2.6% (56 to 65). Monthly
average turnover rate by region was 4.3% (China)
and 4.4% (Hong Kong).
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B2.

Health and Safety

Health and safety of the employees are of vital
importance to the Group. The Group is committed
to providing a safe working environment for
employees, and guarantees to fully comply with
all occupational health and safety regulations.
All offices and office premises of the Group are
equipped with adequate safety equipment, such
as fire-fighting equipment, to prevent fires and
ensure a safe working environment. The Group
has enhanced information and rules about
occupational health and workplace safety in the
employee handbook, and has formulated policies
about the safe working environment, such as
Special Measures against Typhoon and Rainstorm,
defining working procedures and evacuation issues
in severe weather. Apart from this, the Group will
invite fire protection equipment suppliers to give
lectures about fire safety awareness on a regular
basis and provide fire drills for employees to
ensure that they are familiar with the necessary
procedures if a fire breaks out.

Any employee suffering from work-related injuries
is entitled to corresponding compensation benefits
in accordance with relevant national regulations.
In the case of Hong Kong employees, the Group
will report the case to the Labour Department
in accordance with section 15 of the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, and contact the
insurance company for settlement of claims. In the
meantime, the Group will also provide sufficient
work-related injury leave to allow the employee
sufficient rest.

In the Financial Year, the Group recorded 5 cases
of work-related injury, all of which were in relation
to the property management segment. The number
of working days lost due to work-related injuries
was approximately 195 days. In Financial Year
2021/22, the Group had a total of 5 cases of work-
related injuries, and the number of working days
lost due to work-related injuries was approximately
563 days. No relevant figures have been disclosed
for the Financial Year 2020/21 (from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021).
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In this Financial Year, the Group had 1 case of
work-related fatality. One of the employees of
the property management segment met a traffic
accident on the way to work, resulting in serious
injury and even death. We are deeply sorry for
the sadness. We expressed our sympathy to the
family of the victim immediately after the accident
occurred. We also sent dedicated staff to arrange
follow-up actions with the family members of the
victim and relevant governmental departments,
in order to provide necessary assistance to the
family of the victim as soon as possible. Learning
from the past, the management enhanced publicity
to promote traffic safety to all employees and
publicized the importance of traffic safety, so as to
avoid similar incidents from happening again in the
future.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to participate
in all kinds of in-service training, and also provides
employees with various internal and external
training and development opportunities to help
them maximise their business potential.

The annual assessment results will be used to
provide suitable trainings for employees, in an
effort to continuously improve the Group's talent
quality and working skills, motivate working
enthusiasm of employees and stimulate them
to face challenges. Apart from considering the
Group's business vision and target needs, the
training and development programme also
simultaneously evaluates employee performance
and functional gap, coordinates with the
Company and the management in establishing
the education and training framework, and makes
plans for internal and external courses such as
new employee training, professional training,
training of various management levels, training
relating to environmental protection, core values
of the Group, etc. through physical or electronic
learning methods, providing employees with all-
round training, and enables the Group’s employees
to continue improving their professional and
managerial competence, find out the platforms
where they can show their abilities, grow together
with the Group, and establish a steady cooperative
relationship.

B3.

RAFREE AEBBEHLEIRE
TITHRTCHERZ WEEEDHH
HAMZE IR FHSEPBELEZTRE
B RBREREERT - HAIH R
TEEHRRER EFHHELR
ELYREETIXRBREEM &
MTKEEEAELEAMETIRE
LERBAHMAETREEENS
PHE A RE-RHHEER/KEIR
BRERUVGEED -FEURIEFN
BAEE BRMEEBETRREDH
Bl MRz ETHIBRES
BHE ERZBRENEEN M
BERCAKRBELRNESZ -

BRERE
AEEZBE T2 MEEEREI
bR E TRHESAAE LI E S
JlEER#EE NEPHETEER
REEFERE -

BETMNFREELZERTERAUARE
TRHEEEWZI - AT R AR
SEANFTERTFRXEE  LAE
BT TR DB - I 4R
RRASKTEEASELERE R
BRE®ERIN TRZFEETER
HEBRERO KA R HERERER
B HEIRERE KRBT AR
BEIR ZEEERIR RER
ENRBIRE AN EBZLEERS
NINEERTE - BB EREKNETLR
Bos REBET2HUmEI-
BEASBEE TR THRAHEERNA
EEE S KB HEZEE A
AEBARKEYZIIBEZAE
B % o

Annual Report 2023 & #§ 63



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERKRE

64

The Group arranges new employees to receive on-
boarding training, aiming to make the employees
know about the Group, master the codes of
practice, techniques and methods for handling
business, and adapt to the new environment
and new job quickly. In addition, the Group
also provides training on safety knowledge
and environmental protection knowledge for
employees, which helps establish their awareness
of safety and environmental protection. Apart from
the training on technical procedures, employees
can also participate on fire training so as to
enhance their awareness of fire prevention.

In this Financial Year, the percentage of employees
trained in the property management segment
is 32% (Financial Year 2020/22:71%). In Financial
Year 2021/22, the property management segment
has provided a total of approximately 5,194 hours
(Financial Year 2020/22: 2,994 hours) of trainings
for employees, with an average of approximately
4.9 hours (Financial Year 2020/22: 3.4 hours) of
training received by each trained employee. The
percentage of employees trained by gender is
62% male and 38% female, while the percentage
of employees trained by employee category is
42% (general staff), 41% (middle management) and
17% (senior management). On the other hand, the
average training hours per employee by gender
were approximately 1.0 hours (male) and 3.0 hours
(female) respectively, and by employee category
were approximately 0.3 hours (general staff), 8.6
hours (middle management) and 2.5 hours (senior
management).

The percentage of employees trained in the
lifestyle entertainment segment is 28% (Financial
Year 2020/22:33%). In Financial Year 2021/22, the
lifestyle entertainment segment has provided a
total of approximately 36 hours (Financial Year
2020/22: 24 hours) of trainings for employees, with
an average of approximately 3 hours (Financial
Year 2020/22: 3 hours) of training received by each
trained employee. The percentage of employees
trained by gender is 92% male and 8% female, the
average training hours for both male and female
were 1.0 hour and 0.3 hour respectively, and all
trained employees were general staff.
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In the future, the Group will continue to provide
adequate training for its employees, so as
to enhance their knowledge and skills while
contributing to the sustainable development and
progress of the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group has established an employment and
welfare policy in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the labour laws of
the PRC, and strictly prohibited the recruitment
of any candidate under the age of 18 to avoid the
recruitment of any child labour and forced labour.
The Group will never recruit any child labour under
the age restricted by local laws, and the Group's
HR Department will require the job candidates to
provide valid identification certificates to confirm
their actual age at time of interview. Once any
misuse of child labour is found, the Group will
immediately suspend his/her work, send the
child labour back to his/her original residence,
and deliver to his/her parent or legal guardian,
for which the Group will bear the required
transportation and accommodation expenses, and
pay the salary due for his/her actual work.

The Group has not experienced any labour
disputes or cases of forced labour during the
fiscal year. The Group undertakes to maintain
strict compliance with the Standard of regulations
at any time. Any employee facing or discovering
violations can report to the management through
the reporting mechanism, and the management
will take it seriously and take appropriate actions
to follow up.

B4.
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BS.

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to
procurement principles. In the procurement of
materials and services, the Group has established
procurement policies and procedures to promote
fair and open competition. We ensure that we are
able to meet the best economic benefits in terms
of price, quality, delivery period and service when
purchasing materials and hiring services. As a
responsible organisation, the Group abides by the
spirit of contract and complies with the principles,
objectives and contents of the contract signed
between us and the suppliers. During the Financial
Year, the Group cooperated with a total of 346
suppliers, of which 33 suppliers were located in
Hong Kong and the remaining 313 suppliers were
located in the PRC.

The Group has the responsibility to ensure that
procurement of materials and services is conducted
in a highly professional manner and complies
with the established code of ethics, so that the
resources are used properly, and the suppliers will
have the confidence in continuing doing business
with the Group. We must ensure that the suppliers
understand and comply with the Code of Conduct
and the procurement policies formulated by the
Group. The Group has established a list of selected
suppliers. Before any supplier is approved to enter
this list, we will review their company backgrounds
(including the recognitions, qualifications and
licenses they have obtained), product pricing and
supply terms. In order to standardise relevant
systems and processes, the Group has formulated
relevant work guidelines and standardised
contract forms, and conduct year evaluation on
the products and services of suppliers on a regular
basis to guarantee their compliance with the
Group's strict standards.

The list of selected suppliers will be reviewed at
the end of each year. Such review involves the
evaluation on whether a supplier's pricing, product
and service quality, efficiency, reliability, the ability
to deliver goods on schedule, licence update and
technical capability are still in compliance with the
Group’s requirements and standards.
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The Group selects reputable and reliable
suppliers to provide high-quality, affordable and
sustainable products and services. The Group
has a transparent and independent procurement
process, with an aim to promote competitiveness.
This move will also serve the benefit of our
shareholders and other stakeholders. The Group
expects to establish a vertically integrated
supply chain management system by integrating
the procurement resources and developing the
supplier selection and management mechanism,
thereby actively providing comprehensive solutions
and satisfying customer needs. The Group expects
to review the quality and performance of suppliers
by conducting relevant assessments and reviews,
and to ensure communication between the
procurement process so as to accurately convey
the Group's expectations to suppliers. Although
the Group’s main business does not involve
environmentally friendly products and services
when selecting suppliers, it still expects that
suppliers can comply with relevant environmental
standards and regulations, and save resources as
much as possible to contribute to environmental
protection.

Meanwhile, the Group encourages suppliers to
promote corporate social responsibility activities
and abide by corporate social responsibility
rules and environmental regulations. All business
transactions shall maintain high-standard ethics;
bribery or other illegitimate benefits must not
be provided or accepted; information relating to
business activities, structure, financial status and
performance shall be disclosed on a regular basis
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Product Liability

In order to maintain the Group's position in its
clubbing and entertainment business and property
management business and sustainability, the Group
strictly complies with the quality standards of the
industry to protect the Group's reputation and
public interests. The Group has strictly complied
with the laws and regulations relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
of its products and services. No non-compliance
incidents were identified during the fiscal year.

Bé6.
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Quality Control

The Group is committed to providing superior
and reliable services to its customers. The Group
regularly reviews its service performance, policies
and procedures, including the improvement of
service quality, the maintenance of proper records,
and the adequacy of staff training to ensure the
provision of professional and attentive services and
to safeguard the Company’s reputation and the
public interests.

As the Group's business nature does not involve
product sales, there is no recall of goods for
safety and health reasons, nor is there any recall
procedure for products.

Customer Service Management

Customers are the cornerstone for the Group to
achieve sustainable development and a source of
power to promote product innovation. Therefore,
customer satisfaction is one of our most important
issues. The Group strictly requires that our
products and services must conform to public
interests, and handle inquiries and opinions of
customers in a timely manner. 129 complaints have
been received for the year ended 31 March 2023.
All complaints will be recorded in detail for follow-
up actions and future reference, so as to improve
our service quality and pursue progress to meet
customers’ expectations.

Property Management Segment

The property management segment adopts the
whole process customer service concept in project
positioning, planning and management of its
property management business in the mainland
China, covers the customer satisfaction indicator of
related operation units in all regions into the scope
of performance evaluation on these operation
units, and constantly improves our services in the
interest of customers.
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Management
according to law

REEE

The Group conducts lawful management and operation in accordance with the
requirements of government laws, regulations and policies, so as to ensure our
property safety and value increase. By virtue of normative approaches and with the
goal of pursuing the satisfaction of property owners, the Group provides efficient and
superior services for the property owners, and satisfies their requirements honestly
without fraud.

REBEBRAZER EHR BRER REEE 8% BRAKEMERE2EEE (8
BRBH TR UEXETRERERNBR AEXRIRESR BEORE mEXX2%R-
S B -

Superior services

BER®

The Group develops business earnestly, makes unremitting pursuits and improves
the details to strive for perfection. The Group also makes full use of the internal
and external information about the quality environment, occupational health and
safety, and customer feedback, constantly improves the quality, environmental and
occupational health and safety management system, keeps such systems always in
effect, and pursues endlessly a higher level of management and performance.

EEB LAEER TRER TEME WRFEFX  ZOMNARIINEHNEERE
%%&ﬁ?%DM&@%M&%,?fﬁﬁE;,hfﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiéﬁ R IR E
HIgKR AR TEHERERMERNESER -

Infinite innovation

SRR B3

The Group will focus on infinite innovation, and uphold the spirit of infinite
innovation from business levels to management approaches. Employees of the
Group shall have the spirit of loving and respecting their jobs and being ready
for innovation, and attempting to achieve the synchronous development of both
individual and corporate values.

AEBBENEBRNAFN KEBEOLZEBFR MABERATOES KEH
BTRAEMHUE ZREAFNBEE EREABEECXNRASER-

Sustainable
development

?’f llﬁ

Standardised management is crucial to the Group’s development. To achieve
development, the Group must attach importance to standardised management,
establish and improve its quality, environmental and occupational health and
safety systems, establish effective inspection and implementation mechanisms, and
guarantee the Group's steady and sustainable development.

FEEREREEERNER SE2ERVAIEEENREBERE EUNTEEEN
B8 RENMBERRZ2HE - E4ﬁ&%ﬁ§ﬁ%€%ﬂ BREEREMFELERE-
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The Customer Service Department of the property
management segment is responsible for caring
about customers actively, handling and managing
customer complaints, systematising and refining
customer relationship management, standardising
complaint handling work, and enabling all
complaints made by property owners to be solved
timely and reasonably.

During the Financial Year, the property
management segment received a total of 127
complaint cases regarding property management
services. All complaints have been properly
handled and resolved by the Customer Service
Department. In addition, the Group did not receive
any material non-compliance related to products
and services.

In order to standardise and regulate customer
services of operation units in various regions, the
Group has formulated normative documents such
as Property Owner’s Complaints Handling Sheet,
Standard Operating Procedures for Property
Owner’'s Complaints Handling, etc. to constantly
improve its customer relationship management
level. In the future, the property management
segment will continue to maintain good
relationships with customers by providing superior
services.
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Receiving a complaint

BEREF

Keeping records of the complaint

R AT 8%

v

y

Minor complaint

IR R

Important complaint

BEERF

A

A

Making commitment

i A

Making commitment

i A

Reporting to Officer
FHREMFE

Reporting to Manager
R

Customer Service Officer

organises for resolution

BEFRBEBEEEBER

Manager organises for
resolution paying return visits

IR AR AR

v

Major complaint

BERRF

!

Reporting to General Manager
EaamEE

I

Holding an office meeting
ARMLERE

I

General Manager organises
for resolution

B ASTR M BERR

Keeping archives and
paying return visits
BAEWET R
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Complaint channels

RFRE

Satisfaction survey

MEERE

Upon the receipt of the complaint from a property owner, at first, the
property butler will show sympathy for what the property owner is suffering
from on behalf of the department being complained, and keep detailed
records in the Logs of Customer Service Department immediately. In
case of a minor complaint, it may be submitted to the department being
complained in the form of Work Contact Sheet.

EERIXIRFAR VEEREARRBERFHMARNXRINEERTEAB I
VEE (EFPRBE AR PEFFALE EBERMRFIN (TIFHEE)
B 2 3 3 X B R GF BB P ©
Complaint channels for property owners include:

EIRFREBEBRE:

o Reception desk switchboard J QQ group of property owners

AR IR=F R ¥ ¥ QQ¥E
o Customer service receptionist ® Official Weibo and WeChat
ERATA account

BT RRER

The property management segment employs students from high schools
as temporary staff to conduct sampling surveys on the satisfaction of the
property owners about our products and services, and collect customer
opinions and suggestions about the daily services of the property
management segment, in an attempt to constantly improve the Group's
customer service level and property management quality. Moreover, the
property management segment listens to the voices of customers, actively
collects customer opinions, rapidly responds to customer needs, and
devotes itself to continuously improving customer service via channels such
as hotline, written suggestions property owners’ forums, social media, etc..
MEEED BN T ERER if’ﬁﬁnuﬂfl HETETERMBREHEED
MEAE AHYEEES LA %ﬂlﬁn ETEPEREEBNOWESE  ATEH
?Eﬂﬁlﬁﬁgﬁﬁ&fk7k¥&%% mE e &t?l\'fF%%AEE"*BELﬂﬂﬁ‘?*
oEMER EIWRE ‘%i?&ﬁ%%%%%L BEEPLE BHRWEEPER
A 3 \@%gﬁﬁ'ﬁg BARBESER PR IIE.
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Lifestyle Entertainment Segment TR S BB

The lifestyle entertainment segment is committed ERRES BN RBEERERE
to providing the best customer service experience, EFRBGER REEANEHARME
safeguarding relevant intellectual property rights R MBS ERE REBEZLE
of the software used in clubs, protecting customer REMANZTE R IR S )8
privacy, guaranteeing the security in clubs, and RENHEDRARBHERLE T
preventing drug abuse. The lifestyle entertainment MHEBREDT

segment has formulated relevant systems to

regulate relevant operations of employees as

follows:

Complaint handling
RFEE

Safeguarding intellectual
property rights
HEEARER

The lifestyle entertainment segment is committed to providing customers

with an efficient complaint-handling mechanism and taking the following

approaches to achieve this goal:

ERRESBENRBERE —EAARENRFEBHES] WERIR T 5 7775

EENBRZ:

o All employees handle customer complaints in an objective and
positive manner;

. FIEETIUREMERNEEEIERSAIREF

o Actively contact customers to follow up or resolve complaints in a
real-time manner;

o IEHBMBEFREBNIANNBRRS:

o Investigate the cause of the complaint in a real-time manner and
provide remedial measures;

o AIRAZRFREA AWIRMEFRNMHRIER:

o Record the details of all complaints and record the contact information
of the complainant in daily log for investigation and follow-up; and

o RHEEMRFAE  WKIRFANBELRSHAETH B ST UHBEEMBRE
K

o Periodically review the progress of unresolved cases.
e TEHBBEARBREREE-

The lifestyle entertainment segment has formulated intellectual property
policies and procedures to manage, protect and monitor the copyright

usage:
ERREDBRENBERRRNREFAEE RERERRENER :
J Prohibit the use of unauthorised software or the reproduction of any

object of intellectual property rights;

s HIERARERENREHIERTAMIERND M

o Before using a third-party material, ensure that a license has been

granted;

EEBE=THHA BREX T

Educate and remind all employees to comply with copyright laws via

email or intranet;

s BREFHHAANMBPEHELIRENRE S TETRESE:

o Retain lawyers to verify copyright owners, buy public performance
licenses and deal with other copyright problems; and

e EFFMZEREA BEARBHIERNEEEMRERRE: &

o Establish the List of Licensed Songs according to the public
performance licenses already bought.

e RECBEZARBHMERBRIL (EEFAZRE) -
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Protecting
customer privacy

REBENLRE

Safety in the club
BREMZE

The lifestyle entertainment segment has established a membership system
to provide more convenience and benefits for membership customers. All
membership data are kept and encrypted by the membership database
manager to avoid unauthorised access to the sensitive data of the members.
ERREDHNEMEBRASEHE RIMATERNBETRHEESNER
HEE-MACAGHNEEENYHEERERELETINE BRIBEARE
AEHATNBERT2HEENGREHR -

The lifestyle entertainment segment is committed to providing customers
with a safe and orderly environment within the club, to ensure that
customers have a wonderful time there:

ERREDBENRBENREMARK—EALE2BERFNERE BREZTNE

FTARBER !

o Professional security personnel are hired to maintain the order within
the club;

s INBEXRLTEFEMANKT:

o Ensure all the hired security personnel hold valid security certificates

and pass the drug test;

. BRABXBNRZOFABINRLEE LBBERAH

o Closed-circuit television operates in the form of 24/7 (24 hours a day,
7 days a week), and in the event of an accident, we will view relevant
records for follow-up;

. PABR AR bA24/7 (—R24/N B —B7R) A EE BEBIHNKAEENR

B 50 B A VE IR
o Strictly control the flow of club patrons;
o  BIREFISMERTAR:
J Check the identification certificate of any customer suspicious of

being under 18; and

s BEEEKRH T/ \ARALHNFOHEHRANM K

o If we find any customer under 18 or uncooperative, the employees
shall ask that customer to leave the club. If necessary, we will inform
the police for assistance.

s HEEBRRBmt/\BRETIEHEBEEETEGENEAT BEEREXAH
BEERASM - NEFE ASBHETHE -

AUX International Holdings Limited / 3% Hf BB $2 IR 5 R 2 &



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERME

Prevention against
drug abuse

Bh Lk B %

The lifestyle entertainment segment has established rules to prevent drug
abuse:

HIRIRE D BRI IDEZE R A

All the new employees must pass the drug test being recruited;
FEFABZEINABRBER AR ERR

Carry out conventional drug tests every month in the clubs, and
choose random employees to receive sample tests;
BARESMETEREMAG  WEHIE TIEASETERRRR
Any employee who is suspected of taking any prohibited drugs can be
directly reported to his/her department supervisor;
EREREIRAENEY TERMESMEIERS:

Our security personnel will request any person suspicious of dealing
or taking any prohibited drugs to leave the club;
MEREMARSHRAEMEY REAESGUMERZASERH

If any specific evidence is found to prove any person dealing or
taking any prohibited drugs, the club manager will call the police
immediately; and
WERARBRITBEEARFUARAEIEY eMKE eV RERE
K

Arrange Caritas Lok Heep Club to provide lectures regularly with
respect to drugs, mental health and other healthy lifestyle to

employees.

s EHRHHAERLBERHEMARNS

BT

During the Financial Year, the lifestyle
entertainment segment received a total of 2
complaint cases in relation to the quality of food
and service. All complaints have been properly
handled and resolved by the person in charge.
Other than that, the lifestyle entertainment
segment has not received any material non-
compliance regarding products and services. In
the future, the lifestyle entertainment segment
will continue to maintain good relationships with
customers by providing high-quality services,
so as to improve its service quality and pursue
improvement.

Intellectual property rights

The Group recognises the importance of
protecting intellectual property rights and
reinforces the standards in the policies stated
in the Code of Conduct. During the fiscal year,
the Group did not experience any material
infringement of intellectual property rights and
has taken all reasonable measures to prevent any
infringement of third parties’ intellectual property
rights.

CLNEREMEMBERAEENBEET
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B7.

Information confidentiality

The Group attaches great importance to the
confidentiality of sensitive information. Every new
employee is required to sign a confidentiality
agreement and strictly abide by its terms to ensure
that every employee understands the Group's
confidentiality requirements for sensitive information,
including customer information and trade secrets
within the Group. The Group strictly prohibits any
unauthorised disclosure to prevent information
leakage from any direct or indirect means.

Anti-Corruption

The Group understands the importance of anti-
corruption and integrity. Therefore, the Group
prohibits any act of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The practice of
good moral integrity and anti-corruption
mechanism ensures the Group's acts in all work be
professional, honest and fair.

The Group strictly abides by the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance, and requires all employees
not to directly or indirectly provide, undertake,
require or accept any illegitimate benefits, or
carry out other dishonest acts in breach of good
faith, law or national regulations in the course of
business engagement, including criminal offences
including corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
or money laundering, and other acts such as
providing illegal political contributions, improper
charitable donations or sponsorships, providing
or accepting unreasonable gifts, entertainment
or other illegitimate benefits, infringing business
secrets, trademark rights, patent rights, copyrights
and other intellectual property rights, engaged in
unfair competition, etc. The Group requires that
employees must report any benefits received, for
which the Group will make the final decision on
disposal.
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The Group has established a comprehensive anti-
corruption policy to strengthen business ethics,
which includes strictly regulating the behaviour of
employees, and encouraging the maintenance of
good conduct, so that our employees understand
the importance of upholding ethical conduct
and practise it at work. As the cornerstone of the
Group's culture of integrity, the Group requires
all employees to be familiar with and strictly
follow the established anti-corruption policies.
Although the Group currently does not provide
training related to anti-corruption for directors
and employees, we still strive to enhance the
importance of business ethics and anti-corruption
concept of employees, and undertake to arrange
relevant training in a timely manner to strengthen
the practice of good corporate culture in the future
when necessary.

In Financial Year 2022/23, neither the Group nor its
employees were prosecuted for corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering.

Whistle-Blowing Channel and Policy

The complaint whistleblower shall truthfully
report the situation to the Administration Centre.
Upon receipt of the whistleblowing matter,
the Administration Centre will investigate the
complaint. The Administration Centre will keep the
whistleblower’s personal information confidential,
and will submit the case to the competent
external agency for disposal when necessary. The
whistleblower will undertake corresponding legal
liability for fabricating facts, falsifying evidence,
or conducting false charges or frame-ups by
whistleblowing.

Community Investment

The Group insists on the philosophy of giving
back to the society. Apart from the continual and
robust operation of business development, the
Group will make active efforts to show the service
spirit of our core corporate values, integrate the
ideas of community concern and participation,
and continue devoting to all kinds of education,
cultural and social welfare activities.

BS8.

RMEEFRER AEEERIT
ENREGSHE ETEREBEBR
BEBTR ZBEFRIRT &
BAMETI THRRFERETHNE
2 ARTHEFEE - (FAAKE
BYBHEXENEL REEBEX
FIBETAEBLBRBRERIW
RESBR -HERANEEBRRF KA
REERBTREAERESHA
MBI ERMADABANREAET
REAXEREREBSHNERZ L
YAEFTEREERTERER ZHHE
FAEIIIR RF RN EE -

RZB_Z /=R EE K&
BIMNEEBETHALREEHEERE S X

T RAARCE -

EHEBREFE

BRFBBRARRATREEDLIE
REBR ERXBHRIFRE TH
EERLEHERFATRMAAL
TREEFLEEBHRAEBEA
ERRT IRABEFTENBRT L
EREIBEINBDHEBIEIE - AR
BABREEE BERER IANBR
BAEREMA BRAQBEE
HEEAREE-

HERE
AEBERFEELSENER KT
BERRELCXBRIN-BEBER
CEZOCEENREES BAL
EREAMMERS2ENE# K&
BARBSEARE LR LG RAE
o

Annual Report 2023 £ 3§ 77



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERME

78

Volunteer Services

The Group is committed to performing its
corporate civic responsibility, of which volunteer
service is an important part. In view of this, the
Group has particularly set up a volunteer team, to
cooperate with the Agency for Volunteer Service
in charity work and return to the society. During
Financial Year 2022/23, a total of 2,296 employees
of the Group participated in approximately 4,874
hours of volunteer services, including but not
limited to distributing anti-epidemic supplies,
participating in anti-epidemic voluntary activities,
participating in charity walks, repairing household
appliances, participating in Chinese medical
consultation services, etc., to improve neighbourly
and community relations.

In the future, the Group will input more resources
in various education, cultural and social welfare
activities, actively participate in community
activities, and express the Group’s concern for and
return to local communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS DATA

REEBERE

FY2021/22 FY2022/23
—E-—/-Z —E-__ /==
HRERE HBREE
GHG emission BERBHEKR
Total GHG emission BRERBHER 71,703.98 tonnes 50,049.2Mitonnes
GHG emission of the lifestyle EERRENDRE
entertainment segment REHEM 184.9Mitonnes 177.0W tonnes
GHG emission intensity of the ERREDERE 46.208 /845 & 35 Br 50.6M /{8 & & 15 fit
lifestyle entertainment segment REBHENEE tonnes/business premises tonnes/business premises
GHG emission of the property MEERHIEE
management segment REEHE 70,918.9M tonnes 49,872.2M tonnes
GHG emission intensity of the MEERDERE 1,325.60 /[EY%EEE 906.8M /fEY%ER
property management segment REHENEE tonnes/property project tonnes/property project
Scope 2 - "energy indirect” HE—-[sRME]
GHG emissions RERBHEN
Lifestyle entertainment segment HIRIREE D A 184.1MEtonnes 176.0Witonnes
Property management segment MEER D 69,605.3ME tonnes 48,300.0 tonnes
Scope 3 - all other HE=-MAEHMEE
indirect GHG emissions RERBHMN
Lifestyle entertainment segment HEEIREE D E 0.8MEtonnes 1.00f tonnes
Lifestyle entertainment segment MEEE D 1,313.7Mitonnes 1,572.3Hitonnes
Non-hazardous wastes BEBREY
Total non-hazardous wastes produced BEEENELBE N/AT i N/ATE B
Non-hazardous wastes intensity BEEEENEE N/AT i A N/ATER
Electricity consumption EREEE
Electricity consumption of the HEERENH 2
lifestyle entertainment segment BEER 284 5JK L MWh 283.9% & MWh
Electricity consumption intensity of EEREN 2 TVREE /B & 50 81K B /MBS &5
the lifestyle entertainment segment ERRRTE MWh/business premises MWh/business premises
Electricity consumption of the MEEBRNH 2
property management segment BEHE 98,035.6K FLB MWh 84,692.3 K FLIF MWh
Electricity consumption intensity MEEENH 2 18324k E 0 /EWMEEE  1,539.9%EE EYEER
the property management segment ERERTE MWh/property project MWh/property project
Water resource consumption KERERE
Water resource consumption of the EERES T2
lifestyle entertainment segment KERE#E 1,492,655 K m? 1,767.9% 7 K m?
Water resource consumption intensity EERRENHD 2 371325 R /ARG 505.13% 75K /{8 & & 45 Fir
of the lifestyle entertainment segment KERBREEE mé/business premises m®/business premises
Water resource consumption of the MEEBHEZ
property management segment KEREE 2,054,094.752 75 K 2,472,386.63 5 K
Water resource consumption intensity MEEBD 2 38,394.3 K /EMEIEE 44,9525 5K EMXBEE

of the property management segment

KERERRE

mé/property project

m®/property project
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SOCIAL ASPECTS DATA tEEEEE
FY2021/22 FY2022/23
—ZE=—/ —E-C
ZoHBREE “ZHBEE
Number of employees BT AH
Total employees BET A 1,089 994
Number of employees by gender BEHREBPETAR
Male ES 755 703
Female 'S 334 291
Number of employees by age REREDPETI A
18-25 18-255% 79 109
26-35 26-357% 319 241
36-45 36-457% 355 320
46-55 46-555% 303 290
56-65 56-657% 33 34
Number of employees by working year RIEFHESETI A
Less than 1 year TF AT 331 266
1-3 years 1-3%F 293 267
3-5 years 3-5% 229 192
5-10 years 5-10%F 218 220
Over 10 years 10 A £ 18 49
Number of employees by REREREASEIAY
type of employment
Full-time B 1,081 989
Part-time B 5 5
Temporary position B R B8k iz 3 =
Number of employees BHBESETIAH
by geographical region
The PRC o 1,046 955
Hong Kong BB 41 38
Others (Nepal, Pakistan, etc.) Hip (fERE
BEEEE) 2 1
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FY2021/22 FY2022/23
22—/ —g-=
ZHBREE “ZHBEE
Employee turnover rate AERER
Average monthly turnover rate FHARKL X 5% 4%
Employee turnover rate by gender EMRB S ABRAR
Male B 5% 4%
Female 5§ 6% 5%
Employee turnover rate by age RERBOSZABRAE
18-25 18-255% 10% 7%
26-35 26-357% 6% 6%
36-45 36-457% 4% 4%
46-55 46-55p% 3% 3%
56-65 56-657% 2% 3%
Employee turnover rate BHBEE I CABRKAR
by geographical region
The PRC a3 5% 4%
Hong Kong s 6% 4%
Others (Nepal, Pakistan) Hip (BAm  EEHMIE) N/AT i@ A N/ATE A
Health and safety REHZ2
Cases of work-related fatalities AITHER Nilf& 1
Work-related injury S 5 5
Lost days due to work injury AIEMBELRZIEAH 563 195
Development and training BR RN
Property management segment MEEESH
Total internal training & 8 M 2R354 R 21
hours for employees 2,994 5,194
Total employees trained EEJIMmE TRAH 868 1,066
Percentage of employees trained EEJEEBH L 71% 32%
Percentage of employee trained MEERESBZRMAE D
by gender of the property Z BTt fi
management segment
Male B 67% 62%
Female L8 33% 38%

Annual Report 2023 £

81



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERME

FY2021/22 FY2022/23
-/ —E=-=
ZHBREE “ZHBEE
Percentage of employee trained MEEBEIBERBREAD 2
by position of the property BT HI
management segment
General employee LT®ET 83% 42%
Middle management HEEEAE 13% 41%
Senior management BRERAE 4% 17%
Average training hours completed MEEEDBERUERNE DI
per employee by gender of the BIRMEINFIEIRE
property management segment
Male = 23 1.0
Female 5§ 2.9 3.0
Average training hours completed MEEEIBEBREAIN
per employee by position of the BIRMEIFEIRE
property management segment
General employee LT®ET 1.3 0.3
Middle management FEEEAS 10.4 8.6
Senior management BREEANE 10.5 2.5
Lifestyle entertainment segment EERES T
Total internal training & 8 M 2R354 R 21
hours for employees 24 36
Total employees trained EEJIMmE TRaH 8 12
Percentage of employees trained EEJEEB DL 33% 28%
Percentage of employee trained EFRESBEUBES 2
by gender of the lifestyle BT H
entertainment segment
Male B 38% 92%
Female 5§ 62% 8%
Percentage of employee trained EERESBEBEES 2
by position of the lifestyle BT A
entertainment segment
General employee LT®ET 63% 100%
Middle management HEEEAE 25% N/ATE R
Senior management BREBAB 12% N/ATE B
Average training hours completed EERESBEUBE D
per employee by gender of the BIRMENFIEIRE
lifestyle entertainment segment
Male = 0.3 1.0
Female 5§ 1.3 0.3

82
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FY2021/22 FY2022/23
—ZE=—/ —E-C
ZHBREE “ZHBEE
Average training hours completed EERESBEBRED B
per employee by position of the BITREIEIEH
lifestyle entertainment segment
General employee EmET 0.7 1.6
Middle management FEEREAS 0.3 N/ATE A
Senior management BRERBAE 0.8 N/ATE B
Supply chain management HEEER
Total suppliers HER B 245 346
The PRC a3 208 313
Hong Kong BB 37 33
Product responsibility EmEE
Number of products and service ERERER KRB S
related complaints received REFEA 160 129
Anti-corruption RES
Number of corruption litigation cases BERFRRGHE R Nil Nil
and the outcomes of the cases AR S s s
Community investment HERE
Corporate donations PEREERY N/AT 3@ N/ATE A
Employees' volunteer hours EEEB TR 2,714 hours/)NE¥ 4,874 hours/)
Number of employees involved LEZBLEEEAY

in volunteer activities

67

2,296
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RiE - deREAHREiEmMeE
REPORTING GUIDE AND REFERENCE

A. Environmental Reference in the Report
AR AFE2E
A1. Emissions Page#
A1BERR Y BE#
The policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a 43-49

significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

BREBRRMABEREBHN MALRLHOES AERETERZRYNELESTHK
REETHETABEAZENBBIZEMRD -

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. N/A i A
KPI AT BE R P18 48 I AR B B I B

KPI' A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per 43-47
unit of production volume, per facility).

KPI A1 2R EREANRE (U E) REE (MASEEEN - BERETHE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per unit Not related % &

of production volume, per facility).
KPIl AT3FTEAEEEEDLEE (UHFAE)IREE (NUSBESEM BHERHE
AHE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per 48
unit of production volume, per facility).

KPI AMMARTELBEZEEMAE (UBAE) RERE (MASEEEMN BHRIE

AE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 47

KPI A1 5% UK BE I E R M R T RR

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 49
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

KPI Al 6t BB ERBEREMN L REELENHERABKR-
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A2. Use of Resources

A2.ERERA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER (BIEEIR KR EAD R E) BBR

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

KPI ANVRERIEI DM ERE R SBEER(ME Kh) @R (UTFEATRE
RiAHE)RBE (WABESEN BRRMTE) -

KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
KPIA2 2B REKEREE (MASEEEN BRXKEFE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

KPI A2 3 AT LM BE R (E A B 2 N AER S L B EMRIA SR -

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

KPI A2 44 it SREVE KR ER] BEMERE UMFTET LM AR B RN AE
BlE BZATIRENN AR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

KPI A25& K mrABEMNEE (NHEE) R (NER)BEEEMRE-

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

A EBERKAER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

MEETAHRELAREREREAZENRE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI A3 R R B ERERARAERNEAXENCRRERABRZENTY -

Page#
HE#

49-52

49-50

50-51

50

51

Not related 7% &

Page#
HE®#

53

53
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Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 54-55
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHEERATREEHETAEETYENEARKBEEETENERE -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 54-55
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

KPI AR E S R AIRE @ H BT AEER ENERRBREBREE  LEHTH -

B. Social Reference in the Report

B. & &+

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations 56-61
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and

dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERAFMNEE BELEN TERE RY TERS Sl REEUARE

B RBMNOBENETHETABEAZENBBEERRIINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 56-58
geographical region.

KPI B1.1#Z R EHBEE  FHRAJNKMES Y NES L -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 61
region.

KPI B1.2#z 15l FicABR MR B D MEERKL K-
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B2. Health and Safety
B2.ZERZE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BEARMLZ2TERERREREHEBEMLENBREREFTHEITARTEKR
TENHEBERERBRINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the

past three years including the Reporting Year.
KPIB2TBE=F (BRERFE)SFEAITURMAB KRR -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
KPI B2 2B TR TIEA &

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how
they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B2 3l TR B (@R ELT 2 UAMBAERITRERFE-

B3. Development and Training

B3.3% & k& HI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.

BFRRMEERIT TEBRENMB L RENBE -RAEIEs-

KPl B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

KPI B.1RMUERI REERA (NS REREE TREEEZ)ESNXIEERS
Lt e

KPl B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

KPI B3.2Z R R BB BRIE D BREE K INNFHEH-
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62-63
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63-65

64
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B4. Labour Standards
B4.% T % H|

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
ERAMEETIXBHSTHBRRETHETABEAZENHREZR LRI
A o

KPl B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.
KPI B4. 14 st iz 5 TR ES 18 7] MO $E hE A R B T N SR I 85 T -

KPl B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

KPI B4.2%H 1l 75 35 38 & M B R B R BR B B 1B 0L P ER B A 20 B -

B5. Supply Chain Management
BS. i fE 8 = 2

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
EIRMEENRE M R REUR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
KPI BS. 1R @& » e BRI 2 A -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

KPI B5.2fd it BRI AL EE BN MERTABEENNHEREE ULEH
B RITRERT A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B53 L AE R RS ERMNRERESARKED A RBBRT
NERTE-

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

KPI B4t BRE HERARREZ BRRERKRENBEH - LA RBEART R

ERTA
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B6. Product Responsibility
B6.EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
ERMRHERMRBOREERZE2 BE SHEEIMBREFEARFHRITENHIK
REETHETABEAZENHBEZEMROINER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

KPIBGIEEXEEXERBHTRALL2HEREAMARKMNBE DL -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
KPI B2 AN Em IR HIRFER LA REE FE-

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
KPI B6. 3% it B2 4 & o AR (8 AN B = 7 A A eV 18 01

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
KPI Bé .44 it & & 12 B 12 I 2 am [0 e A2 e

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B6.5#i il K B & ERHRE RALBRE  ARBERTRER -
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B7. Anti-corruption
B7.R &5

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

BERAIEER R HFRABRENBRRRETHETABEAZENERZE
BRBOIEER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

KPI B7ZARERPAEBETANHEEREIEEENETFLRENEE &F

Ao
By °

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored.
KPI B7. 23 &1 i R B AR fr - U RABRARIT R E R A

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
employees.
KPI B7.3fHtMES M B TIRENREITHEI -

B8. Community Investment
B8.HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities' interests.
FAUMEZ2ERTREEMCHEZTZENBEREER TS EBLR R EHIK
% o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e. g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
KPIBS.1E T EREE (NS REFE BIHFR BE X -8BF) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

KPIBS2EE XEIEAMEAE R (IN& ki) -
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the financial year,
which includes a fair review of the Group’s business, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the financial year and after the end of the financial year, and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 14 and the Group's
environmental policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 34 to
90 of this annual report. The contents of the abovementioned
sections form parts of the business review as contained in this
report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the
management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations which may have a material impact on the business
and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in all
material respects during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the
significant assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue
establishing a caring environment to employees and
emphasises the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers
and suppliers. The Group aims to continually provide quality
services and consumption experiences to its customers and
establish cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

EEEUREBE-_TS-_=F=A=+—H1t
FEZFBRREEZIABRE

FEXEHR

ARBZEBXRBERREERR -ARAEEN
BRRZEBHNI BRI EES -

7 [ R

AEERVBREEANEHLBERREAKER
EHNASEXEOAFERN T2RR NI
AR EN ® AREEZHHRBEI M
BEEAMMBRFRERZERARENERNEN
MARBEMARRNEERERL 2 RKAEERD
RE WEBREDIRRAFRESEI4ADN
EEEMWmESN MRR L REARET
AEBORBEERRMEBA IR AFREME
R LB ATERNETEREMIAE
BRI — &0 -

BEEShEEEMMN REBEE-_S=-=F=
A=+ HLEFE ASBEMBEZEHFAD
BT EeHARGREMNBRRESREEE
EBRTEEMMBRERERER-

HET EFRHEBNEERE
AEEERBIA/AGEENEREEZ — I

NEEZTHENRERBER BERETHE
ANBR-

AEEREFPLHEBDRISRETBE LEE
UmEFRRHEEE RS MEERR UL EHEE
BRIV AERIESBR-
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment that pays close attention to
conserving natural resources. The Group strives to minimise
its impact on the environment by reducing its electricity
consumption and encouraging recycling of office supplies
and other materials. For further details, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 34 to 90 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
and the state of the Company's and the Group's affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 118
to 123.

TRANSFER OF RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company before
dividends, of HK$21,511,000 (2022: HK$12,297,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$127,925,000 (2022:
HK$137,561,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 208 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.
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AEEBRNBERFNEERR BHERAE
R B BRAEEHRE RSB E KR A ERm
REMMABELRBEERNZE E—FF
B FLUAFREMAEEFEMHZERE
HENMERRS -

Bt R AR

REBHE-_ZE_=F="A=+—HBILEEZ
EBEURARARAEEEEZZB ZEH RN
HR Y EHREKRE118E123H -

BREHGE
XX B % B OFE (L BR B B AT #1)21,511,0000%8 7T

(ZE -4 :12,297,0004 70 ) D E B S o
FEzZEMEHENGREORESIEH R -

EETRERAMBE_T_=F=A=+—HIt
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no other movements in the share capital of the
Company, and there were no purchases, sales or redemptions
of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
from the major customers and suppliers during the year
ended 31 March 2023 is as follows:
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Percentage of
the Group's
total purchases

Percentage of
the Group's
total revenue

EAEE KRR EEEE
wEESE HBEFEASW
The largest customer RAEF 1%
Five largest customers in aggregate EREPA&H# 17%
The largest supplier RAHER 29%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate EAR#ERSHK 80%
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During the year, other than Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd
(which accounted for approximately 10.7% of the total sales
for the year ended 31 March 2023), in which Mr. Zheng Jian
Jiang and Mr. Zheng Jiang indirectly hold 85.0% interests
and 10.0% interests, respectively, and Ningbo Mingzhou
Hospital, which is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a
30%-controlled company held by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang (which
accounted for approximately 4.4% of the total sales for the
year ended 31 March 2023), none of the Directors, their close
associates or Shareholders who to the best knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company has any beneficial interest in any of the Group's
five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Liang Songluan
(resigned with effect from é May 2022)
Ms. Shen Guoying
Ms. Chen Lingxiao
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, the Board shall have
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

Accordingly, Mr. Zheng Jiang, Ms. Shen Guoying and Ms.
Chen Lingxiao will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company. All retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 15 to 17 of
this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “"SFO"), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein,
or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company

ESREETRABRRG HHEE
HRERBP I RERKAR

R_EBE_=F=ZA=+—B ARAAERES
REBTRABRARRRETMABEER (F
ERBFMBEEM ([EFRBE G FEXV
#B) 2 Ben 7fﬁf'aaﬂx1ﬁ&f$%§i‘$%ﬁ$ﬁﬁ§ﬁ
&Hﬂi"i1lm1ﬁﬂ%xv4%%7&8"* AMEAR
3BT 2 fE as 2 ?(@Tﬂﬁ%ﬁaﬁzm%&ﬁﬂfﬂx
fﬁlJSZvﬂ%YﬁZ%XESVEEEi%&ﬁ*%ﬁﬁ}\%
AR RAR) FREBEEFNAEKRIE
352G AFM A LRI 2 B 2 s MR R
jz*ETJfJ:m%EH'JFﬁ%HT STAIZERME A RAE R
BRIz EERRBINT

RAEQXFRBZEzROREBRD 2HF A

Approximately
Percentage of

Name of Name of Capacity/ Number and the issued
associated Corporation Directors Nature of interest class of shares share capital
BERITREZ
HEEE SR8 EsnE B ERtE ROBE REH BMAOBDSH
Huiri Limited (Note) Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 0.1 10%
corporation ordinary shares
ERERBRAR (Hi) (N RErEER E R
China Prosper Enterprise Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 1,000 10%
Holding Co., Ltd. (Note) corporation ordinary shares
China Prosper Enterprise BT R A E TR

Holding Co., Ltd (#f3t)

Note:

Ze Hong Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Jiang, was interested
in (i) 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, being the holding
company of the Company; and (ii) 10% of the issued share capital of China
Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd., being a fellow subsidiary of Huiri Limited.
Mr. Zheng Jiang was deemed to be interested in the shares of Huiri Limited
and China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. as held by Ze Hong Limited by
virtue of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 352 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of
persons other than the chief executive of the Company who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRAROREBROD 2EER

NP
RE

R-ZB-=4=A=+—H RALABRKSE
SRS EOIEREEE 2 BRB MRS T
FIAT (KD RRETHA BRI RAR AR
13 S AB B RR 5 o - B AR 1 4B T HA 5 1
EXVER E2I 35 B 15 X (R A 7 R B P48
ZHRRABIT

Long position

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Capacity/ in ordinary (approximately)
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest shares held (Note 1)
ERITREABSL
(BE4)
RER A 55 Rty BELZERZHR (HizE1)
Zheng Jian Jiang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 337,950,000 68.55%
corporation
B BT (Mf7E2) REEEEE
Ze Hui Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 337,950,000 68.55%
corporation
EEARRAR (Hiz2) REEEEE
Huiri Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 337,950,000 68.55%
fERERER AR (Hit2) E=mA A
He Yi Ju (Note 3) Interest of spouse 337,950,000 68.55%
M Z% (H7:3) e 48 42 2
Xu Xingen Beneficial owner 32,400,000 6.57%
wER BB A
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Notes:

1. On the basis of 492,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2023.

2. Huiri Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with

limited liability which is owned as to 90% by Ze Hui Limited (which is in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang) and 10% by
Ze Hong Limited (which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zheng Jiang, a current executive Director). Each of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
and Ze Hui Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Huiri Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

38 Ms. He Yi Ju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. Under the SFO, Ms.
He Yi Ju was taken to be interested in the same number of shares in

which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang was interested.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report
of the Directors, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
or any of its controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director or a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 March
2023 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report of the Directors, at no time during
the year, the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements which would
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this report, none of
the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe for the shares
or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or had
exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

For the year ended 31 March 2023 the Board is not aware
of any business or interests of the then Directors and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the
Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group's operating results and individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors, employees and other eligible persons.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 2(p) to the financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

non-executive Directors an annual

considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

USE OF PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the section headed “Capital Structure” in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report,
the net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the Subscription,
after deduction of the related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$73.7 million. During the Year, parts of the
Net Proceeds had been utilised as follows:

RBERERE

REBERARBAERZ ARAEMERARAES
A% BEAFHRAY ARAREHARF ETHR
AIFT A2 AR RE -

B ERER

ARREREZBIUIFRTESTRE LR
FEIBHEABUMBRL 2 FERER XRRAE
BYFATESHBBELAL

e RERE

BIMANE [BERRE] —EHARE NRAR
AXE REFHREEZMEHRRFA([ME
RIBFRE])NI3TABET -RAFE oM
SREFEAEOT:

Amount of Net Proceeds utilised

CEHANMBRETFESE
Net Proceeds
allocated as
set out in the
circular dated
31 December During the Unutilised Net
2021 (the As at year ended As at Proceeds as at
“Circular”) 1 April 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
AEA
ZECZ-f
+=A
=t—-A2 R-BZZ§=
B ([@&]) BE-E-Z=F A=+—-HBEX
FEESEz W-T-ZHF ZB=+-HLE RIBZZF BHEZHBRE
Use of proceeds FIERERR FERERR mAE—-H FE =HB=t+-A B8
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER
(1) working capital of the Company, (1) ARRIZEEES B
including but not limited to directors’ BETRRESHS
fees and professional fees REXER 12.5 37 8.8 12.5 =
(2) rental expenses and salary expenses (2) HRREHHLES
to be incurred under the operation of EEZHEAIRE
the lifestyle entertainment segment PHX 322 = 322 322 =
(3) partial repayment of the loan from (3) EEBLEBRBRE
the controlling shareholder b 29.0 - 29.0 29.0 -
Total: FE 73.7 3.7 70 73.7 =

100

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F



Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Net Proceeds from the Subscription had been used in the
manner as disclosed in the Circular and the announcement of
the Company dated 4 November 2022. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had fully utilised all such Net Proceeds for working
capital of the Company, rental expenses and salary expenses
of the lifestyle entertainment segment and partial repayment
of the loan from the controlling shareholder.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 3 January 2014 which shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date and
accordingly have a remaining life until 2 January 2024, subject
to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to provide incentives to Eligible Participants (as defined
below) and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions the Eligible Participants have had or may have
made to the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board may offer to grant options to the following persons:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives, or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including any non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company

or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,

the assessment criteria of which are:

(1) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(2)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(3) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(4)  length of service or contribution to the Group.
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Pursuant to the transitional arrangements prescribed by the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 January 2023, among the
classes of participants mentioned above, the Company may
continue to grant share options under the 2017 Scheme only
to those participants who fall within the definition of “eligible
participants” under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, including,
in the case of the Company, primarily directors and employees
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (the “Eligible
Participants”).

The Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
Shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue immediately following completion of the
Global Offering (as defined in the prospectus of the Company
dated 13 January 2014) (but taking no account of any Shares
which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the exercise of
the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus)),
being 30,000,000 Shares. The total number of Shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to an Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue as at the date of grant unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.
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An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of
the options duly signed by the grantee, together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant, is received by the Company on
or before the relevant acceptance date prescribed by the
board of directors. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time after
the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that
date. The period during which an option may be exercised
(including its vesting period or vesting date, if any) will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall expire on 2 January 2024.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2023, 2,745,000 options
had been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme.

As at 1 April 2022 and throughout the year ended 31 March
2023, there was no option outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme.

As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and the date of this annual
report, the total number of Shares that may be issued
upon exercise of the options available for grant under the
Share Option Scheme was 27,255,000 Shares representing
approximately 5.53% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the share option scheme of the Group as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2023.

EARAREZTSRENBBEMA MK ZA
WRARAEARENBEREZOXMFEIA (K
BERR) ARAKRR R R Z A 01.0078 TE
REAROIRER BREBRKESDREY
BRI N R BE BN A 2K o B IR M AT 4R BB AR
BB ZBEFARERERSCRELEEARE
B EZ B RF105FEmA B EERITE B
hEzTER(ERERBYEARBEES (M
B))REFS2RMNBET EIMFBERY
104 ©

RSN —E-—ME—A-—HE® -
BE_Z-_=F=-A=+—HIFE AR
B iE S A HE =T 8] & % H2,745,00017 B8 RS -

RIE-__FMA-—BRBE-_ZT_=F=H
STt HLEEREFE BREFEAENLEL
A] 1) R AT 2 s A e

R-ZZE-—FWA—R —E-_=ZF=ZA=+—
ARAFERAH ATEREERESTE TR
o A B IR RE T ) B 1T A9 AR 10 4B BX 827,255,000
B AR AN BB B 1T AN 45.53% ©

IR 3% 8 1 =

BRAFR [BRESS S EBEIASER
RIEEN RBEE_T_=F=A=+—H
LTFE AEERET LS FEERMKRERHD
ek -

Annual Report 2023 4 ]

103



Report of the Directors
EEERE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 March 2023 and as at the date of this
report of the Directors, pursuant to which the Company shall
indemnify the Directors against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which any of them may incur
by reason of any act done in execution of their duty in their
respective offices, except such as they shall incur through
their own fraud or dishonesty. The Company has maintained
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the
Group were conducted during the year on a continuing basis
for which relevant announcements had been made by the
Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(a) Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 28 December 2020)
On 1 December 2020, Ningbo AUX entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the “2020 Framework Agreements”) with
each of (i) Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Company
Limited (“Ningbo AUX Healthcare”) (the " 2020
Framework Agreement 1”); (ii) AUX Group Company
Limited ("AUX Group”) (the "2020 Framework
Agreement I1”); (iii) Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric
Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo Sanxing”) (the “2020 Framework
Agreement Il1”); (iv) Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd.
("Ningbo AUX Real Estate”) (the "2020 Framework
Agreement IV"); and (v) Ningbo AUX Electric Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX Electric”) (the “2020 Framework
Agreement V") (parties to each agreement entering
into such agreement for itself and as trustee for the
benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time) for the
provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance, cleaning and/
or security services for offices, industrial park facilities,
car park units, residential properties and/or commercial
properties.
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As at the date of the above agreements, (i) AUX Group
was in aggregate directly held as to 100% by two
companies, each of which was held as to 85.00% by
Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang (“Mr. JJ Zheng"”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company indirectly holding
approximately 58.66% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company (and approximately 68.55% as
at the date of this report); (ii) Ningbo Sanxing was in
aggregate directly held as to approximately 52.75%
by Mr. JJ Zheng and the parties acting in concert
with him (including Mr. Zheng Jiang and AUX Group);
(iii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in aggregate held as
to approximately 87.84% by Mr. JJ Zheng, including
direct interests of 25.00% and indirect interests of
approximately 62.84% held through various entities;
(iv) Ningbo AUX Healthcare was a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ningbo Sanxing; and (v) Ningbo AUX
Real Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00% by Mr.
JJ Zheng. Accordingly, each of AUX Group, Ningbo
Sanxing, Ningbo AUX Electric, Ningbo AUX Healthcare
and Ningbo AUX Real Estate was an associate (being
a 30%-controlled company) of Mr. JJ Zheng as a
controlling shareholder of the Company and hence
a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Each of the 2020 Framework Agreements is effective for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. Further details of each of the 2020
Framework Agreements are disclosed below:

(i) 2020 Framework Agreement |

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement |, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property housekeeping,
transportation and other ancillary services to
Ningbo AUX Healthcare and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time for a term commencing on 1
January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.
The above transactions shall be subject to the
annual cap of RMB26.8 million, RMB36.4 million
and RMB44.4 million for the years ended/ending
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

S

2020 Framework Agreement Il

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement Il, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices, commercial
properties and car park units occupied by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries. In addition, Ningbo
AUX shall provide pre-sale managements services,
sales offices management services and unsold
industrial park units property management services
in respect of industrial park facilities owned by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending
on 31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB5.4 million,
RMB11.0 million and RMB13.1 million for the years
ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

2020 Framework Agreement Il

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement Ill, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices and car
park units occupied by Ningbo Sanxing and/
or its subsidiaries from time to time for a term
commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMBO0.5 million,
RMBO.5 million and RMBO0.5 million for the years
ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,

respectively.

2020 Framework Agreement IV

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement IV, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including management, maintenance, cleaning
and security services in connection with the
development projects of residential properties
and shopping complexes launched by Ningbo
AUX Real Estate and/or its subsidiaries from time
to time for a term commencing on 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB37.2 million, RMB50.1 million and RMB54.8
million for the years ended/ending 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.
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(b)

(v) 2020 Framework Agreement V

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement V, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including mainly cleaning services in connection
with the industrial park facilities occupied by
Ningbo AUX Electric and/or its subsidiaries from
time to time for a term commencing on 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB3.8 million, RMB7.4 million and RMB7.8 million
for the years ended/ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023, respectively.

Continuing Connection Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 30 September
2021)

On 30 September 2021, Ningbo AUX entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the "2021 Framework Agreements”) with
each of Ningbo AUX Real Estate (the “2021 Framework
Agreement 1”) and Ningbo AUX Electric (the "2021
Framework Agreement I1") (parties to each agreement
entering into such agreement for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time)
for the provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance,
cleaning, security and/or customer services for sales
offices, showrooms, vacant industrial park units and/or
properties and facilities of industrial park.

As at the date of the above agreements, (i) Ningbo
AUX Real Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00%
by Mr. JJ Zheng; (ii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in
aggregate controlled as to approximately 92.08% by
Mr. JJ Zheng; and (iii) Mr. JJ Zheng indirectly held
approximately 58.66% of the issued shares of the
Company (and approximately 68.55% as at the date
of this report). Accordingly, each of Ningbo AUX Real
Estate and Ningbo AUX Electric is an associate (being
a 30%-controlled company) of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and hence
a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Each of the 2021 Framework Agreements is effective for
a term commencing on 1 October 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. Further details of each of the 2021
Framework Agreements are disclosed below:

(i)

(ii)

2021 Framework Agreement |

Under the 2021 Framework Agreement I,
Ningbo AUX shall provide (i) cleaning, security
and customer services at the sales offices and
showrooms and (ii) maintenance, cleaning and
security services in respect of unsold industrial park
units of the industrial park development projects
of Ningbo AUX Real Estate and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time for a term commencing on 1
October 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.
The above transactions shall be subject to the
annual cap of RMBO0.8 million (from 1 October 2021
onwards), RMB4.1 million and RMB5.7 million for
the years ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022
and 2023.

2021 Framework Agreement Il

Under the 2021 Framework Agreement II,
Ningbo AUX shall provide (i) management and
maintenance services in respect of the properties
and facilities and (ii) maintenance, cleaning and
security services in respect of unlet industrial
park units of an industrial park owned by Ningbo
AUX Electric and/or its subsidiaries for a term
commencing on 1 October 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB2.1 million
(from 1 October 2021 onwards), RMB2.3 million
and RMB2.3 million for the years ended/ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms or better and according
to the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’'s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the Board
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group and confirming the matters set out in rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company has complied with all applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of those related party transactions which
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which are set out in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
on pages 203 to 204. The other related party transactions set
out therein constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules which are exempt from the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the board

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023

ARBIEMEZEREESZEZEE
B 8530005% ([ BRI B EM BT
BERUIINZ ZEBERRE]) W2REBS
TR A MM 2 BEISHE7405% [FR
EXLEMBAATAFEBRER S NZE
B ASEE 2 HEBER P IEL R
L ZREBMERAESERLERBER X
H ERHINEARASEMBERSERE
RGBHZERREHRITER ETRANE
14A 56 FTE F I8 - AN A A 2 M B X AT 1R
A% ERED 1 2 B AN

BEE RS

AEERARERBREPETZEREH R
PZHBENERE VB RERM 26 R A A
ERmBELEMARENERRFERERZIN
ZERB ARSIV E TR UEMAZTETA
BEREBERAT (HRE203EF204E/ [FE
MERXS] ) MAEEGAMBREMN T
HTHWE HAMENETEMEBR ISR
RARB2BERIRFERERZ (EER
EWHRAFE4AE) ZERFERRET ™
BABUAZTHRERTE -

BB Em
EFHETMEHMERNERERRAFANGE
RERE THFEERBEIERE - BERRBEF
RELBREABRR UNEEETHSHME
TS P A 78 A ) R BUA -

EEEZEEW

BIRE
E

EFH —E-_=F,A=1H

Annual Report 2023 4 ]

109



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AUX International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AUX International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 118 to 207, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED) BREITEE (&)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment for lifestyle entertainment segment

REBREDBAGYE BERRB2ZRE

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(f), 2(h) and 2(i)(ii) and notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements
BREE AR AE2(F)  2(h) ~ 20)(i) R A7 & BT 75 #R &K T a4 % 12

The Key Audit Matter
HARESEE

Among the Group's businesses are a club and two
restaurant and bar outlets in Hong Kong during the
year ended 31 March 2023.
BE_T_=F=A=+—RLFE EBEEEHz%¥
BIRERKEE—RER MEEEMEEPE-

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recorded a segment loss of HK$13.5 million in
respect of the operation of clubbing business
and restaurant and bar outlets. The current
economic environment and prolonged impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 and
hence weak consumer sentiment in the clubbing
and catering sectors have created uncertainties in
relation to the financial performance of the Group's
operation of clubbing businesses and restaurant
and bar outlets. Consequently, management
considered that impairment indicators of property,
plant and equipment existed as at 31 March 2023.
BE_T_=F=A=+—HILFE X BEEERE
BREem EBRMEEMEXBERS ) HEIE13.5
BEET-BAEANNKEREANB T _ZFY)
COVID-I9RBRENKETZE EHEENEMNK
EREEORS B EXKENEM 2B EE
PIEXBOMBRRGRIEEE -BAit EEER
B E BELRER_T-_=F=RA=1+—HF
ERETR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNEStNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the
following:

HPFEDE BEARBZRENETEFERET

I &8

o understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over
the impairment assessment;

. TR 0T il SR (E FY (4 RO B B2 1A BDAE I B0 SR ET A

=i

o evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the allocation of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to each
CGU with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

e ZERTEHEUNER FEEEERRESE
EEUNBERAALRDE BEMREBREREER
ENEEERSELBEMNBR

o assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and with that assistance of
our internal valuation specialist, assessing the
impairment assessment methodology adopted
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

e FMEYEREEEMREMNGRL BHR2RKRHE
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¥ 3 4% BAD 3R S

KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED) BREITEE (&)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment for lifestyle entertainment segment (Continued)

REBREDBAGYE BERRB2RE (&)

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(f), 2(h) and 2(i)(ii) and notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements
BREE AR E2(F)  2(h)  2()(i) R A7 & BT 5 #R &K M a4 % 12

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

Management performed impairment assessments of
property, plant and equipment for each separately
identifiable cash-generating unit (“CGU") with
indication of impairment using the value in use
model and compared the aggregate carrying values
of the respective CGUs, to which the property, plant
and equipment had been allocated, with the net
present values of the cash flow forecasts for each
CGU being assessed. Based on the impairment
assessments, impairment losses of HK$13.1 million
were recognised for the year on property, plant and
equipment in relation to the lifestyle entertainment
segment to write the assets down to their
recoverable amount of HK$Nil.
ERECHRAERAEEREHERETRHNSE A Z A
ReELABN((REELBEMOYE BENMRB
ETRER G URBYE - BEEREBESENEBR
CEABUMNARHNERTIANSRESELENRS
MERANFREETHER - REBEN G XFER
BARREDBOYE MFEMREEZDREREE3
BEET UWHEBEMBRZEAWE BT ET-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRENESTNMERZSEE

o challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow forecasts by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue, future
operating costs and the growth rate with
historical performance, and available industry
information on market data including projected
inflation rates published by external research
institutes;

s BBRHBEABARE BERERA KEKE
ERACBEKLERBNERENABT S BIE
ASITEER BN REBE MO TG
BEEX - HERBEABANBRESRERAEKRA
B RE SRR AR B SHR &

o with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the discount rate used
in the discounted cashflow forecasts by
benchmarking against those of other similar
companies in the same industry;

. EASBEEEROHBET - @B H R FEU
AEETHER AAFTRREREEANPERN
R

° comparing the key assumptions included in the
discounted cash flows forecasts prepared by
management in the prior year with the current
year's performance to assess the accuracy of
the prior year's forecast, making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and whether
these had been considered in the current year
discounted cash flow forecasts and considering
if there was any indication of management bias;

e HKEEEGEEZFRENTRRSREBATES
MERBRERNFENEEETHLE UTHE
FIRRAR D ERE: 7B IR E A RE AT ER N EAE

HHNRE URELEHRETERNFEOIT
BRERERAPEER U EEREHFELEM
BRBREEEAFTRE:



Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 4% BAD 3R S

KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED)

BRESEE (&)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment for lifestyle entertainment segment (Continued)

REBREDBAEWE BERKEZRE (&)

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(f), 2(h) and 2(i)(ii)) and notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements

B EFBEN T2 2(h)  20)(i) RAF &I FEHFZ I T4 12

The key audit matter

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in estimating future
revenue, future operating costs, the growth rate
and the discount rate applied.
FRAeRNEBVANGRIREBENE KA L
HAEMFRKBA - RRGERAR B R LA
PFr®o

We identified assessing impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because
of the significant management judgement required
in making assumptions and estimations, which can
be inherently uncertain and subject to management
bias.

BB FEDE BERREBZRERTERSBREET
TR DHAREEERRLAARSIREEENER
HE HAAETEREAE TR EUELIRREREZ
lRIF PR & -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

obtaining from management a sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and considering the
resulting impact on the impairment charge for
the year and whether there were any indicators
of management bias; and
AMERERGSHIRESREFA P HBERERERN
BRMENIT U EERALBAFEREEREL
WEE ULEEREEMATRBRERBEAM
I B8 &

assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

S2ERTEFRANERFESEAVBHRRPH

BREESEAE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 4% BAD 3R S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 4% BAD 3R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BB ETFEMBERRAENE
£

BAMBR RESAVBERREBESNE
ERREGFRERMEFNERERRARSF
AEFAR YHABRERMEILNZBEES -
AHmEER BT (ELSRE)EL BRILIAN
ARETAREREMAE - RPAGIAARRE
AR HEMEMALTAERABEREE-

EBRRFEZSKFHRE BETRRIBRR (B
AR EL) ETNES EX -EXRERBRL
T 12 I 48 B8 35 3R o $5 SR BR A A JA e R 5F Sk 88 iR
Sl -RAEFEHATMEBIOERLIRA L
TESAVBRRERERBY B REMEL
R PR TE - BB B RVSE AR PR AT AR EEE K

ERE (EBBERD EATBEH0BED B
PHEF T £ AR ERTBERRE
THREREE R

- BRI BN ERME MR Y

BREGFHEEANFERRANE R &5 &
MITEIEF AR LR A RER
ARMEBEENESBE FAEMAERWN
A -ARBMFFARESRER BE B
B EREG - SR BRAEES 2 £
B R RE IR A IAF M E AN E KRR
ARER SN RERERNERMEMNE
K88 AR R At 0 L B o

- TREBHAWNABE  LRHEE

MEEERF BB IS
ZHIMAREBRRER -

EEBEARE

- FHEEEARASFBENREMEREL

SRt AR MERREN SR

Annual Report 2023 £

115



Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 4% BAD 3R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 4% BAD 3R S

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tak Kei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEHER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_=F=ZHA=+—HLEFEUBTRT)

2023 2022
—Eg2-= —_=__
Note $'000 $'000
B 7 FET FAT
Revenue WA 4 397,092 357,239
Other revenue H A 5 14,326 13,573
Other net gain/(loss) Haplzs, (E18) 35 6 12,622 (3,960)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA (61,324) (7,683)
Property cleaning expenses MEBRZRX (73,061) (77,980)
Staff costs B TR A 7(b) (141,257) (158,509)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREHE 7(d) (12,994) (17,731)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥ ¥7H & RHMBR X (3,989) (4,464)
Impairment losses on property, plant M BE &R EHREEE
and equipment (13,057) (11,360)
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHEMAX (4,531) (4,584)
Utilities expenses KEE (11,388) (9,422)
Repair and maintenance expenses HE1E N T R 2 (17,995) (19,743)
Other operating expenses HgERx 7(c) (40,561) (34,543)
Profit from operations REELRF 43,883 20,833
Finance costs A& KA 7(a) (1,741) (2,350)
Profit before taxation BR B A1 Oz A 7 42,142 18,483
Income tax P& 8(a) (18,006) (18,591)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREN(EE) 24,136 (108)
Attributable to: LT AL FEA:
Equity shareholders of the Company PN E i 21,511 12,297
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR M == 2,625 (12,405)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREN(EE) 24,136 (108)
Profit per share gREF 11
Basic and diluted EAREE 4.4 cents Bl 3.2 cents Al

The notes on pages 125 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B R EMERKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_=F=ZHA=+—HLEFEUBTRT)

2023 2022
—FE-= T
$'000 $'000
THERT T
Profit/(loss) for the year EREFN(HE) 24,136 (108)
Other comprehensive income for the year S RHEMEEUE
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEAEE 7 HE B 2
to profit or loss: HA
Exchange differences on translation of BREEBRIMBRFZ
the financial statements of subsidiaries MBmkIELEZE
outside Hong Kong (with nil tax effect) (PXHBZE) (21,763) 10,683
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon NI =PI g4
liquidation of subsidiaries BINEER B 39 -
Other comprehensive income for the year  FARMZEEE (1.724) 10,683
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEZEHKRREE 2,412 10,575
Attributable to: UTALESL:
Equity shareholders of the Company ViN/NEETE £33 g (213) 22,756
Non-controlling interests JEIZE AR fE o 2,625 (12,181)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEZEHKRREE 2,412 10,575

The notes on pages 125 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR R

At 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RIBE-_=ZF=ZA=+—HUABTRTR)

2023 2022
—Eg2-= —_=__
Note $'000 $'000
M T FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WERFEE 12 3,681 4,929
Intangible assets B EE 13 30,335 40,748
Goodwill S 14 55,669 60,067
Non-current time deposit FEBNEATE BATF 3K 18(a) 59,684 62,210
Non-current rental deposit NI E RS 17 3,656 994
Deferred tax assets FEERIEEE 23(b)(ii) 4,455 3,062
157,480 172,010
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "rE 16 1,214 568
Trade and other receivables ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁguﬁl 17 87,644 91,376
Current tax recoverable B ER AT 4 [B] 7% 5% 23(a) - 3,553
Restricted bank deposits X PR HI SR 1T IE X 18(a) 4,967 4,598
Cash at bank and in hand WITHEREFERES 18(a) 286,435 330,233
380,260 430,328
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H fth JE < ;I8 19 115,703 130,196
Contract liabilities ERON=RE 20 74,035 73,707
Lease liabilities HEABRE 21 13,535 12,284
Amount due to the controlling JRE 1F 22 AR PR 3R R IR
shareholder 22 4,650 6,113
Loans from the controlling shareholder R BF R AR & 22 22,060 88,794
Current tax payable Bl HA pE {72 18 23(a) 4,591 7,718
234,574 318,812
Net current assets RBEEFE 145,686 111,516
Total assets less current liabilities EELABERARBAER 303,166 283,526
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loans from the controlling shareholder R B & AR & K 22 52,360 22,060
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 2,681 1,002
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEEE 23(b)(ii) 16,169 16,574
71,210 39,636
NET ASSETS BEEFE 231,956 243,890
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mA BRI R

At 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZFB_=F=A=t BB LTERT)

2023 2022
—E-= T
Note $'000 $'000
M FET F&TT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRGHE

Share capital % 25 24(b) 4,930 4,930
Reserves 1 227,026 227,239

Total equity attributable to EATEERREMG
equity shareholders of the Company #i#=#%E 231,956 232,169
Non-controlling interests FERER - 11,721
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 231,956 243,890

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors RZZEZ=FA=THLKEEZSHERFEE

on 30 June 2023. FzE o
Chan Hon Ki Shen Guoying
RO H A
Director Director
2 EZ

The notes on pages 125 to 207 form part of these financial 28125F207 B MK s A 2 E M ISR = 00 — 3B

statements. 5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAMNBHR
A R va i

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAREERRER
Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
kx  RGEE EARE iERE EXRE 2 ER @ FEREE EREE
(note (note (note (note
2400)  24ci)  24c)iv)  24clii)
(Wt (Wit (Wit (Wit
2400))  24c)i))  24iv)  24(c)ii)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TR FHL FHL FHL TEL FHL FHL FHL FHL
Balance at 1 April 2021 R-E--EMA-Az&H 3,750 177,000 2,500 12413 (539) (59,433) 135,691 = 135,691
Changes in equity for the year ended BE-Z--FZB=t-H
31 March 2022: LEEZRREE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF/ (BB) - - - - - 12,297 12,297 (12,405) (108)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZERE - - - - 10,459 - 10,459 24 10,683
Total comprehensive income for the year FREANGAE - - - - 10,459 12,297 22,756 (12,181) 10,575
Shares issued (note 24(b)) BRTRG (4it24b) 1180 72,542 - - - - B2 - B2
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 23,902 23,902
Transferred to statutory reserve EALTHE - - - 6,115 - (6,115) - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 and RZBZZEZJ=+-BR
1 April 2022 —E-CEMA-BzER 4,930 249,542 2,500 18,528 9,920 (53,251) 232,169 1,721 243,890
Changes in equity for the year ended BE-B-Z%=B=1-8H
31 March 2023: LEECRERD:
Profit for the year ERET = - - - - 21511 21,511 2,625 24,136
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEZELS - - - - (21,724) - (21,724) - (21,724)
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ERGLE - - - - (21,724) 21,511 (213) 2,625 2,412
Derecognition of non-controlling interests ~ MBAREHEE L LBAL
upon liquidation of subsidiaries FERER = = = = = - - (14,346)  (14,346)
Transferred to statutory reserve EALTHE = o = 5,928 = (5,928) - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 RZBZ=f=f=+-H
Zi8 4,930 249,542 2,500 24,456 (11,804) (37,668) 231,956 - 231,956

The notes on pages 125 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n'F EE @ L B %

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_=F=ZHA=+—HLEFEUBTRT)

2023 2022
—E-= —_E=-=
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Operating activities REFTH
Profit before taxation KR % B 35 A 42,142 18,483
Adjustments for: HTISEELAR:
Bank interest income RITHBIRA 5 (9,116) (7,215)
Finance costs B & A AN 7(a) 1,741 2,350
Depreciation e 7(d) 5,561 9,843
Amortisation i 7(d) 7,433 7,888
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEDE - -BE K&
property, plant and equipment Bl (Wm) /BB 6 (4,605) 438
Gain on termination of lease agreement EHEHHELIEMESE
Z W s 7(d) = (12)
Impairment losses/(reversal of B 5 RN IEREBE,
impairment losses) on CREEERE)
trade receivables 7(c) 8,326 (552)
Impairment losses on property, plant LE RN
and equipment VERIEN SR 13,057 11,360
Impairment losses on intangible asset ‘| EEREEE 7(c) - 33
Impairment losses on prepayment LE RN
for property, plant and equipment TET I 2R E S 7(c) = 3,391
COVID-19-related rent concessions JESCOVID-194H
received HeE=R 5 (376) (867)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss PN (W), EiEFsE (6,825) 4,162
Changes in working capital: EELESHRE:
Increase in inventories FEEM (646) (49)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and g5 N E b e kI8
other receivables ()R (13,525) 1,038
Increase in restricted bank deposits 2 PR I #8817 1F FR 38 A0 (706) (887)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and H 5 Kk H AN FRIE
other payables CRiA) /150 (5,810) 8,194
Increase in contract liabilities EHaEEm 5,696 11,394
Cash generated from operations REELRE 42,347 68,992
The People’s Republic of China ExXfMZzHREARLM
(“the PRC") income tax paid (THE])PrEH (21,246) (16,851)
The PRC withholding tax refunded BRME BRI 3,419 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EXNZEEMNEH (142) (454)
Net cash generated from REFTHEERSFE
operating activities 24,378 51,687
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nV-J_\ IE:%/}“:E%

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_=F=ZHA=+—HLEFEUBTRT)

2023 2022
—E-= —_E=-=
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of property, BEW¥ BELZHEMTR
plant and equipment (1,426) (5,629)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE BE KK
plant and equipment Fr 8 5k 18 4,607 =
Payment for the purchase of B EEENR
intangible assets - (35)
Increase in prepayment for property, M BB MR ETE
plant and equipment RERIE 2 3 N = (3,391)
Increase in non-current time deposits 3EEI]HJ§EHW_ el (2,030) (62,210)
Interest received B E 9,116 7,215
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREFTHEE(FTA)
investing activities Re®E® 10,267 (64,050)
Financing activities REES
(Repayment of)/proceeds from loans TRBRRERZ (BFR)
from the controlling shareholder FT 1S 5008 18(b) (29,000) 22,060
Interest on loans from the controlling B 3 fo] 4 AR 5 B 2
shareholder paid 18(b) (2,850) -
Shares issuance BT D - 73,722
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests = 23,902
Capital return to non-controlling REFETIHERER
interests (14,346) -
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHSN RS H D 18(b) (12,911) (13,661)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSHF BB 18(b) (354) (610)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FFA) EL
financing activities ReRH (59,461) 105,413
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁ.ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f’%
cash equivalents W) R E (24,816) 93,050
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYREREEEEY
beginning of the year 330,233 227,198
Effect of foreign exchange MEERSFH 2 ZE
rate changes (18,982) 9,985
Cash and cash equivalents at the FREERRSEEY
end of the year 18(a) 286,435 330,233

The notes on pages 125 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
43 & B 7 3R 3% B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

AUX International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
January 2013 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Cayman Companies Law”). The Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Group”) is principally engaged in operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets, and provision of
property management services and related value-added
services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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126

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(i)(i1)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(h)), are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the shorter of their
economic useful life or

- Properties leased
for own use
terms of the leases

— Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

2 to 10 years

- Leasehold
improvements

Over the unexpired
term of leases

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 3% 5f 1B 2 BB PR A 7

2

BEX

(f)

(9)

SRTBR (&)

NE BERRZE

ME- -BELLHE(BERAEDE.
BEEEEHEMELENERAES
ZE (RMsE2(h) ) IR AR R T &
MR EEEY AR (&M FE2(3)Gi)) °

WENDRBESERGAIERSE
HMEYE RE REREIEE MK
RN EGFFRREME (WE )&
B TR

—tFERNEE
S

L8 S R IR B
HEHR 2
BEE
—-HKE-EER 2E 104
B
—HEMEEE & & 5
ENEEN e

— 58 3E54F

MY MERZXEHEHEE SO H
AERFEHAR ZE B OKAR
EEEERELSZEAOE B
MOBEBAIRTE-BENAER
FHRANKER(NB)BFET

A s
NI

M BERKZERBEORERX
HEMELNKREHNBRIIEER
HEMSRAFRAZARKREE
MER IR ZEXLERHARIE
= AR -

BREEE (BERKRM)
AREBERKRBNETLEEZKRA
R HEE (HEFAIERFERS
BR) ROREE R R (R M aE2()
(i) - A BREE £ P B M f bR 0 B KR
EEHEERRAX -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Customer relationships 4 years
(clubbing business)

— Property management 10 years
contracts and related
customer relationships

— Trademark 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 2(f) and 2(i)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs") on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank equivalents and
trade and other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

2

BEX

(h)

(i)

SRTBR (&)

HEEE (&)

EBEABA (H
EHENBEXRELRRIELSS
YHEARNBEESGNRARER
EMEE ([HEER]) TEEH
FFEHERE-EMBERT HEAR
BNEREETESEN R REHL
REEBFTERAHNEETHRE
EFE-HE— IS REAFT K
REMBEEEANENESES"
BEFABRBM B RS ERFE 165
HERIBBRAAENGMT - EZFS
NoAEEENBEREEES
HEHeEEREEAMEEEBR I
REBHESEENEFRGARE
HERNBaRRAREEHLEAIE
HEMR-

EHZEAMBRART REMEESR
BREAHAE D BEE /BN RS ML
TEARBEZEHONFKRE

FEBBEREERE

(i) £LHBIAEEEFSE
AEBEHRBHKN A EZS
REE(BRRELRRITAS
FEWIANE P N E b YK
H)MEREEBR (IBHE
EBR)ERBERE-

AHMGEEBRZTE
EREEBREREERERX
miEGHE-EEBRAME
EHRe T RE (AAKER
BRVNESHNRASREEANE
BEHEINREREZE
EB)ZHEGE

Annual Report 2023 £

133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4=

b2 0 =]

BF 75 R Ak Y &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

2

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

= fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that

are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

= lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are

expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is
90 days or 360 days past due depending
on whether the financial asset is related
to clubbing and restaurant and bar outlets
operations or property management services.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument'’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to
the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(s)(b)(i) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

= the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(ii)

(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

= investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the CGU to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of CGUs are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

140

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

= Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset's carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 2(i)(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business or in the form
of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(s)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see note 2(l)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

m

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2(u)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the
Group under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme as defined contribution retirement
plan in respect of the operations in Hong
Kong. The employer's monthly contributions
to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contribution relating to the staff in the
PRC are made to the PRC local retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC.

The cost of all these schemes is charged
to profit or loss of the Group for the years
concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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iR A B RS IR R B 5
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(AETRTR)

Hong Kong dollars)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods or the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a gross
basis. In determining whether the Group acts as
a principal or as an agent, it considers whether it
obtains control of the products before they are
transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group's ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as
value added tax or other sales taxes. Revenue
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Sale of food and beverages, tobacco
products, living consumption and
festive products
Revenue from sale of food and
beverages, tobacco products, living
consumption and festive products is
recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of food and beverages, tobacco
products, living consumption and
festive products (Continued)
Prepayments from customers in respect
of the membership schemes operated
by the Group which are considered
to be unearned at the reporting date
are shown as contract liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.

Revenue from club operations
Revenue from club operations
(including entrance fees, cloakroom
fees and event rental income) is
recognised when the services have
been provided to the customers.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised
when:

- the promotion events have been
held; or

- the services have been
rendered, and it is probable
that sponsorship income will be
granted.

Property management services
income

Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised
over the period of services provided to
the property occupants/owners.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(b) Revenue from other income

(i)

(ii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at

the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(t) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(u)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired are translated into HKD at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vij The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
(viii A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated
and based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of a property, plant and equipment may not
be recoverable, the asset may be considered
impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in profit or loss. These property,
plant and equipment are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may
not be recoverable, except for goodwill which is
tested on an annual basis. When a decline of the
assets’ recoverable amounts below the carrying
amounts has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of sales volume and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of sales volume and amount of
operating costs.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

In measuring ECLs for trade and other receivables,
the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions.
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4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets, and provision of property management
services and related value-added services.

Revenue represents the amount received or
receivable from the sale of food and beverages,
tobacco products, living consumption and festive
products revenue from other club operations
(including entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event
rental income), sponsorship income and income
arising from provision of property management
services.

Further details regarding the Group's principal
activities are disclosed in note 4(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by service lines and

4
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geographical location of customers is as Ik
follows:
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with  F B KR EERFE155
customers within the scope HERNNRBEEFEH
of HKFRS 15 Z WA
Revenue from club and restaurant ZFT R B R L&A —
operations* — Hong Kong B 20,973 29,074
Revenue from property MEEBEOWA—
management contracts* H
- Mainland China 319,714 328,165
Revenue from property HiY) X E TR AR 2
management related 18 AR TS B A
value-added services* —HE R
- Mainland China 56,405 -
397,092 357,239
& The revenue is recognised at a point in time. e e A A 3 M BRF ] B FE R ©

# The revenue is recognised over time.

# WA — ER B ] N R R ©

Annual Report 2023 £

155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

4

156

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)
(i)

(ii)

Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
The Group's customer base is diversified
and includes only one customer (2022: Nil)
with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue. During the
year ended 31 March 2023, revenue from
property management contracts derived
from this customer, including revenue from
entities which are known to the Group to be
under common control with this customer,
amounted to approximately $43 million.

Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

For property management services, the
Group recognises revenue as the services are
provided that correspond directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS
15 to its revenue from property management
contracts for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's
existing contracts as these contracts do not
have a fixed term.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business
line and geography. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally
to the most senior executive management of the
Group for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified
three reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Segment

Lifestyle entertainment
— Hong Kong

Property management
— Mainland China

Property management
related value-added
services
— Mainland China

(i)

Business

Sales of food and
beverages and
tobacco products
from operation of
clubbing business
and restaurant and
bar outlets

Provision of property
management services

Sales of living
consumption and
festive products and
provision of household
cleaning services and
repair services in
the community

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of deferred tax assets, current
tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables and lease liabilities attributable to
the sales activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

4

D

(b)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

4
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)
(i)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment
(loss)/profit is "adjusted EBITDA" i.e.
"adjusted earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation”,
is regarded as including
investment income and “depreciation and

taxes,
where “interest”
amortisation” are regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group's
earnings are further adjusted for other
revenue, other net gain/(loss) and items not
specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as directors’ and auditors’ remuneration
and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management
is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income
from bank deposits and interest expense
from borrowings managed directly by the
segments,
impairment losses and additions to non-

depreciation, amortisation and

current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTERT)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WzmEkSIHKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZMHE (HF)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEBEE BEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable REBEE_T_=FR_T__
segments as provided to the most senior FZA=Z+—BLEFEZER
executive management of the Group for Dl ko BRI G A AE
the purposes of resource allocation and ESmTHREREREF@ELN
assessment of segment performance for the SEAHRESH2EREART
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is set X o
out below.
Property management
related value-added
Lifestyle entertainment  Property services
- Hong Kong - Mainland China - Mainland China Total
BYEERRBZ
EERG-FE NEEE-hERY BERK-PERY &zt
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Z¥-=f -E--f CZB-ZE _T--F Z¥-=F -—ZT--F CZ¥ZZE -—E-CF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER TEL TER TAL TER TER TER TEL
Revenue from external customers and ~ fEHNFEFHBBHUAR
reportable segment revenue THREIPZHA 20,973 20074 319,714 328,165 56,405 - 397,092 357,239
Reportable segment (loss)/profit RSP (KB) /%7
(adjusted EBITDA) (83 ZEBITDA) (13,487) (5.291) 64,831 70,158 2,272 - 53,616 64,867
Interest income from bank deposits BIERHSRA 1 1 8,723 6,683 83 - 8,807 6,684
Interest expenses MExi (315) (566) (10) (10) - - (325) (576)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (3,545) (7,342) (8,594) (9,210) = - (12,139) (16,552)
Impairment losses on property, nE BELRREAESE
plant and equipment (13,057) (7,711) - - - - (13,057) (7,711)
Reportable segment assets AR5 DEE 7,928 8294 504,367 442,043 10,174 - 522,469 450,537
Additions to non-current segment assets  AFEAREFERH A PEAE
during the year (note) (Hi#) 16,595 5447 1,048 1,403 - - 17,643 6,850
Reportable segment liabilities TREIPEE 25,188 19158 169,456 188,760 4,504 - 199,148 207918
Note: Additions to non-current segment assets consist of Hiet: REBIRRDOBEEBERE

additions to property, plant and equipment.
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTRR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHEOHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZWMHE (HF)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (ii) THKETEB Wz 5 FEE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and B EEREBEZHEK
liabilities

2023 2022
—E-= —_=_—
$'000 $'000
FHET FAT
Revenue Y 25
Reportable segment revenue and A3 &E 5 SR A KRR &
consolidated revenue (note 4(a)) WA (H7iF4(a)) 397,092 357,239
Profit or loss BRREE
Reportable segment profit REREBEIFER 2
derived from the Group's A] & 5 &6 A
external customers 53,616 64,867
Other revenue H bl A 14,326 13,573
Other net gain/(loss) HA 25, (F518) B 58 12,622 (3,960)
Depreciation and amortisation T 8 N B £ (12,994) (17,731)
Finance costs B & A (1,741) (2,350)
Impairment losses on property, ¥ %¥ B E k& #& R E
plant and equipment E518 (13,057) (11,360)
Unallocated head office and AORBELREERS
corporate expenses (10,630) (24,556)
Consolidated profit before BR B¢ B4R & 08 A
taxation 42,142 18,483
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets T#ﬁ%ﬁ% BE 522,469 450,537
Deferred tax assets REFIBE E 4,455 3,062
Current tax recoverable E'ﬂ LR QCIE 2 - 3,553
Unallocated head office and Ko LD EEE
corporate assets 10,816 145,186
Consolidated total assets MEBELRR 537,740 602,338
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities ARELHEaE 199,148 207,918
Current tax payable BV HA fE 1< £ 18 4,591 7,718
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBIBEE 16,169 16,574
Unallocated head office and AoRBIARTXEE
corporate liabilities 85,876 126,238
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBERE 305,784 358,448
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(CONTINUED)

Wm ko B&EE (&)

DEBRE (AF)
(iii) i EH

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b)
(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information
about the geographical location of (i) the
Group's revenue from external customers
and (ii) the Group’'s property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
("“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The

TRFIE A BE()A & B RSN
EP RGNS R (i) AKEY
B(IFEFRBDEED AE
e zER - TP MELRIR
FITHR (AR 755 3 B WD AR P AE 3
Fo-hE BELREM
EOREFRRBEEZMEM
BEUNEEZERLE HE

REERBEMmME LRAE
Dl B EHE -

geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment, the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill.

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
fMEBEFFARERA REFRBEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=E -—Z--& CZE-ZE <-—ZE-_-F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER THT TER THT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (FT@i) 20,973 29,074 358 1,219
Mainland China B A i 376,119 328,165 89,327 104,525
397,092 357,239 89,685 105,744
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iRE B IS ER AR MY R
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTRR)
5 OTHER REVENUE 5 HtlA
2023 2022
—EZ=F S
$'000 $'000
THER T
Bank interest income AT A B U A 9,116 7,215
Government grants (note) BS R (BIRE) 3,384 4,464
COVID-19-related rent concessions ESCOVID-19/HEHE &
received BR 376 867
Others Hfth 1,450 1,027
14,326 13,573
Note: The amount represents government grants received from Hong Hit: ZeBERARTESEANMRENKRA
Kong and various PRC government authorities in connection with e ERMEEREVBER RAES XM
the fiscal subsidies for providing financial support to enterprises T & & B B B o
and paying wages to the employees.
6 OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS) 6 Hittwz (FR)FE
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-=
$'000 $'000
THERT FHT
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME WMELRE
plant and equipment Was/ (E18) 4,605 (438)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) bE Wz, (B8 ) B 58 8,017 (3,522)
12,622 (3,960)
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in

Hong Kong dollars)

(A TR R)
7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BEAIRER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBE AT FIAC B (FHA) TFIEE:
(crediting):
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
FHExT FH&T
(a) Finance costs (a) BMERKA
Interest on loans from the controlling REERBRRER 2
shareholder F &2 1,387 1,740
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEZFE 354 610
1,741 2,350
(b) Staff costs (b) BEIRA
Contributions to defined contribution A EHFEK
retirement plans (Note) sHEIEFR (M) 21,849 23,206
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe ITERHAMERN 119,408 135,303
141,257 158,509

Note:

No forfeited contributions was used by the employers to reduce
the existing level of contributions for the year ended 31 March
2023 (2022: Nil). The balance available to be utilised as at 31
March 2023 was Nil (2022: Nil).

Wit

HE-_T-_ZFZA=+—HILFE #&E
FREMEH IR ZERUARBEEAZER
HHR(ZEZZF:8) - R-_T=-_=F=A
=t+t—RA - AFERZRREREHRAET (=2

ZoEE)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

7

164

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7

BrELAT A (&)

2023 2022
—E=-= —E- -
$'000 $'000
FET FAET
(c) Other operating expenses (c) HMtEEREX
Impairment losses/(reversal of 2 5 EWHIBRERE
impairment losses) on trade /U EBEEE)
receivables (note 25(a)) (Bit25(a)) 8,326 (552)
Impairment losses on intangible asset BIVEEREER - 33
Impairment losses on prepayment ME BB RREBREN
for property, plant and equipment FIEZREER - 3,391
Auditors’ remuneration % EAD = B
— audit services — B RS 2,535 2,568
— audit related services —HEEZEBE R 726 726
— non-audit services —EEZIRTE = 41
Office expenses WIE 1,391 2,973
Entertainment expenses EEBEE 2,295 1,986
Travelling expenses =IRE 1,305 1,766
Legal and professional fees FEMEBEEER 3,711 3,016
Security costs REE 2,812 1,952
Gardening costs L EES 4,109 4,424
Government surcharges BB & 2,237 2,036
Bank charges and credit card RITFEBREATR
commissions ke 1,267 1,347
Community event costs HERESEF 2,524 2,241
Other Hb 7,323 6,595
40,561 34,543
(d) Other items (d) HmEE
Depreciation charge (note 12) wEX L (Hit12)
- owned property, plant and —-BEDE BB
equipment e 1,705 1,628
- right-of-use assets —FHEEE 3,856 8,215
5,561 9,843
Amortisation (note 13) i (Hat13) 7,433 7,888
Cost of inventories sold (note 16) SEFERKAKN
(Ktit16) 61,324 7,683
Gain on termination of HEEmZERIE
lease agreement i 2 & 2 Wk - (12)
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

8

INCOME TAX

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8

REBRBERTHAER

Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) HGEBEXRPHIFFEBHRIE:
profit or loss represents:
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-=
$'000 $'000
FHET FAT
Current tax - PRC Corporate BB E-FEE
Income Tax Fre®
Provision for the year FEREG 18,815 17,730
Deferred tax EEHIE
Reversal and origination of ERNERBRRES
temporary differences (809) 861
18,006 18,591

Pursuant to the current rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), subsidiaries of the Group are not subject
to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, as the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong either
sustain a loss for taxation purpose or do not
generate any assessable income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
the PRC's statutory income tax rate is 25% (2022:
25%).

Among the branches of Ningbo AUX Property
Management Services Co., Ltd ("Ningbo AUX")
in the PRC, the Chengdu Branch was entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% under the Enterprise
Income Tax Preference Policies for the Western
Development. The directors are of the view that it
is highly probable that the Chengdu Branch will be
entitled to the same preferential tax rate and 15%
is adopted in estimating the tax provision for the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

RERAESEHEREBRZAHES ([R
BRAEE])HNRERI AR
AEBENMBRRBARZ S REE
[ AN R PTISHL

AR AEEREENNE QT
HEMNMEHEEE REELMT
MERBTBA HBEET=_=F
F_E =A==+ —HILFE
WRREEHBEREAREEFNE
FIEL -

BIEFRBECEMSHE PEETE
MR AB255% (2T - —4F:
25%) o

REFRTHIVWERBBER QA
([ERREE]) NP 2D RARIF -
RED RRBIBAISAFEN D ZE
FrieMEBERREEZBISBHNE
BEURE-BEERARTSRAREAE
A ZAREEERET KA
BBATBHBEE T -_=FK _-F
A=+t BLFEZHE
Bt o
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nV'F

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

8 INCOME TAX

BB WK

Hong Kong dollars)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

166

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

Management considered that the retained profits
of subsidiaries in the PRC might be distributed in
the foreseeable future. Consequently, deferred
tax liabilities of $8,585,000 (2022: $6,387,000) for
temporary differences relating to undistributed
profits of subsidiaries were recognised as at 31

March 2023.

Reconciliation the between tax expense and

(b)

REBEBERTNAES (&

REBRERTNAEHRE: (&)

”‘IEJE BT

REERTEOMNE R

uﬁ:_f]ﬁiﬂ%% @E{% 5| /ﬁnﬂ ° K

lit ' BLAT B R B AR D

Jf&mf'ﬁﬁ %ﬁﬁ’\]%ﬁ

BEER_ZE-_=ZF=A=+—H
T DA BE SR A 7 18 & &8,585,000/%8
7T (ZFT = 4 :6,387,000/8 7T ) °

RERBRFENREARIRE

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: mAHERWT
2023 2022
—EB- =5 —E-F
$000 $'000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation B 7 B i A 42,142 18,483
Notional tax on profit before taxation, F& Al & F1 &) 4 & B 18
calculated at the rates applicable to (BRI AR R
profits in the jurisdictions concerned MEARETE 12,446 7,494
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIHIFHAT MM EZE 1,817 7,440
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBWANT B E (1,834) (379)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary  KRHEREH ZEHTIE
differences A 2,002 965
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERKABIEEE
recognised R 3,153 2,344
Tax effect of profits subject to EXHBEEER R 2T
preferential tax rate in the PRC WG & (2,245) (2,025)
Tax effect of withholding tax on HAPBIME AT RDIK
undistributed profits of i A1 8 T8 I A 59
the PRC subsidiaries M E 2,667 2,752
Actual tax expense BERHRERYS 18,006 18,591
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

ESHMH

2 BEB R AEH EI8IMNIE R A (H
BESMRER RS 2NEBENESY
B 2R T B

2023
—EC=F
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’  allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
kA4 R E
ik REF MiETEA e st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TERT TET TERT TERT TET
Chairman and executive director IERUTES
Zheng Jiang BT 2,000 - - - 2,000
Executive directors HITES
Chan Hon Ki BEH - 1,788 - 18 1,806
Shen Guoying EIES = = = = =
Chen Lingxiao (appointed with GER (§-F-—F
effect from 1 September 2022) NA—HEEZ(F) - - - - -
Liang Songluan (resigned with REE (R-F-=F
effect from 6 May 2022) AAHERE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTEE
Poon Chiu Kwok ERE 250 = = - 250
Bau Siu Fung g 250 - - = 250
Lou Aidong 2FR 250 = = = 250
Total @it 2,750 1,788 - 18 4,556

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, there
were no amounts paid during the financial year or
receivable by directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the listed issuer; and no compensation
paid during the financial year or receivable by directors
or past directors for the loss of office as a director
of any member of the Group or of any other office
in connection with the management of the affairs of
any member of the Group distinguishing between
contractual and other payments.

HE-_ZS-=FfR=-F__F=A=+—
HIEFE ESEAMBREE AL ES A
S EUERRIBIEAE A ETEIT AR
REMA LT BT ARA T - RN K
FE BRITOREMMSRIN BERAE
EE KB AR ZEBBER AR K EME
HERERAEETMNKE AR EE 2B
MBS ENESRKATES 2 EAE

f&e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

9

168

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

9 EEFM (&)

2022
—ECCF
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e RH RREE
EEHe RN RN 7 it
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
FET FET FET TER TAR
Chairman and executive director TERYTES
Zheng Jiang &1 2,000 - - - 2,000
Executive directors HITES
Chan Hon Ki BFEH - 1,716 - 18 1,734
Shen Guoying YHEES - - - - -
Liang Songluan (resigned with e (R=F-=#
effect from 6 May 2022) FANHEFE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIXHTES
Poon Chiu Kwok ERE 250 - - - 250
Bau Siu Fung g 250 - - - 250
Lou Aidong E2ER 250 - - - 250
Total @5t 2,750 1716 - 18 4,484
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nv-.ﬁ

BB WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

10

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two of them (2022: two) were directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of other three (2022: three)
individuals are as follows:

10

REHMAL

hAaRERFMALTFMBAL(ZT =
FME)RES  HHMNMEoh HE -
ﬁﬁﬁ F(ZBZZF =ZF) ATWFHM

REEWT

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
FHExT F&T
Salaries and other emoluments HehEMRE 2,642 2,381
Discretionary bonuses BB IELL - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 128 134
2,770 2,515
The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals —HR(ZEZZF ZR)BEaEFMALHN
with the highest emoluments are within the following HHMEUATHENR :
bands:
2023 2022
—E_=F —EF-=
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A&
$Nil to $1,000,000 T 021,000,000 T 1 3
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/ JT 2 -
During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no B E-_=FfK_TE-_—"F=ZA=+—

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest

AEFE AKETEXNEAME TR

FREFMAL ABRSIEMAREEK
TEEBER R (E -

paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

11 PROFIT PER SHARE

170

(a)

(b)

1 BRER

Basic profit per share (a) BREFRER
The calculation of basic profit per share is based BREXRNGNDERAAA LB
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity % # 2% IR 3R FE 16 & F121,511,000%
shareholders of the Company of $21,511,000 (2022: T (ZEZZF : E51812,297,000%
$12,297,000) and the weighted average number of 7o) A REFERND FETEBRMET
492,984,000 (2022: 388,181,000) ordinary shares in I8 £5492,984,0000% (—ZF = =4 :
issue during the year. 388,181,0008% ) &+ & Fr 15
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEFTRE
2023 2022
—E-= —F-Z
Number of Number of
shares shares
IR # B Mt g B
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at REYEETERKR
the beginning of the year 492,984 374,984
Effect of share issued (note 24(b)) B &EITRMN 2%
(Ht5t24(b)) - 13,197
Weighted average number of P4 AR 3 AR N #
ordinary shares at the end 19 AR B
of the year 492,984 388,181
Diluted profit per share (b) BREFER

The diluted profit per share is the same as basic
profit per share as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

Hong Kong dollars)

12 X -BERSKE

Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEYHIER
Properties Furniture,
leased for  fixtures and Leasehold Motor
own use equipment improvements vehicles Total
fEE A KA %8 HENE
RENE &L %8 "E @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Cost: RA:
At 1 April 2022 RZE-_FMA—-H 49,268 24,999 38,234 211 112,712
Additions NE 16,217 548 804 74 17,643
Disposals HE = (2,776) (1,165) (9) (3,950)
Exchange adjustments EXH% (60) (758) (143) (14) (975)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=F=R=+-H 65,425 22,013 37,730 262 125,430
Accumulated depreciation EHFERAESE:
and impairment losses:
At 1 April 2022 R-E-"FMA—H 47,890 21,549 38,234 110 107,783
Charge for the year FRFER 3,856 857 804 44 5,561
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) HEEE (Hi12b) 13,057 - - - 13,057
Written back on disposals HERHA = (2,775) (1,165) (8) (3,948)
Exchange adjustments [ (48) (506) (143) (7 (704)
MMl RoPIZEEAZI-R s s wme e
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2023 WZE-=F=fA=+-H 670 2,888 = 123 3,681
Cost: ﬁmﬁ
At 1 April 2021 WZEZ-FmA-AH 44,703 20,751 36,452 164 102,070
Additions NE 4,778 4,240 1,749 40 10,807
Disposals HeE (245) (280) - - (525)
Exchange adjustments EiAZ kY] 288 3 7 360
At 31 March 2022 WZZZZ%=A=1-H 49,268 24,999 38,234 21 12,712
Accumulated depreciation B RERAESE:
and impairment losses:
At 1 April 2021 RZZ--4NA-A 33,360 17,204 36,198 Al 86,833
Charge for the year ERFEY 8,215 1,319 273 36 9,843
Impairment losses (note 12/b)) REBE (HE1206) 6,538 3,091 1,731 - 11,360
Written back on disposals I B HOR (242) (225) - - (467)
Exchange adjustments RS 19 160 32 3 214
Az RE®--FA=f7H ey A L. . WeesT
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2022 W-E-—#=A=+-H 1,378 3,450 = 101 4,929
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

nV'F

(AETRTR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

172

(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment losses (b) HEEEFE
The amount mainly represented the impairment ZeRETERABEETRES I
losses on property, plant and equipment in relation MME - -BERRKENREERE
to lifestyle entertainment segment of $13,057,000 13,057,000 T (Z 2= %
(2022: $7,711,000). 7,711,000/ 7T) °
During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, BE_ZT_=FKk_ZT__F=H
the operation of clubbing business and restaurant ET—BLEFE SMEBARE
and bar outlets continued to be loss-making. BERBEFMTHEBHERSE
The segment loss (i.e. adjusted earnings before B-gMEBREERBEMNTS
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation) ESFEANEE (KRBT B FE -
of the clubbing business and restaurant and bar & R SH AT & ) &13,487,0007
outlets for the year amounted to $13,487,000 o (ZF = —4 5,291,000/ 7T ) °
(2022: $5,291,000) and the Group has assessed the mMASECDTHMEEDE BE K
recoverable amount of the relevant property, plant HERA YR SR B FEE
and equipment. As a result, impairment losses of 113,057,000 T (=T — 4 :
$13,057,000 (2022: $7,711,000) were recognised 7,711,000 L) E RERE Bam Rk N
as "impairment losses on property, plant and BRBIME BELFZEREE
equipment” in the consolidated statement of profit Bl ARDZEME BEREE
or loss to reduce the carrying amount of these HAREEZE E—Mﬁl@i%ﬁ =BT (=
property, plant and equipment to their recoverable T8 Al kB ® %EE'J
amount of $Nil (2022: $Nil). The estimates of B IR EFEREEERGE K
recoverable amount were based on the value- FHRERERILA% (ZEZF:
in-use model, in which the cash flows were BRI RERR-PIAFHR XN
discounted using discount rate of 14% (2022: 13%). RUMAARBRELEEMEL E
The discount rate used was pre-tax and reflected B2 OB 0E P T AR B A0 S E R R o
specific risks relating to the operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets.
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) FHAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use EREEERBREERMNMIEN
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: REEESTAT :
2023 2022
—E-= —E-C
$'000 $'000
TER FET
Properties leased for own use, EERMEEY ¥iZ
carried at depreciated cost ER AT IR 670 1,378
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nV'F

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BB WK

Hong Kong dollars)

(CONTINUED)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

12

The analysis of expense/(income) items in relation
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use

assets by class of underlying asset:

Properties leased for own use

FEHEEERMABEE
BRIMITEER
FERNEED R

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a))

Expense relating to short-term leases

COVID-19-related rent concessions
received (note 5)

HEBEBEZME
(Btat7(a))

HEHAEEEMN N

B COVID-19/0 M 4

(c) HREEE (&)
FEETEIANEEEE@ENI L
(WA EBEDIAT

2023 2022
—E_-=5F —E-
$'000 $'000
FET FABT
3,856 8,215
354 610
820 1,324
(376) (867)

BE(HiE5)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were $16,217,000 (2022: $4,778,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under renewed agreements for a club
entered into during the year.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 18(c) and 21, respectively.

The Group has early adopted the Amendment
to HKFRS 16, Leases, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2022 in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, and
applies the practical expedient to all eligible rent
concessions received by the Group. Further details
are disclosed below.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its premises for club, bars and restaurants and
office premises through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3
years.

N {E A AEE E G IN16,217,00078 7T
(_$11$ :4,778,00058 7T ) ° %
RBFTBEFRNEETSMBELHTE
NWERHESER-

HERSRLAEADNLEAESR
(EGOER- GRS ﬁﬁ’ %'J%ZEAIZHIW()
21 ¢

NEE D g E E2022963A318 1
Eﬁmﬁﬁk%&%hi%imﬁﬁﬁﬂ%

WEEBIFIGRAE (BRI A) = F
::ﬁ-c/\ﬁ_‘/‘EZ/fﬂ?COV/DJQ
HEHcER BERTFRYEAEE
BRATEAERESERERAAT

BEITE

EE A EEYE
AEECZEHERZRBERS
THENERN AMERE SR BT

NEBONSHWARBAE L FHE
BRI BHME=F-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

174

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Properties leased for own use (Continued)

One of the leases includes an option to renew the
lease for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension
periods are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities. The potential exposure to these
future lease payments is summarised below:

12 X -BERSKHE (A)

(c)

EREEE (&)
EFERHHEEYE (&)
HP—HHEERE -—HEER &
MAANBEREBEE —RERH-
RATHERLT AEEMAHEE
MEREFRUEATHAKETERN
BHREER UEMEEREE -
SENEEAFHERTAELR
RETEEREEE -WAKER
RAENMRBAKETHEEREER
A TH B B R R TH B A 3RS A A
AHEEBZR -ZERKEEN
REEER BB RN T

recognised (discounted)

Lease liabilities

Potential future lease
payments under
extension options
not included in lease
liabilities (undiscounted)

FHAHEBBNER

BANHERE BEETEEAREENNK
(EBR) (RER)

2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=f % —E-=f Z—EZ_C
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER TER TER TER
Premises for club - Hong Kong e —-FE 19,231 21,647 21,600 24,000

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
the Group received rent concessions for its
premises for club and restaurant and bar outlets
in the form of a discount on fixed payments as
a result of severe social distancing and travel
restriction measures introduced to contain the
spread of COVID-19.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTRR)
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BREE
Property
management
contracts
and related
Customer customer
relationships relationships Trademark Total
NEEELRN
REEBE
BEREZ B% [k @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THT TER FET TET
Cost: BA:
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMA—H 1,174 76,976 - 78,150
Addition NE - - 35 35
Exchange adjustments I A% - 3,185 - 3,185
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=A=+—H 1,174 80,161 35 81,370
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-—FWA—H 1,174 80,161 35 81,370
Disposal & - - (35) (35)
Exchange adjustments IE 5 - (5,870) - (5,870)
At 31 March 2023 W-F-=#=fA=+-H 1,174 74,291 - 75,465
Accumulated amortisation ZrtEERAESR:
and impairment losses:
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FMA—H 1,174 30,150 - 31,324
Charge for the year FREX - 7,887 1 7,888
Impairment losses REER - - 33 33
Exchange adjustments AR - 1,376 1 1,377
At31March2022 R=F-_—F=A=t-8 174 ¥4 8 M0
At 1 April 2022 RZZE-ZFWA—A 1,174 39,413 35 40,622
Charge for the year FRRA% - 7,433 - 7,433
Written back on disposal o B R - - (39) (35)
Exchange adjustments Rz - (2,890) - (2,890)
At31March2023  R=%-=%=A=t-A 1074 9% 180
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=+—H = 30,335 = 30,335
At 31 March 2022 R-F__#=H=t—H = 40,748 = 40,748
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AEEBHEBERAF AGEESRNIITE
“depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated NS A

statement of profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

14

176

GOODWILL 14 BHE

$'000

THERT
Cost: A :
At 1 April 2021 W-_E-Z—FmMH—H 64,941
Exchange adjustments I 3 AR 2,387
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZEZZF=A=+—HRK

—E-—_%WA—H 67,328
Exchange adjustments I X H (4,398)
At31March 2023 L REEIEF=A=ATAE 62,930
Accumulated impairment losses: it mEEE:
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 RZE-_—FWMA—HB - T
and 31 March 2023 —A=+—RA ZE-=FMA—HK

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, SEISRSAZIZA . el
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=%=A=+—H 55,669
At 31 March 2022 R-ZZE-_—_%=A=+—H 60,067

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

The Group's goodwill arose from the acquisitions of
Ningbo AUX in May 2017 and Mini Club Hong Kong
Limited (“Mini Club”) in April 2019.

The goodwill is attributable to (1) the workforce of
Ningbo AUX and the potential growth of the property
management industry in the PRC; and (2) the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth and the assembled
workforce of Mini Club.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)
14 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 14 B8 (&)

BERENRESELEANRERNR

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

(Continued)
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified as
follows:

()
BESREAEEM B SRS EEEN
mF :

2023 2022

$000 $'000

THERT FET

Property management business MEERERS 55,669 60,067
Operation of restaurant and bar outlets* E B ROBREPI - -
55,669 60,067

* The recoverable amount of the related CGU was lower than the

carrying amount of it and therefore the related goodwill was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Property management business

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using estimated weighted average growth rates of
3% (2022: 3%) which is not higher than the forecasts
included in industry reports. The growth rate used does
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using discount rates of 21% (2022: 21%). The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the operation
of property management business continued to be
profit-making and thus no impairment indicator for the
respective goodwill has been identified.

* HEREAENNTRESERRER
B RALEAEBEERBE_T_—F=4
=t RUEFEREAE

VES-S-EL 3
ReELBNMAT B BEERFERER
FTEHSH ZAHEHERABREEREEMEZ
hFERBEE GRS AE - BAR
FHNBRSRENFEAG NEEEER
RIB (T —F: 3% )HE - EF5R
TERETFNBR -FTAERETEBA
ReELBNEEMEEBNRBFHIZ
RE-BFBeREUATBREERNR (2T ==
F 2% )R -FMANMBEERAEBA ¥R
MARRE D E0 2 B B e Rk o

BE T =F=-A=1—BLFE'Y
XERFXBLBEEBESRSAEN HiLiEH
B IR RE

Annual Report 2023 £ 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

15

178

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

15

RBRANKRE

TREFIHAKEXRE BEEXLRARE
BEARFEZMBRARAZHBE KA EHNHA
SN s B A D 2 BB B E B

Proportion of ownership interest

AR LA
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Group's Held Held
establishment issued and effective by the by a
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
B3l A BRTR rEEZ LN WEQE
ARER BRIREELH BHRRAFE BRER BE BE TEEH
New Pride Corporate Limited* BVI 101 shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
EERTES 1018 100% 100% - REZR
Cheerful Raise Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Provision of
administrative service
to group companies
ERARAF B 1’ 100% - 100% MEEARRETHER
R
Club Kingdom The Central Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Holding of trademarks
Group Limited
Bk 1R 100% - 100% HEER
Success Deal Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Operation of clubbing
business
B 15 100% - 100% @REEHEH
Starry Chance Limited® Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BEERRAF B 15 100% - 100% HAZK
Ningbo AUX** The PRC 5,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Provision of property
management services
ERERH i 5,000,008 100% - 100% RENXEZRSE
Po Tai Holdings Limited* Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ERERBRAA) Bk 1 100% - 100% RELZK
Legend Management Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% = 100%  Operation of restaurant
and bar outlets
3 10,0003 100% = 100% @HEREREBEMT
Ningbo Po Tai Hengmao The PRC 10,000,000 shares 100% = 100%  Sales of living
Trading Co. Ltd* consumption
EREREXEHFERAA HE 10,000,000 100% = 100% #HEEERM
& Ningbo AUX and Ningbo Po Tai Hengmao Trading Co. Ltd are the * ERBRREREZFEXESERRAT

wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC. The company name
in English are the direct translation of the registered Chinese
name for the purpose of identification.

& KPMG are not the statutory auditors of these companies.
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—RARPEZIEBECE - PXRBAEHE
MR E 2 BREE  EHER -

i EFHEHMEBALIEZERAMNEE R
SEM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R E
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTRR)
16 INVENTORIES 16 FE
2023 2022
—E-=fF =
$'000 $'000
TER FHET
Food and beverages and other operating B i R E A& AT
items for club operations and ERIBENKEIER
restaurant and bar outlets 430 568
Living consumption and festive products for E¥) ¥ &2 5 AL E
property management related value-added ~ BRAIEREM A/EH R K&
services # A E 784 -
1,214 568
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAEAILFABSONFESES A0
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: ™
2023 2022
—E_=5F —=E-=
$000 $'000
TER FHT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 61,324 7,683
17 NON-CURRENT RENTAL DEPOSITS AND 17 3 Eﬂfﬁ HERESUREGRHEM
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FE W FX IR
2023 2022
—E-=fF = —
$'000 $'000
TER FHET
Non-current assets RBEE
Rental deposits HEZS 3,656 994
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables, net of B 5 EWHKIE  MREE
loss allowance (note) BiE () 71,395 72,386
Deposits, prepayments and B FARRIER
other receivables E th & R IE 16,249 18,990
87,644 91,376
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

17 NON-CURRENT RENTAL DEPOSITS 17 ¥HHHBEERSUNEGZREM

AND TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES PEWRIE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Note: At 31 March 2023, trade and other receivables of the Group Mt RZZEZ=F=ZRA=+—H XrEEZEHK
included amounts due from entities controlled by Mr. Zheng E b 8 U 3R TE B 3 FE U AR A R AR AR SR R ER
Jian Jiang, the Company’s controlling shareholder, of $3,452,000 Jf‘ﬁi?x%‘lﬁ@i?“&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%é T8
(2022: $3,177,000) and entities over which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang 2B 5Bl A3,452,0008 T (— &2 = =
has significant influence, of $2,785,000 (2022: $5,303,000). The 3,177,000 7t ) & 2,785,000 £ (=& = =
amounts represent property management fees receivable arisen £ :5,303,0008 )  ZKBEARBEEBB
in the ordinary course of business. BREEZEEYEERE-

The amount of the Group's deposits, prepayments AEBBEHEN —FRBESBERAEAX

and other receivables expected to be recovered or WiEe FAMNRIELEMERRIEN SR

recognised as expense after more than one year is £33,656,00078 7T ( —F = — 5 : 994,000/8

$3,656,000 (2022: $994,000), which mainly represent o) EFEEARASEEemcHER

rental deposits for a club of the Group (2022: rental C(ZTEZZF AEERRENERE

deposits for office premises and restaurants of the BoHERe) MEEMES REME

Group). All of the other trade and other receivables are WA BN —F R E S R AR -

expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

Ageing analysis SRR o M

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing HEREHR FAES REMEKRFKE
analysis of trade receivables (which are included in trade BB 5 RUGRIERE R R RINKR EE
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and BEENRERDTOT

net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022
—_Eg2-= —_=_—

$'000 $'000

TET FET

Within 1 month —@AR 33,883 29,230

Over 1 month to 3 months BE—EAZE=@A 10,049 11,157

Over 3 months to 6 months HBE=—EA=ZE~EA 6,644 7,400

Over 6 months to 1 year BBEANEAZE—F 9,391 9,886

Over 1 year —F U E 11,428 14,713

71,395 72,386

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit AEEEERRERESRRFEELENE
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note BER z#E— S B E R 5E25()

25(a).
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

Hong Kong dollars)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 ®R &

RESEEVWURAEMRS

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION REER
(a) The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as (a) BRERBSEBYHIHFWMT:
follows:
2023 2022
—EZ=4F — T
$'000 $'000
FHET FHT

Deposits with banks and cash on hand #R{TFHR K FEIRE 351,086 397,041

Restricted bank deposits (note (i) ZREIRITIFR (A 220)) (4,967) (4,598)

Non-current time deposit FERNEATE HATF X (59,684) (62,210)

Cash and cash equivalents in the meRenerNAE R

consolidated cash flow statement BEeEEBY 286,435 330,233

Notes: HaF -

0] Restricted bank deposits represent the cash collected from (i) STREBTERIERDEES ¥£F
property occupants/owners for the repair and maintenance WHRRE EFRERERINFE 2 #(E
fund maintained by Ningbo AUX. EREED-

(i) Included in deposits with banks and cash in hand of the (i) RZEBE-Z=ZF#=ZA=Z=+—H &%
Group, $280,656,000 (2022: $263,306,000) are denominated ENROTEARERFRERETBBE
in Renminbi at 31 March 2023. Renminbi is not a freely 280,656,000 0 (ZF — Z4F :
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out 263,306,000 7T.) - AL AR EHE - A
of mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions RETRAEALBNEE MESK
imposed by the Government of the PRC. AR B K [ B M 28 52 Fh B IERURT SR BR il o

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEETHFELEEBNYHER

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as
cash flows from financing activities.

TREFMAEBEREEEMEED
BEEZY pEReRIIEREEH-
MEFHAEENBERREMNE
EREIRKRREREFFRAEE
RERERERNDEEREED
FEANRSRENZSTAaE-
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18
INFORMATION

182

OTHER CASH FLOW
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilitie
financing activities (Continued)

s arising from (b)

BekEEEEYWURAEMARSE
REER (&)

MEZHRELERENYKR (A)

Loan from the
controlling
shareholder and
amount due to

the controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REERRR
EXREM
ERBREFE HESRE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
TER TER TER
(note 22) (note 21)
(H&22) (H&21)
At 1 April 2022 R-E-—FWMA—-H 116,967 13,286 130,253
Changes from financing cash flows: RERERED:
Repayment of loans from BRREZRBRRER
the controlling shareholder (29,000) - (29,000)
Interest on loans from EXNREERBREERHHNE
the controlling shareholder paid (2,850) - (2,850)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EREReM AL S = (12,911) (12,911)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERNAERSMAEHS = (354) (354)
Total changes from financing cash flows BEBRsREEDRE (31,850) (13,265) (45,115)
Exchange adjustments ERRE (7,434) - (7,434)
Other changes: Hit#5
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) FEXHE (H7#7(a) 1,387 354 1,741
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRRTUHEEE N
into renewed leases during the year HEARE - 16,217 16,217
COVID-19-related rent concessions received EBCOVID-19iEEH L ER - (376) (376)
Total otherchanges _ AwE®e® 1387 16195 17,582
At 31 March 2023 R=-E-=f=ZHA=+-H 79,070 16,216 95,286
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTRR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

BekEEEEYWURAEMARS
REER (&)

MEZHRELEEENYR (A)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities (Continued)

Loan from the
controlling
shareholder and
amount due to

the controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REZBRRE
BN R ER
AR AR R 5B HE&E @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
FAEL FAEL FAEL
(note 22) (note 21)
(Wiz22) (Hiz21)
At 1 April 2021 R-E--£WNA-H 89,639 23,044 112,683
Changes from financing cash flows: RERERED:
Proceeds from loan from REERREEROFAETE
the controlling shareholder 22,060 - 22,060
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEREEREMASED - (13,661) (13,661)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERNHEERSHNF S - (610) (610)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSeREEHATE 22,060 (14,271) 7,789
Exchange adjustments EXAR 3,528 7 3,535
Other changes: Hit %8
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) FBIH (Hit7() 1,740 610 2,350
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FREFTUHESE NN
into renewed leases during the year HEEE - 4,778 4,778
Decrease in lease liabilities from R ILRERHET
termination of lease agreement BYHEEAERD - (15) (15)
COVID-19-related rent concessions received ~ E{SCOVID-191EEH ¢ ER - (867) (867)
Total otherchanges ___ AtbE®e® 1740 4506 6,246
At 31 March 2022 R-FE-—#=f=+—H 116,967 13,286 130,253
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FA I RARM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 B2 RELSZENURHEMRS
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION REEFR (F)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHAEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for REEFARERERTHRERS
leases comprise the following: FBAT&IE:
2023 2022
—E-=F S
$'000 $'000
THER FET
Within operating cash flows EREREMA (820) (1,324)
Within financing cash flows ERERERA (13,265) (14,271)
(14,085) (15,595)
These amounts relate to the following: ZESRETIEIBEER:
2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-_—
$'000 $'000
TERT FHET
Lease rentals paid EfEE 14,085 15,595
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 EZRHMEMNKE
2023 2022
—ECZ=HF —F=-=
$'000 $'000
TER FHET
Trade creditors B 5B 27,053 29,944
Deposits received from property owners/ RKEMEXE LR
occupants WEZ & 18,364 26,242
Receipts on behalf of utilities companies NS YN & 16,544 17,728
Amounts due to related parties JE A B B 5 R IB 1,807 2,040
Other payables and accrued charges HMERNRIBEREFTER 51,935 54,242
115,703 130,196
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20

(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year or are repayable on demand. HERRIREREE-

The amounts due to related parties represent balances
due to entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the
Company's controlling shareholder, which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

19 ESREMENRIE (&)

BHMBAES REMENRELR —FA

J& A~ BB Bt 77 AR IR (EL 48 B MO 2 ) 4R B B
REBTRAEZRHNERBZEH) RER
e RERAR—FAEE-

BE S ENFIARER BHNRE DT

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing HEREHR FTABZ R EMENKIE
analysis of trade creditors (which are included in trade

and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as T

follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F —E=-=
$'000 $'000
FHET FH&T
Within 3 months =EAR 14,029 14,819
Over 3 months to 6 months BE=EAZE@EA 9,590 11,131
Over 6 months to 1 year BANEAZ—F 2,225 2,587
Over 1 year —F LA 1,209 1,407
27,053 29,944
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20 EHEE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —EF=-=
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Billing in advance of performance TE W B 4 3R 18 74,035 73,707
The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended BE_ZT_=F=A=+T—RHLFE "R
31 March 2023 that was included in the contract —E-—FOA-HFFAGHEEEHD

liabilities balance at 1 April 2022 was $73,707,000 (2022:

$59,675,000).

B RS % A73,707,0008 T (=&
— Z 4% 59,675,000/ 7T) °
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R e B R R MY EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BT ERR)
21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HE&EE
At 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—H BAEENHE
follows: E8BEOT:
2023 2022
—E-= —_FE-_—
$'000 $'000
T FiBT
Within 1year %N Lt . 1228
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHREMFA 2,681 1,002
16,216 13,286
22 LOANS FROM THE CONTROLLING 22 XEHEZRRRERRESER

186

SHAREHOLDER AND AMOUNT DUE TO THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The loans from the controlling shareholder are
unsecured.

At 31 March 2023, the current portion of the loans is
interest-free and repayable within one year. The non-
current portion of the loans is interest-bearing at 2% per
annum and repayable in August 2025.

At 31 March 2022, the current portion of the loans was
interest-bearing at 2% per annum and repaid in August
2022. The non-current portion of the loans was interest-
free and repayable after one year but within two years.

The amount due to the controlling shareholder,

representing the interest payable, is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

(Expressed in

(ABTTERT)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23

Hong Kong dollars)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

REMBRRERFPHAER

Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HZAEMEBERRRDPOBHER:
of financial position represents:
2023 2022
—E-=£F —_F-_—
$'000 $'000
FET FHT

Provision for PRC Corporate

FATBEEEMERER

Income Tax for the year 18,815 17,730
Provisional PRC Corporate PR B EMFN

Income Tax paid (14,224) 10,154)

4,591 7,576

Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEFEMNEHR
__provision relating to prior years Bfemek SO
Current tax payable FEAT BN HA R 18 4,591 7,718
Current tax recoverable — B HA AT 4 [B] 7 5% —

PRC withholding tax o B FE AR - (3,553)
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 S BMRRERTPAEH (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) CHRIAEELEHRE(EE) /8!
(i)  Movement of each component of deferred (i) EEZHBEFE(BEE) BEFHA
tax (assets)/liabilities 2 585 By B
The components of deferred tax (assets)/ REE TR R R A ER AR
liabilities recognised in the consolidated JERIE (B E) /A EERKE
statement of financial position and the DERRFRNEEMT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment
losses on Amortisation Undistributed
trade Accrued  of intangible profits of
receivables expenses assets  subsidiaries Total
ESRNHE WEAR
HWHERE EHER BREEEE  RIWEN @zt
$/000 $/000 $/000 $000 $000

THEL THAL TAL TATL TAL

Deferred tax arising from: BEHERE:

At 1 April 2021 R-E--FMA—H (2,887) (133) 11,706 3,447 12,133
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZEFNR/ (GA) 81 - (1,972) 2,752 861
Exchange adjustments EHEE (118) (5) 453 188 518

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZFZZ#=ZA=+-HK

“Z--FWA-H (2,924) (138) 10,187 6,387 13,512
(Credited)/charged to profitor loss KB (5 A) /8 (1,607 M) (1,856) 2667 (809)
Exchange adjustments EHEE 215 10 (745) (469) (989)
At 31 March 2023 R-ZE-=#=ZA=+-H (4,316) (139) 7,584 8,585 11,714

188 AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nV'F

(AETRTR)

23

BB WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INCOME TAX

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:

(Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23

i

(b)

SUBRRRPOFEH (&)

ERIAELEHBE(EE) AfF:
(&)

(i) A& BTN T LR

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
$'000 $'000
THET FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised R 4R & B 75 ik i &R W IR
in the consolidated statement of HYIEEF 1A & & F 58
financial position (4,455) (3,062)
Net deferred tax liabilities Q,?Aﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ/ﬂﬁmﬁﬁ 2y
recognised in the consolidated REFIE B EFER
statement of financial position 16,169 16,574
11,714 13,512
Deferred tax assets not recognised () REAELEHRBEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and
temporary differences arising from property, plant
and equipment amounting to $169,373,000 (2022:
$151,363,000) and $30,826,000 (2022: $21,586,000)
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which such losses and temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in
the relevant entities. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are (i) losses of $167,650,000 (2022:
$149,504,000) from Hong Kong operations that
can be carried forward indefinitely, and (ii) losses
of $1,723,000 (2022: $1,859,000) from the PRC
operations that will expire in five years from the
year in which they arose.

BB F2(q)FT G BR - A
EEVERRAHEEERDE -
BELEBEENERZED
169,373,000 L (= E = =
151,363,0007% 7T ) }30,826,000/% 7T
(ZZ = =4 :21,586,000/ 7T ) #E R
REFRBEEE FRAHEBERTK
AR BEERTANBEZERER
TREEEDEHFMBEIN RERH
IHEERE  ()E518167,650,0007% 7T
(_7__¢ 149,504,000 7T ) -
BN BB r] ERIBAE - &)
§5181,723,0008 L (ZE = — & :
1,859,000/ 7T ) IR BI 7 - H1
RNEEEEFERITAFTEREER-
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iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

190

(a)

24 BEXRKf#E

Movements in components of equity (a) REZANIBL EE
The reconciliation between the opening and REBFEERN S EEKE D H
closing balances of each component of the Group's NREREROEREANGE S
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated PR -FVNEFERPELRRQ A E
statement of changes in equity. Details of the Rl KA D B EE 15 5
changes in the Company’s individual components ™~
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
The Company AT
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
LTS KRG EE RiEE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
AT FET THT THT
Balance at 1 April 2021 R-ZB--FWMA—-HBM
&8 3,750 177,000 (102,621) 78,129
Change in equity for BE-E--%=AH
the year ended ST-BLFEERZH:
31 March 2022:
Shares issued (note 24(b))  BEITIRN (Hi724(b)) 1,180 72,542 - 73,722
Loss and total comprehensive FABER2EREEE
income for the year - - (9,360 (9,360)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R-Z--f=fA=+-H
and 1 April 2022 R-BE--FWMA-HW
g 4,930 249,542 (111,981) 142,491
Change in equity for BE-2-=%=AH
the year ended ST-BLFERERZ:
31 March 2023:
Loss and total comprehensive FABER2EKHBE
income for the year - - (9,636) (9,636)
Balance at 31 March 2023 R=-ZE-=%#=A=t-H
W5 B 4,930 249,542 (121,617) 132,855
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iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

24 BEXR#HE (&)

Share capital (b) K&
2023 2022
—E-=& —E-CF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
R EE &8 Rtn 21 B Eak
'000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
TR TER TR THT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each SR EE0.01E LA L &R 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued EER BEROTRAR:
and fully paid:
At 1 April REA—H 492,984 4,930 374,984 3,750
Share issued BEEITRG = = 118,000 1,180
At 31 March HZA=+-H 492,984 4,930 192,984 4,930
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TRRFAEABRRERIETIRD
receive dividends as declared from time to time e - WEERARAKRE EUFT
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings BR—BETRR-BEARFFHRE
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally EME A SRR -
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
Pursuant to the share subscription completed on BEER T F-_A+HHE
15 February 2022, 118,000,000 ordinary shares were ERERMDRE B MEEZERA A
issued to the immediate holding company for net % 17118,000,000% & @ % - LA K15
proceeds of $73,722,000 to provide additional FT1S F T8 5 5873,722,0007% 7T & KA
capital to the Company. As at 31 March 2022, the ARERftENEE - R F=
capital injection was fully paid up. A=+—H TEEREHE-
Nature and purpose of reserves () REHNHEEREN
(i) Share premium (i) RKREGEE

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of the business.

B tn i B A R R ) EE &
BAT AN BB WO B P 1S 5K
HHNEB - RERASHE QA
P NYNECTE: O v B R R P2
DR T A RE R RRR - HERRE
BESKKREEHE ARF
ABRRENIN —MREBKBRETE
BEIEEEr R
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4=

b2 0 =]

BF 75 R Ak Y &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

192

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the cash paid
for the acquisition of subsidiaries contributed
by the former controlling shareholder in
September 2010.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(t).

Statutory reserve

The Articles of Association of Ningbo AUX
require the appropriation of 10% of its profit
after tax each year, based on its statutory
audited financial statements, to the statutory
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital of Ningbo AUX. The
statutory reserve may be capitalised as the
paid-in capital of Ningbo AUX.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were $127,925,000
(2022: $137,561,000).

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:

$Nil).
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24 EXNf#ERE (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BENEERB N (&)

(i) BX#E
BAREEEAERRRERR =
E-ZEFNARKBIHE AR
PR fHIR &

X
B 34 % 5 4 M O SN S T B
5 95 2 0 2 4 &) BT A 51 B 2
B BRI 2R Y 8
HERE T -

(iii)

EERE
ERRRHARERRMENX
BFERBEEZATEEERZY R
R 1 E B B 1R a8 A B9 109% 5 A
EERME BEERHREDBER
B 7 H E it & A HI50% <A TE
FREAENMERER RN
RN

(iv)

a5 K % B
R-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—H A
DPEFARAIEZRENEEA
127,925,000t (=2 = =
137,561,000 7T ) °

R 8
EETERRNBE-ZF=_=F
A=+ —BzZBRE(ZF=Z=F:%
ABIL)
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iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in

(AETRTR)

Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt position. The Group's strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate working
capital to service its debt obligations. The ratio of
the Group's total liabilities over its total assets at
31 March 2023 was 57% (2022: 60%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

24 EXNf#EE (&)

25

()

EXRER

AEEEREANEZEERRE
AEBERBGELERE N EBR
& T B 7K T A EE m Ko AR 7 TE 1B A R
MEBERABGERE B#ERKR
HREFESEMEDRRTEA ATK

Mas e

AEEREYEPEARERAE
AZEHE B F RS Bk T &
ERTTEERNE SRR E R
BEBRREARRITERES Y
O 5 T 18 B BB AT R
(L BEE AL -

REBMBBLEHBEBRRERE
R REBRRE B ESEREE
BEHRE—RFENMLE LT HERIE
ERMNEEECEEHREK K
EER-_ZE-_=F=ZA=+—8H
BEERANBEELRAST% (ZF
TF60%) e

AR B HREAL M E 2 75 AF 5
S N B AN AR TE R o

BHRAREEREMIAEAFE

AEER-REGBRTFELEEE -RY
B MEREEORR TXHAANE
BHEZFRRORALRAREEEZSE
Rz PR AR O B 75 L B B B ERR SR 1B B

(a)

FERR

EERBREBFIHIARABITANEAL
malBmAKEM K EBERNER- A
SEEERRIERANE SR
RE-BEEEDHEFEBRLR

a3 BE v T A S S 7
BERZEEENRE-
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances is limited as the counterparties are banks
with sound credit standing.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group, as where there is credit exposure to the
Group, it is spread over a diversified portfolio of
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables in connection with operation of
clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets
is limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of property management services,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
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AR RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERT)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BiEMREERSBIAEALE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =ERR (£)
Trade receivables (Continued) EBESEWE (&)
The following table provides information about the TEREJEFHEAKSE@E 2 EERE
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade BARESHEKRKRE 2 BRESE
receivables: BEER
2023
—EC-=f
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BAHERE BEREE BERE
% $'000 $'000
% TER TER
Property management WFEEE
Less than 1 year past due BERIR—F 0% - 7% 62,784 4,690
1-2 years past due BH-EWE 33% 11,418 3,809
2-3 years past due AHEME=F 56% 5,883 3,271
3-4 years past due AH=ZmE 78% 4,562 3,537
More than 4 years past due AHERNE 97% 5,434 5,252
90,081 20,559
Operation of clubbing business HERHEE FER
and restaurant and bar outlets JBIEFIT
Current (not past due) B (K@) 0% 203 -
Property management HYEE IS ERE
related value-added services
Current (not past due) HE (ke 0% 1,670 -
91,954 20,559
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTERT)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

196

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

BHEERRBEEREMIAQNTE
(%)

(a) FERK (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) EBESEWE (&)
2022
- F
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BYBREX BRmRE ERER
% $'000 $'000
% TET TR
Property management WFEEE
Less than 1 year past due BHIR—F 0% - 4% 60,205 2,532
1-2 years past due BH-EWE 21% 10,648 2,216
2-3 years past due AHME=F 34% 6,880 2,349
3-4 years past due BH=FmE 57% 4,073 2,323
More than 4 years past due BHERNE 100% 3,784 3,784
85,590 13,204
Operation of clubbing business HERHEYE FER
and restaurant and bar outlets JBIEFIT
Current (not past due) HE(kas) 0% - -
85,590 13,204

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

BHEERRBEEREMIAQNTE
(%)

(a) FERR (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) EZEWIE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FRN EWRESERNEEBER
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BT
2023 2022
—_Eg2-= -
$'000 $'000
FHET FAET
At the beginning of the year NG ) 13,204 13,219
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) BHER, (#E) 2B E
(note 7(c)) B8 (Wit 7(c)) 8,326 (552)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 3 2 (971) 537
At the end of the year RER 20,559 13,204

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
or controlling shareholder to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

(b) REBESZEAMR
AEBANERNKEEERAESAL
ReEE BRASESRNEDRR
ENBREFENEMRETR
HE fis 8 SRR B T E MY IR K P B
AARBRARESEHE-NEE
MBRREREERBESH R
DHERERERNBESHABREKS
T E SRR SR IR AR Y B S K
HEERE RMREHEEHRD

B ER-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group's financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates

BHEERRBEEREMIAQNTE
(%)

(b) REBELRAM (&)
TRITASESRABERREH
RGBT EOBNHBER - IR E
BHNARTRESRE(BEREHN
ME (K - MEFE  AIREBERSH
REOBIEAR =) &t E o F .8 A 7)) &
AREEAHERMNFROKE A M

current at the end of the reporting period) and the B
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2023
—E-=E
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRATREER

More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than 31 March
on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2023
R-BZ=F
—FR® -FHUEE WMENLE =A=t-H
RER MEAT REQT gt REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TEL TERL TERL TET TET
Trade and other payables BHREAMENTHIE 115,703 - - 115,703 115,703
Lease liabilities EEERE 13,901 2,700 = 16,601 16,216
Amount due to the controlling shareholder — JEfT IR R B 4,650 - - 4,650 4,650
Loans from the controlling shareholder REZBRBERER 23,107 1,047 52,799 76,953 74,420
157,361 3,747 52,799 213,907 210,989
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

BHEERRBEEREMIAQNTE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELRER (£F)
2022

T ——

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

(c)

BHNATERERL
More than More than Carrying
Within Tyearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than 31 March
on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2022
WZE-—F
—FERg  —FNEE MENELR ZR=t-8
REX RMEAT EEUT B EEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T TiEx T
Trade and other payables B REAMENTA 130,196 - - 130,196 130,196
Lease liabilities HEEME 12,470 1,012 - 13,482 13,286
Amount due to the controlling shareholder ~ JEfT IR R B 6,113 - - 6,113 6,113
Loans from the controlling shareholder REERBERER 89,456 22,060 - 111,516 110,854
238,235 23,072 - 261,307 260,449
Interest rate risk (c) FIZERARK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or MExRBEcMITEZ AFEKK
future cash flows of a financial instrument will RESAREEREM ST REDHIR

fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from lease liabilities and loan from the controlling
shareholder (interest-bearing portion) as disclosed
in notes 21 and 22 respectively. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in the following table.

KB ER A EENRRERER
EE AR D B E21 %2257 T &
HERBELRRBERRRER (G
B2 REBBTHERSAS

B B 2 F (B K LB

o NEE A

BERASRMITET AR EEmME -
TR AKEEEEERHF X
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
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Bt %

EEEERERIAQAFE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FEEbx(4#F)
2023 2022
—E-=f —T--F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate $'000 rate $'000
ERAE TER BHRA = FEL
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEEE:
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.5% - 4.8% 16,216 3.5% - 6.5% 13,286
Loans from the controlling shareholder ~ RE BB RE K 2.0% 52,360 2.0% 88,794
Total borrowings BIER 68,576 102,080
The Group's interest-bearing financial liabilities at RAEBERBKERRNGFEEREE
fixed interest rates at the end of reporting period (BEAME) RIZEHA AT ENH
are lease liabilities and loans from the controlling EBERERRRER MHH X
shareholder that are measured at amortised cost, SEW T FEANEEEEEFERRE -
and the change of market interest rate does not B - 3 A 2R A KR B ) SRR
expose the Group to interest rate risk. Accordingly, DT o
no sensitivity analysis has been presented.
(d) Currency risk (d) E%¥Ek

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings and cash balances that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is Renminbi.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F

AREBEEFENIMNER R EZRA A
SNEEHEMER R S &% BT
RHMEREBZINEEEININZ
ERstE-RERRERNERE X
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] 7 & Jm
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s AR BRI EEEE U
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mE M BRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTERT)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i)

(%)

(d) &E%WmEKE (&)

BHEERRBEEREMIAQNTE

EmE®mE (&)

Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in HKD)

H B 70 % 3 B
(LABRTRTR)
2023 2022
—EZ=4F —F-=
Renminbi Renminbi
AR AR
$'000 $'000
FET FAET
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREFERS 586 14
Loans from the controlling KEERKRRER
shareholder - (88,794)
Net exposure arising from EHREERAEGEM
recognised assets and liabilities EEZRERFE 586 (88,780)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit/(loss) after tax (and accumulated losses)
that would arise if foreign exchange rate to
which the Group has significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period had changed

(i) HBEEDH

at that date, assuming all other risk variables

remained constant.

TRIIFERAA R AR
BURSE T E  f HR 45 B R A
S5 18 O L O 36 A3
AEEr DREXN 1SS
I/ (BR) (R AR
B 4130 0 BDBS B D«
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BiEMREERSBIAEALE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥@EkR (&)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (ii) SEREEDW (F)
2023 2022
—EZ=fF —E-=
(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase (decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in loss
(decrease) after tax and (decrease) after tax and
in foreign  in accumulated in foreign in accumulated
exchange rate losses exchange rate losses
BRB R A BRE BB R
SN BE = RERiER SN FE 25t R
A7/ (THE) (R4) /i EF/ (TR #m/ Cid)
$'000 $'000
TERT THET
Renminbi AR 10% (59) 10% 8,878
(10)% 59 (10)% (8,878)
Results of the analysis as presented in the LERFESMERIERZVE
above table represent an aggregation of the YT A% LA FETh B B AT E B
instantaneous effects on each of the Group AEEEBRBZERR R
entities’ loss after tax and accumulated BB IR MG BRIRITE X %
losses measured in the respective functional RETHEANREZE -

currencies, translated into HKD at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

202 AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRTR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables within the Group, if
any, which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group's presentation currency. The
analysis has been performed on the same
basis for 2022.

(e) Fair value measurement
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and

25 BERBEEREMIARATE

(%)

(d)

(e)

EWEAk (&)

(ii)

BB E D (F)

BEE DT R AR MNE B & 2 &
FBEAREFNFERSEEN W
LHRBFESEmMBINER R
memTE BIEEEMNIE
BH 2N BB E B
H(WA) o ~aEEF
BB mERBEKREE
B2y EBmEE T E5-
AR - - —FHRREE

#EATe

AFHEFE

REEZBHEANATARZEMITA
ZEMERER-Z_=-"FK_F
=A==+ —HZATFEE]

TAe

26 EXBBARS

(a)

TEEEBAEHM
AEBETEEERABNFTFH (8

BN THEMBENARAES

LI RENE TR HE

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed SRR
in note 10, is as follows:
2023 2022
—E2-= —EF=-=
$'000 $'000
FHExT FHET
Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHEERA
employee benefits \ 7,653 7,481
Retirement scheme contributions RORET SR 163 169
7.816 7,650

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

204

(b)

(c)

Transactions with other related parties

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions:

26 EXBABMARS (&)

(b)

RHEMEBL XS
BAMBHRREMEBMDAEEZR
SRR ANE B EBE T ETT
TIHEARRS:

2023 2022
—E_-=5F —E-
$'000 $'000
THERT FET
Property management services income KRB R HT 2 MEERE
from related parties (note) RRFSUA (H7aE) 82,165 73,697
Short-term lease expenses paid BT T &S EEE
to related parties (note) M (h7it) 65 619

Note: The related parties represented the entities owned
or controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the controlling

shareholder of the Group.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
above transactions were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
business.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The property management services income from
related parties disclosed in note 26(b) includes
$62,856,000 (2022: $57,567,000) which constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Report of the directors.

In addition, short-term lease expenses paid to
related parties disclosed in note 26(b) constituted
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27

RAEE BRI K

POSITION
2023 2022
—=E—= —EF- =
Note $'000 $'000
T FHExT F&T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 356 1,211
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRMIEE 15 10 10
366 1,221
Current assets REEE
Other receivables E b e W R IE 123 123
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEH&W% AlFRIA 129,638 77,095
Cash at bank and in hand 1TFE &?“Eﬁ% 9,448 69,999
139,209 147,217
Current liabilities FBaE
Other payables E b fE S 3108 6,296 4,582
Lease liabilities HEBRE 424 941
... 6720 5,523
Net currentassets = #®B&EEFE 132,489 141,694
Total assets less current liabilities BEEZABERABERE 132,855 142,915
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 424
NET ASSETS EEFE 132,855 142,491
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFEE 24(a)
Share capital % 2 4,930 4,930
Reserves i 127,925 137,561
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 132,855 142,491
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28

29

30

206

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTIES

At 31 March 2023, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to
be Huiri Limited and Ze Hui Limited respectively, both
are incorporated in the BVI and beneficially owned by
Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. None of these parties produces
financial statements available for public use.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Rental deposits have been reclassified to conform to
current year's presentation.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2023 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hf BB 42 R A R A F
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(CONTINUED)

30

BE—_E-_=%£=HA=+-—81Lt
FECHEMEMRERNEBR
Rl ER RN E (F)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BB R &K
HNEFTHEER

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making materiality judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies

ERGHENBIRZE HEHRXZIREBMERELNEE RS E25%

TELEAX BT - 2ot MR K

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in

1 January 2023

—E-=%#—H—H

1 January 2023

accounting estimates and errors: Definition of accounting estimates

ER G ERNFSRZIERT  BaBHE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and

liabilities arising from a single transaction

BRGERNBI2R BTN EH BB ZELZEERRERBZ

PR

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

BRGERNBIRZER] HHFHRXES REDERBREXIRE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Non-current liabilities with covenants

BREGERNBIRZER] HHFHRXES WERVNF LB R E

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

BEHAEYBRER B A NER

—E-=%—HA—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%—H—H

1 January 2024
—E-mMFE—-A—H

1 January 2024
—EF-mMFE—-A—H
AREBEFEZFETNERERAYHEZ
BT E-LS5RIL AEERREMZL

FEA LM EATEHRAMHHRRE
RERTE-
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Five-Year Financial Summary
IFHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and ZASEBEZABEPBRFENEEUNREE &
liabilities of the Group for the five financial years is as follows: @mRABEMZW T :

Year ended 31 March
BEZRAZ+—HLEFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —T--fF —T-—F —T-TFE —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FET FET

Revenue O 397,092 357,239 302,907 339,972 317,568
Profit/(loss) from operations REELEN/ (BR) 43,883 20,833 9,444 32,122 (398)
Income tax expense SRR (18,006) (18,591) (15,679) (15,953) (6,891)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BE) 24,136 (108) (8,621) 13,213 (9,635)
At 31 March
R=ZA=+—8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —E--F B —Z-TF —T-AE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TET TAT TET

Total Assets BEBE 537,740 602,338 447 247 433,194 427,738
Total Liabilities BEE 305,784 358,448 311,556 (304,820) (297,490)

231,956 243,890 135,691 128,374 130,248

Equity attributable to: WTFATEG#RER:
- Owners of the Company —RARERA 231,956 243,890 135,691 128,374 130,248
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